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Director

November 6, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (VC#177677),
Newmarket, NH, to continue to provide access to reproductive and sexual health services, by
exercising a contract renewal option by extending the completion date from December 31, 2023
to June 30, 2025, and increasing the price limitation by $714,589 from $603,046 to $1,317,635
effective January 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 69% Federal Funds. 31%
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 22, 2021, item
#41C, and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on July 27, 2022, item
#15C.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to ensure the continued support of reproductive and sexual
health services for low-income individuals by supporting family planning clinical services, STl and
HIV counseling and testing, cancer screening, and health education materials. The Department
is requesting to improve access by expanding services into Newmarket and Raymond locations,
where services will be offered one half day per week at these new locations. Costs will be used
to support staffing of a provider, nurse, and community health worker at both locations, as well as
for pharmaceuticals, supplies, staff education and training. This amendment and will also extend
this contract by exercising an available renewal option.

Approximately 1,950 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025,
approximately 1,530 more than have been seen in SFY 2024.Reproductive health care and family
planning are critical public health services that must be affordable and easily accessible within
communities throughout the State. By partnering with a health center located in rural areas, the
Department ensures affordable access to reproductive health care is available in all areas of the
State. Family Planning services reduce the health and economic disparities associated with lack
of access to high quality, affordable health care.

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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The Contractor will provide family planning and reproductive health services to individuals

- in need with a heightened focus on vulnerable and low-income populations including, but not

* limited to: the uninsured; underinsured; individuals who are eligible for and/or are receiving-
Medicaid services; adolescents; lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and or questioning (LGBTQ)
individuals; individuals in need of confidential services; individuals at or federal poverty level;
refugees; and individuals at risk of unintended pregnancy due to substance abuse.

The Department will continue to monitor services by measuring the percentage of:

¢ Clients in the family planning caseload who respectively were under 100% Federal
Poverty Level (FPL), were under 250% FPL, and under 20 years of age.

e Clients served in the family planning program that were uninsured or Medicaid
recipients at the time of their last visit.

B Family planning clients less than 18 years of age who recerved educatlon that
: abstinence is a viable method of birth control.

o Family plannmg cllents who received STD/HIV reductron educatron
e Individuals under age 25 screened for Chlamydia and tested positive.

e Family planning clients of reproductlve age who recelved preconception
counseling.

e Women ages 15 to 44 at risk of unintended pregnancy who were provrded a most
or moderately effective contraceptive method.

As referenced in . P37 Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard
Agreement Provisions of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the
agreement up to two- (2) times for two (2) additional years each time, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery. of.services, available funding, agreement of the partles and Governor
and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option-to renew services for one (1) ‘
year, srx (6) months of the first available renewal option. :

Should the Governor and Council not authorize . this request the sustarnablllty of
New Hampshire's reproductive health care system will be negatively impacted. Not
authorizing this request could remove the safety net of services that improve birth outcomes,
prevent unplanned pregnancy and reduce health disparities, WhICh could mcrease the cost of
health care for people in New Hampshire.

Area served: Statewide. .

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.217, FAIN
FPHPAD06511; Assistance Listing Number 93.558, FAIN 2301NHTANF

Inthe event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support thls program.

Respectfully submitted,

Wﬁ%wmﬂj

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner
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Reproductive and Sexual Health Services
- Amendment #2

05-95-90- 902010 5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF
FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTRITION, FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM

CFDA #93.217, FAIN # FPHPA006511 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (Vendor #177677) o

State Fiscal Class/Account : C|as;s Title Job N.umber Current Modified lpcre_ased (Decreased) | . Revised Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2022 074-500583 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 90080206 S 33,775.00 | § - S 33,775.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 90080017 S 22,070.00 | § - S 22,070.00
2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asstand Rel  » | . 90080206 ) 114,878.00 | $§ R 114,878.00
2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 90080206 $ 62,660.00 | § 156,724.00 | § 219,384.00
2025 074-500589 " Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 90080206 S ’ = $ 313,449.00 | $ 313,449.00 | .

i . Subtotal S 233,383.00 S . 470,173.00 | § 703,556.00

05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV., BUREAU OF )
FAMILY HEALTH AND NUTRITION, FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
100% GENERAL FUNDS

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (Vendor #177677)

State Fiscal Class/Account Class Title Job Numbér Current Modified Increased (Decreased) Revised Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2022 ° 102-500731 - Contracts for Prog Serv. 90080207 $ 90,333.00 | $ & $ 90,333.00°
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Serv. 90080207 $ 100,290.00 | § - $ 100,290.00 |
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Serv. 90080207 $ 54,704.00 | $ 54,704.00 | $ ° 109,408.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Serv. 90080207 S 2 $ 109,408.00 | $ 109,408.00
. Subtotal $ 245,327.00 | § 164,112.00 $ 409,439.00

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEATLH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN S§VS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES - DEHS,
TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

CFDA # 93.558, FAIN# 2301NHTANF 100% FEDERAL FUNDS
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (Vendor #177677) '
St.ate Fiscal | Class/ Account Class Title b Numbir Currlent Modified - | Increased (Decreased) Revised Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel’ 45030203 S 48,494.00 | § - S 48,494.00
2023 " 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel " 45030203 S 49,074.00 | § - $ 49,074.00
2024 - . 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 45030203 S .26,768.00 | $ 26,768.00 | $ 53,536.00
2025. | J4:5 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 45030203 [ S - |8 - 53,536.00 | § 53,536.00
T Subtotal $ 124,336.00 | $ 80,304.00 | $. 204,640.00
TOTAL $- 603,046.00 | $ 714,589.00 | $ 1,317,635.00

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02

Governor and Executive Council -

Fiscal Details
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services -
Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Reproductive and Sexual Health Ser\rices contract is by-and between the State
‘of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Servrces ("State” or "Department“) and Lamprey
'Health Care, Inc. ("the Contractor"). '

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the.Governor and Executive Council
on December 22, 2021 (Item #41C), as amended on July 27, 2022 (Item #15C), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and condrtlons specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specmed and

'WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provrsmns the Contract’ may be amended upon wrltten
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and condrtrons contalned
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2025 - |
2. Form P- 37, General Provnsrons Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,317,635 ' ' '
- 3. FormP- 37 General Provrsrons Block 1.9, Contractlng Officer for State Agency, to read:
~ Robert W. Moore, Director -

4, Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services to replace aII references to Sexually Transmltted Diseases .
(STDs) with Sexually Transmltted Infections (STIs) except where in reference to document titles. .

5;j Modify Exh|b|t B, Scope of Services, Paragraph 2.11.1. to read:

2.11.1.  The Contractor shall provide reproductlve and sexual health clinical services in
' compliance with all applicable Federal and State guidelines, including the NH FPP.
Clinical Services Guidelines (Attachment 2 — Amendment #2)

| 6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Paragraph 2. 11.8. to read:

2.11.8.  The Contractor shall prowde STl and HIV counseling and testmg in compliance

' with the most up-to-date Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) STD

Treatment Guidelines in NH FPP Clinical Services Guidelines (Attachment 2~
Amendment #2).

7. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Serwces Paragraph 2.12.1. to read:

~2.12.1.  The Contractor shall provide health information and educatlonal materlals in
accordance with I&E Materials Review and Approval Pollcy (Attachment 3 -
- Amendment #2). : :

8. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Serwces Paragraph 2.12. 3 to read:

' 2(12.3.  The Contactor must sign and return the 1&E Materials Review and Approval Policy
(Attachment 3 — Amendment #2). to the Department within thlrty (30) days of
Governor and Council approval of this Agreement.

‘ ' ' . ~ ' " DS
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. - o : Contractor tnitials [—
: P . : ‘ s . ‘ ] 10/27/2023
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02 Page 1 of 6 . Date
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9. Modlfy Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Paragraphs 2.12.5. through 2.12.8. to read:

2.12.5.

2.12.6.

« =12

2.12.8.

' 2112,5.3..  National origin; -

The: Contractor shall establish an I&E Committee and Advisory Board comprised -

of individuals within the targeted population or/or communities for which the.
materials.are intended. The I&E Committee and Advisory Board, which may be
the same group of individuals, must be broadly representatlve in terms of
demographlc factors including:

2.12.5.1. Race;

2.12.5.2.  Color;

2.12:5.4.  People with disabilities;

- 2.12.5.5. ’ Sex, and
121256, Age.

The Contractor shall ensure the I&E Committee. reviews all information and
educational materials in accordance with the I&E Materials Review and Approval
Process Policy (Attachment 3 ~ Amendment #2). .

The Contractor shall ensure -the Advisory Board assesses the Title X
Reproduction and Sexual Health Program at'a minimum of two (2) times a year
to ensure the program is'meeting all goals and objectives in accordance with I&E
Materials Review and Approval Policy (Attachment 3 Amendment #2)

" The Contractor shall ensure:
*2.12.8.1. .- The I&E Committee and AdVlSOl'y Board meet two (2) times per year

at a minimum.

.212.8.2. Health education and information materials are reviewed by the "

Advisory Board in accordance with I&E Materials Review and-
Approval Policy (Attachment 3 — Amendment #2). '

2.12.8.3. Health education materials meet current medical standards and
have a documented process for dlscontlnumg any out-of-date .
materials. :

-10. Modlfy Exhlblt B, Scope of Services, Subparagraph 2.13. 2.3. toread:

2.13.2.3.  Submit an updated Work Plan to the Department no later than |
August 31, 2024 for Year Three (3) of the Agreement.

11. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by adding Subparagraph 2.14.1.4. to read:

2.14.1.4. Submit a written response to site visit findings within SIxty (80) days :
of the Site Visit Report being shared. .

12. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Paragraphs 2.15.2. through 2.15.4. to read:

2152,

2.156.3.

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02 ' Page 2 of 6 o Date

The Contractor shall ensure all family planning staff complete required trainings
in accordance with the NH FPP Requnred Trainings (Attachment 9 — Amendment
#2).

The Contractor shall ensure staff providing STI and HIV counseling are trained
utilizing CDC models or tools, in accordance with NH FPP Clinical Serwces

Guidelines (Attachment 2 - Amendment #2).
) . Ds
l AN
Contractor Initials

10/27/2023
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2.15.4.  The Contractor shall ensure all family planning clinical staff participate in the
yearly Sexual Health webinar training conducted by the Department and keep
records of staff participation. The training can be utilized for HRSA Section 318

- eligibility requirements, if applicable. The Contractor shall:

2.15.4.1.  Ensure a minimum of two (2) cllnlcal staff attend the “Ilve weblnar _
: on the scheduled date, and

2.15.4.2. Ensure clinical staff who did not attend the “live” webinar view a
recording of the training within thirty (30) days of the release of the -
~ recorded “live” webinar, as available. .

2.15.4.3. Submit an Attendance Sheet that includes attendee signatures to
the Department within thlrty (30) days of the “live” webinar, as
available. .

13. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Paragraph 2.16.3. to read:

2.16.3.  The Contractor shall provide and maintain qualified staffing to perform and carry
out all services in this Exhibit B, Scope of Services — Amendment #2. The
Contractor shall: 5

2.16.3.1. Ensure staff unfamiliar with the NH Family Planning Program,data
system currently in use by the NH Family Planning Program (FPP)
attend a required ‘orientation/training Webinar conducted by the
Department’s database Contractor.

2.16.3.2. Ensure staff are supervised by a Medical Director, with speciahzed
training and experience in family plannlng, in accordance with
Section 2.11.6. above.

2.16.3.3.  Ensure staff have received appropriate training and possess the .

. proper education, - experience and orientation to fulfill the
_requirements in this contract and maintain documentation verifying

this reqwrement is met. - - »

2.16.3.4. - Maintain up-to-date records and documentation for staff requiring
licenses and/or certifications and submit documentation to the
Department upon request and no Iess than annual]y.

14. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Paragraph 4.1. 4 to read:

414, Collecting FPAR 2.0 Data Elements as required by the Offlce of Populatlons
Affairs and the Department beginning January 1, 2022,

15. Modify Exhibit C Amendment #1, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by:
1.1. - 69% Federal Funding from:

1.1.1. Family Planning Serwces Grants,.as awarded on March 23, 2022 by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Assnstant
Secretary of Health, NH Family Planning (Title X) Program, CFDA
#93.217, FAIN FPHPA006511; and

| . . DS
. ‘ ~ L l AT
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. ) : ) Contractor Initials

. : ; ‘ 10/27/2023
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02 : Page 3 of 6 .- Date___
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1.1.2. ~US. Department of Health and Human: Services, Administration for -
Children & Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (ACF,
- TANF) as awarded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Administration for Children & Families, Temporary Assistance

for Needy Families (TANF), CFDA #93 558, FAIN 2001 NHTANF.

1.2. 31% State General funds.
16. Modify Exhibit C Amendment #1, Payment Terms Section 4, to read N

4. Payment shall.be made on a cost relmbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in
the fulfillment of this Agreement, in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-9, TANF Budget
(SFY 25) — Amendment #2.

'17. Modify Exhibit C-3 Family Planning Budget (SFY24) by replacmg in its entirely w1th Exhibit C 3, |
FP Budget (SFY 24) — Amendment #2, which is attached here to and. mcorporated by reference
herein. :

18. Modify Exhibit C- 6 TANF Budget (SFY 24) by replacing in lts ‘entirely with Exhibit C-6, TANF
Budget (SFY 24) — Amendment #2, which is attached here to and incorporated by reference herein.

19. Add Exhibit C-8, FP Budget (SFY 25)— Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated .
by reference herein. ' ' '

20. Add Exhibit C-9, TANF Budget (SFY 25) - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and o
" incorporated by reference herein.’

21. Modify Attachment 2 by replacmg in its entirety with Attachment 2, NH FPP Cllnlcal Services
Guidelines - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

- 22. Modify Attachment 3 by replacing in its entlrety ‘with-Attachment 3, I&E Materials Review and
Approval Process Policy — Amendment #2, WhICh is attached hereto and mcorporated by reference
hereln . _ ‘

23, Add Attachment 9, NH FPP Required Tralnlngs — Amendment #2, Wthh is attached hereto andf'
incorporated by reference hereln ,

Lamprey Health Care; Inc. o - Contractor lnltlals [———
- ) . : ' 10/27/202 3
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02 Page 4 of 6 Date
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_ All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective January 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval. _ : -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands'as'of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

‘ . o DocuSigned by:
. 10/27/2023 ' l Patricia Tﬁibq
Ra Ti11ey

Date - Name:’
Title: pirector, Division of Public Health Services .-

rgy.fgalth Care, Inc.

10/27/2023

Date . | Name:
‘ Title: CEO

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02 *  Pageb5of6
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“The ‘preceding Amendment, having been reviewed,’ by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and o
execution. ' ' ' o

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

] . A : E DocuSigned by: . '
10/31/2023 ' | _ l ‘?kujw Guenivo : ﬁ
Date - . Y "Gua‘r'l o ‘ .

Name:
Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive C'ounc'ilvof
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _ (date of meeting) .

| OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date - . Name:
- Title:

’Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02 Page A6 of 8
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Exhibit C-3, Family Planning Budget (SFY 24)
- Amendment # 2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Family Planning Budget
Budget Request for: (Family Planning Title X: ALN 93.217, FAIN
FPHPAQ06511 + General Funds)
Budget Period 07/01/2023 - 06/30/2024
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 2.60%
Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages $248,460
2. Fringe Benefits $42,889
3. Consultants 30
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment $0
costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR
200.
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $132
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $16,000
5.(e) Supplies Office $7,260
6. Travel $0
7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $1,500
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $4,000
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please specify) 30
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) 30
Other (please specify) $0
9. Subrecipient Contracts $0
Total Direct Costs $320,241
Total Indirect Costs $8,551
TOTAL $328,792

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02

DS
] AN
Contractor Initial:

o 10/27/2023

Dat
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Exhibit C-6, TANF Budget (SFY 24)

- Amendment # 2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.
‘Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
4 . Temporary Assistance to Needy Families
Budget Request for: 1) v 93,558, FAIN 2001NHTANF)
: Budget Period 07/01/2023 - 06/30/2024
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%
T T ineltem .-Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages
2. _Fringe Benefits 37,273
3. Consultants _ $0|
4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment $0
costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendlx IVto2 CFR
200.
5.(a) Suppliés ~ Educational 30
5.(b) Supplies - Lab ' - $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical - $0
5.(e) Supplles Office $0
6 Travel $0
7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Marketmg/Communlcatlons $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training 30
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0]
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) 30
19. Subrecipient Contracts %0
Total Direct Costs $53,536
Total Indirect Costs ' $0
TOTAL $53,536
iy . DS
- 1 ALY
Contractor Initial: :
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02 Date; 10/27/2023
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Exhlblt C-8, Family Planning Budget (SFY 25)
- Amendment # 2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Family Planning Budget
Budget Request for: (Family Planning Title X: ALN 93.217, FAIN
FPHPA006511 + General Funds)
Budget Period 07/01/2024 - 06/30/2025
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 4.04%
e e lline ltem . Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages $305,557
2. Fringe Benefits ' $52,710
3. _Consultants . _ $0
4 ‘Equipment .
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment : : 8 $0
costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR C
200. A
5.(a) Supplies - Educational : " $0
5.(b) Supplies-Lab R o . ' _$0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy . $132
5.(d) Supplies - Medical ~ $30,000
5.(e) - Supplies Office $7,260
6. Travel — ‘ ; . . $0
7. Software - ' } $0
8.:(a) Other - Marketing/Communications $3,000
8. (b) Other - Education and Training - $7,100
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) : . ‘
Other (please specify) . . $0
Other (please specify) . - $0
Other (please specify) : » . - %0
-Other (please specify) : .3 $0
9. -‘Subrecipient Contracts - ' ' $0 A
Total Direct Costs $405,759]
Total Indirect Costs $17,098
TOTAL $422,857

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02

g DS -
| | caw
Contractor Initial:

110/27/2023

Date
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- Exhibit C-9, TANF Budget (SFY 25)
- Amendment #2

New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
. Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name Lamprey Health Care, Inc. o
Temporary Assistance to Needy Fammes
Budget Request for: (ALN 93558, FAIN 2301NHTANF) '
" Budget Perlod 07/01/2024 06/30/2025
Indirect Cost Rate (if apphcabie) 0 00% -
2 Iter ram Cost Funded by IHHS 1
Salary & Wages $46 263
‘ 2. Fringe Benefits ‘ . $7,273
3. Consultants . $0
4, Equment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment '$0 ’
costs per-2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR N
200. .
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy ; $0
5.(d)  Supplies - Medical < %0
5.(e) Supplies Office %0
6. Travel Wi ,$_O
7. Software - $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications 80
18. (b) Other - Educationand Training .~ | .. oo ot oo e $0
18. (c) Other - Other (specify below) '
Other (please specify) | ~ o
_Other (please specify). E e B
- Other (please spec:lfy_) ' 50
—Other (please speaily) 50
9. Subreciptent Contracts - 80
Total Direct Costs $53.536
Total Indirect Costs '$0
TOTAL $53,536

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A02

. . ) Ds
- l A
Contractor Initial: _ S

Date:

10/27/2023
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Attachment 2, NH FPP Clinical Services Guidelines - |
Amendment #2

: State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
Bureau of Population Health and Community Services
Maternal & Child Health Section '
Family Planning Program

Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines
Effective July 1, 2023

<Revised November 1996, November 1997, January 2001, May 2001, October 2004, October 2007,
December 2009, December 2010, February 2011, February 2012, April 2014, June 2019, May 2020,
June 2021, July 2022, June 2023>

These guidelines detail the minimum required clinical services offered by Family Planning
delegate agencies. They are designed to meet the Title X regulations and Program Guidelines for Project
Grants. for Famxly Planning Setvices, U.S. Department of Health & Human Services.

Each delegate agency must use these guidelines as m1n1mum expectations for clinical services;
this document does not preclude an agency from providing a broader scope of services. If an agency
chooses to develop more comprehensive medical protocols, these guidelines will form the foundational
reference. Individual guidelines may be acceptable with an evidence base. An agency may have more or
less detailed guidelines as long as the acceptable national evidentiary resource is cited. Delegate sub-
recipient agencies are expected to provide both contraceptive and preventative health services.

These guidelines must be signed by all staff who provxde direct care and/or education to clients, .
including, but not limited to, MDs, APRNs PAs, and nurses. Their sngnatules mdlcate their agreement to -
follow these guidelines. : : E

ke T

Approved: | _ . _ ‘ - Date: 6/8/2023

Aurelia Moran
Sexual and Reproductive Health Program Administrator
DHHS/DPHS -

Date: 6/9/23

Approved:

 Dr. Amy Paris, MD, MS.
NH Family Planning Medical Consultant

We agree to follow these gu1de11nes effective J uly 1,2023 as minimum requlred clinical serv1ces for -
. family planning:

Lamprey Health cCare

Bocubigned-by:

Sub-recipient Authorlzmg Slonature [ éMo MMILL

TUOZIATERYLYEUL.

Sub-recipient Agency Name:
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Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines

L Overview of Family Planning Clinical Guidelines:
A. Title X Priority Goals:

1. To provide the highest quality family planning and related preventive health services that are
. consistent with nationally recognized standards of care, and in a manner that does not
discriminate against any client based on religion, race, color, national origin, disability, age,
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, sex characteristics, number of pregnan01es or marltal
status. ;

To ensure family planning services are equitable, client-centered, culturally and linguistically
appropriate, inclusive, and trauma-informed. Client-centered care is defined as care that is
respectful of, and responsive to, individual client preferences, needs, and values. Client
values should guide all clinical decisions. Culturally and linguistically appropriate services
are respectful of and responsive to the health beliefs practices and needs of diverse patients.

L

3. To prov1de access to a broad range of acceptable and effective medlcally approved family
planning methods and services.

~B. Delegate Requlrements
1. Provide-a broad range of acceptable and effective medically approved family planmng and
related and other preventlve services including:

° Comprehenswe family planning services for clients who want to prevent pregnancy '

" and space births including: client education and counselm health history; phys1cal
assessment laboratory testing;
Breast and cervical cancer screening as appropriate and per the national guxdelmes
Assistance to achieving pregnancy; .

o Basic (Level 1) infertility services: provide Level I Infertility Services at a minimum,
which includes initial infertility interview, education regarding causes and treatment
options, physical examination, counseling, and appropriate referral. These services

must be provided at the client’s request;

] Pregnancy testing and counseling;

e Adolescent-friendly health services;

- Annual chlamydia and gonorrhea screening for all sexually active women less than 25
. years of age and high-risk women > 25 years of age;

e Sexually transmitted infection (STI) and human lmmunodeﬁc1ency virus (HIV)
services, including prevention education, testmg, dlagn051s treatment and referral

. Other preconception health services

e Provision and follow up of referrals as needed to address medical and social service
needs. : :
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2. Follow-up treatment for significant problems uncovered by the history or screening,
physical or laboratory assessment or other required (or recommended) services for -
Title X family planning patients should be provided onsite or by approprlate referral
per the following clinical practlce guidelines:

¢ Providing Quality Famlly Planning Services — Recommendations of CDC and US OPA,
2014 (http://www.cde.gov/mmwr/pdi/rr/rr6304. pdf)

o Update: Providing Quality Family Planning Services — Recommendations from CDC
and the U.S. Office of Population Affairs, 2015 '
(https://www.cde.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/wr/mm6509a3 htm)

o Update: Providing Quality Family Planning Services — Recommendations from CDC -

" "and the U.S. Office of Population Affairs; 2017 -
(https://www.cde.gov/mmwr/volumes/66/wr/mm6650a4.htm)

¢ With supporting guidelines from: .
o Medical Eligibility Criteria for Contraceptive Use, 2016 (CDO):
https://www.cde.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/tt/tr6503al.htm?s_cid=rr6503al - w
m  Update to U.S. Medical Eligibility Criteria for Contraceptive Use. 2016:
Updated Recommendations for the Use of Contraception Among Women at
High Risk for HIV Infection | MMWR (cdc.gov)
o U.S. Selected Practice Recommendation for Contraceptive Use, 2016 (CDC):
https://www.cde.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/rt/rr6504al .htim
' = Update to U.S. Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use
. Self-Administration of Subcutaneous Depot I\/Iedroxyprogesterone Acetate I
MMWR (ede.gov)
o Sexually Transmitted Infections Treatment Guidelines, 2021 (CDC):
https://www.cde.gov/std/treatment-guidelines/default.htm
o Recommendations for Providing Quality STD Clinical Services (STD QC) 2020,
' CDC: https://www.cdc.gov/std/qes/default.htm -
o Recommendations to Improve Preconception Health and Health Care—Unites States
2006 (CDC): hitps://www.cde.gov/mmwr/PDE/rt/rr5506.pdf
o Recommendations of the U.S. Preventive Services Task Force
https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/uspstf/recommendation-topics
- = Subseribe for Email Updates:
https://www. uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/apps/subscribe.jsp
»  Download USPSTF Recommendations App for Web and Mobile Devices:
_ https://www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org/apps/
o Clinical Guidelines from Other Professional Medical Associations:
®  American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOG):
https://www.acog.org/
» Bright Futures Guidelines/American Academy of Pediatrics: -
https:/brightfutures.aap.org/clinical-practice/Pages/default.aspx
*  American Society for Reproductive Medicine: https:/www.asrm.org/
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"  American Urological Association : https://www.auanet.org/guidelines-and-
quality/guidelinesAmerican Society of Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology
(ASCCP): https://www.asccp.org/Default.aspx

= Other relevant clinical practice guldelmes approved by the BPHCS/US

" DHHS.

3. Necessary referrals for any required services should be initiated and tracked per written
referral protocols and follow-up procedures for each agency.
e Substance Use Disorder
Behavioral Health
Immediate Postpartum
LARC Insertion
Primary Care Services
Infertility Services

4. Assurance of confidentiality must be included for all sessions where services are provided.

New Hampshire Mandated Reporting Req ui_rements

As a mandated reporter, the legal requirement to report suspected abuse or neglect supersedes

"any professional duty to keep ihformation about clients confidential. All delegate agency staff
must be compliant with all applicable state laws regarding the mandatory reportmg of child
abuse, child molestation, sexual abuse, rape incest, or domestlc violence.

e Children Under 18:

o NH Law requires any person who suspects that a child under age 18 has been abused
or neglected must report that suspicion 1mmed1ate1y to DCYF. (NH RSA 169 C:29-
31). »

o If achild tells you that they have been hurt-or you are concerned that a child may be
the victim of any type of abuse or neglect, you must call the Division for Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF) Central Intake Umt at:

» In-state: (800) 894-5533, or
= QOut-of-state: (603) 271-6562 '
= The Intake unit is staffed 24 hours a day, 1ncludmg weekends and holldays
-For immediate emergencies, please call 911.
»  More Information on Reporting Child Abuse:
https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/report-concern/report-child-. -
abuse#f:~:text=NH%20Law%20requires%20any%20person, C%3A29%2D3 D).

&text=The%20Intake%20unit%20is%20staffed. 1mmed1ate%20emergenues%
: 2C%20please%20call%20911
o Adults 18 years and older:

o The Adult Protection Law requlres any person who has a'reason to believe that a
vulnerable adult has been subjected to abuse, neglect, explmtatlon or self-neglect to .
make a report immediately to the Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services (BEAS) (N H
RSA 161-F, 42-57). : '

o To make a report:
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In-state: (800) 949-0470, or

'Out-of-state: (603) 271-7014

5. Each client will voluntarily review and sign a general consent form prior to receiving
medical trea’tment or contraceptive method(s).

6. Required Family Plannmg Staff Trammgs Refer to Appendlx B Famlly Planning Trammg

Plan

II Famllv Plannlng Cllnlcal Services

Determining the need for services among female and male clients of reproductlve age by -
assessmg the reason for visit:-

o Reason for visit is related to preventing or ach1ev1ng pregnancy:
Contraceptive services

Pregnancy testing and counseling

Achieving pregnancy

Basic infertility services

Preconception health

Sexually transmitted infection services

¢ Initial reason for visit is not related.to preventing or achieving pregnancy (acute care, chronic
~ care management, preventive serv1ces) but assessment identifies the need for services to prevent
or achieve pregnancy ;
e Assess the need for related preventive sérvices such as breast and cerv1cal cancer screenmg

The delivery of preconception, STI,‘and related preventive health _ser'_vices should not be a
barrier to a client receiving services related to preventing or achieving pregnancy.

- Comprehensive Contraceptive Services (Providing Quality Family Planning Services —-
'Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 7 - 13): -
‘The followmg steps should help the client adopt, change, or maintain contraceptlve use:.
1. Ensure privacy and conﬁdentlallty :
2. Obtain clinical and social information including:
/ a) Medical history
For females, and other clients who have a uterus:

Menstrual history

" Gynecologic and obstetric history

Contraceptive use mcludmg condom use

Allergies

Recent intercourse ,

Recent delivery, miscarriage; or abortion

Any relevant infectious or chronic health conditions

.Other characteristics and exposures that might affect medical crlterla for

contraceptive method
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For males, and other clients who have a penis:

Use of condoms

Known allergy to condoms

Partner contraception

‘Recent intercourse

For clients in heterosexual partnersh1ps whether partner is currently pregnant
or has recently had a child, miscarriage, or abortion :

The presence of any infectious or chronic health condition

The taking-of a medical history should not be a barrier to obtaining condoms.

b) Pregnancy intention or reproductrve life plan. Ask questions such as:

Do.you want to become a parent someday?

Do you have any children now?

Do you want to have (more) children?

How many (more) children would you like to have and when?

c) Contraceptive experiences and preferences
d) Sexual health assessment including:

Sexual practices: types of sexual activity the client engages in.
History of exchanging sex for drugs, shelter money, etc for client or
partner(s)
- Pregnancy prevention: current, past and future contracept1on options
Partners: number, gender, concurrency of the client’s sex partners
.Protection from STIs: condom use, monogamy, and abstinence
Past STI history in client & partner (to the extent the client is aware)
History. of needle use (drugs steroids etc.) by client or partner(s)

3. Work with the client mteractwely to select the most suitable contraceptive method (Appendlx
A). Usea patlent-centered decision-making approach in which the provider rev1ews
med1cally appropriate methods in the context of the client’s pr10r1t1es

a) Ensure that the client understands;

Method effectiveness
Correct use of the method
Non-contraceptive benefits

. Side effects

Protection from STIs, mcludmg HIV

b) Assist client to cons1der potential barriers that might influence the likelihood of
correct and consistent use of the method under consideration mcludmg

Social-behavioral factors _
Intimate partner violence and sexual violence
Mental health and substance use behaviors
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A

4. Conduct a physical assessment related to contraceptive use, when warranted as per U.S.
Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016, Appendix C.
(https://www.cde.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/rt/1r6504al_appendix.htm#T-4-C.1. down).

5. Provide the contraception method along with instructions about correct and consistent use,
help the client develop a plan for using the selected method and for follow-up, and confirm -
client understandmg Document the cllent s understandmg of their chosen contraceptlve
method by using a: -

a) Checkbox, Written statement, or Method-specific consent form;
b) Teach-back method to confirm client’s understandmo about risks and benefits,
method use, and follow-up.

6. Provide counseling for returning clients: ask if the client has any concerns with the’
contraception method and assess its use. Assess any changes in the client’s medical history
that might affect safe use of the contraceptlve method: ~

7. Counseling adolescent clients should include a discussion on:
a) Sexual coercion: how to resist attempts to coerce minors into engagmg in sexual

actlvmes .

b) Family involvement: encourage and promote communication between the adolescent
and their parent(s) or gualdlan(s) about sexual and reproductive health

c) Abstinence: counseling that abstinence is an option and is the most effectlve way to
prevent pregnancy and STIs

A. Pregnancy Testmg and Counseling (Providing Qualltv Family Planmng Services —

Recommendatlons of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 13- 16):

The visit should include a dlscussmn about reproductlve life plan and a medical history.
The test results should be presented to the client, followed by a discussion of options and
approprlate referrals.. '

1: Posmve Pregnancy Test: include an estlmatlon of gestational age so that approprlate
counseling can be provided..
a. Offer pregnant clients the opportunity to be provided mformatlon and counseling
regarding each of the following options:
e Prenatal care and delivery -
. o Infant care, foster care, or adoption; and
e Abortion

b. If requested, provide options counseling which consists of information and
counseling in a neutral manner with medically accurate information and nondirective
- counseling on each of the pregnancy options, and, referral upon request, except with
respect to any option(s) about which the pregnant client indicates they do not wish to
receive such information and counseling. For clients who are considering or choose to
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continue the pfegnancy, initial prenatal counseling should be provided in accordance
with recommendations of professional medical organizations, such as ACOG.

2. Negative Pregnancy Test and Not Seeking Pregnancy: evaluate reason for negative. test.
Offer same day contraceptive sérvices (including emergency contraception) and discuss the
value of making a reproductive life plan. -

3. Negative Pregnaney Test and Seeking Pregnaricy: counsel about how to maximize fertility.
- a) If appropriate, offer Basic Infertility Services (Level I) on-site or through referral. Key
educatlon points include:

Peak days and signs of fertility.

' Penile-vaginal intercourse soon after menstrual penod ends can increase the
~ likelihood of becoming pregnant.

Methods or devices that determine or predict ovulation:

Fertility rates are lower among clients with BMI outside of the normal range
and those who consume high levels of caffeine. -

Smoking, consuming alcohol, using recreational drugs, and using most
commercially available vaginal lubricants might reduce fertility.

4. Preconception Health Services (Providing Quality Family Planning Services —

‘Recommendations of CDC and US OPA. 2014:

16- 17):

- Preconception health services should be offered to clients of reproductive age who are not
pregnant but are at risk of becoming pregnant and to clients who are at risk for
impregnating their partner. Services should be administered in accordance with CDC’s

-recommendations to improve preconception health and health care.
1." For Clients at risk of becoming pregnant:

‘ Counsel on the need to take a daily supplement containing folic acid

Discussion of reproductive life plan

Sexual health assessment screening including screening for sexually transmitted

infections as indicated. :

Other screening services that include:

a)
b)

c)
d)

. Obtain medical history

o Many chronic medical conditions such-as dlabetes hypertenswn

_psychiatric illness, and thyroid disease have implications for pregnancy -
outcomes and should be optimally managed before pregnancy.

o All prescription and nonprescription medications should be reviewed
during pre-pregnancy counseling and teratogenis should be avoided.

Screen for intimate partner violence

Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use

Screen for immunization status

. Screen for depression when staff are in place to ensure an accurate diagnosis.

At a minimum, provide referral to behavioral health services for those who -
have a positive screen

Screen for obesity by obtaining helght weight, & Body Mass'Index (BMI)
Screen for hypertension by obtaining Blood Pressure (BP).
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.. Screen for type 2 drabetes in asymptomatic adults with sustained BP > 135/80
mmHg (refer to PCP). -
» Clients who present for pre-pregnancy counseling should be offered screemng
for the same genetic cofiditions as recommended for pregnant clients. -
e Patients with potential exposure to certain infectious diseases, such as the Zika
* virus, should be counseled regarding travel restrictions and approprrate
waltmg tlme before attempting pregnancy

2. For Clients at risk of impregnating a partner:
a) Discussion of reproductive life plan.
.b) Sexual health assessment screening.
c¢) Other screening services that include:
o Obtain medical history
e Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use- '
e Screen for immunization status :
e Screen for depression when staff-a551sted depression supports are in place to
ensure accurate diagnosis, effective treatment, and follow-up
Screen for obesity by obtaining height, weight, & BMI
e Screen for hypertension by obtaining BP '
e Screen for type 2 diabetes in asymptomatlc adults w1th sustarned BP > 135/80
mmHg
¢ Patients with potential exposure to certain 1nfect10us diseases, such as the Zika
- virus, should be counseled regarding travel restrictions and approprrate
waiting time before attempting pregnancy. »

D. Sexuali Transmitted Infection Services (Providing Quali Family Plannin Ser'vi'ceS-

Recommendatlons of CDC and US OPA, 2014 pp 17- 20)

Provide STI services in accordance with CDC’s STI treatment and HIV testing gurdelmes

1. Assess client:
a) Discuss client’s reproductrve lrfe plan
b) Obtain medical history
- ¢) Obtain sexual health assessment
d) Check immunization status
2. Screen client for STIs /
a. For clients who are able to become pregnant test clients < 25 years of age and
those high-risk clients >25 years of age yearly for chlamydia and gonorrhea
b. Screen clients for HIV/AIDS in accordance with CDC HIV testing guidelines
which include routinely screening all clients aged 13-64 years for HIV infection at
" least one time. Those with certain risk factors for HIV should be re-screened at
least annually or per CDC Guidelines '
‘ (https://www.cdc.gov/hiv/testing/index.html).
- _ ~¢. Provide additional STI testing as indicated and per the CDC Guidelines
' (https://www.cdc.gov/std/treatment-guidelines/default.htm)
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i. Syphilis
v : 1. Populations at.risk include MSM, commercial sex workers,
- persons who exchange sex for drugs, those in adult correctional
facilities and those living in communities with high prevalence of
. syphilis.

'2. Pregnant clients should be screened for syphilis at the time of their |
positive pregnancy test if there mlght be delays in obtaining
prenatal care.

ii. Hepatitis C
iii. CDC recommends one-time testing for hepatitis C (HCV) for persons born -
during 1945-1965, as well as persons at high risk.
3. Treat client and client’s partner(s) through expedited partner therapy (EPT)
© (https://www.cdc.pov/std/ept/default. htm), if positive for STIs in a timely fashion to

prevent complications, re-infection, and further spread in accordance with CDC’s STI

Treatment Guidelines. Re-test as indicated: Follow NH Bureau of Infectious Disease

Control reporting regulations (hitps://www.dhhs.nh.gov. /rcpor_t-conceln/mf_cctlous-

. disease-reporting-and-forms). ‘
a. EPT is legal in New Hampshire under NH Law RSA 141-C:15-A
(https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/sites/g/files/ehbemt476/files/documents2/ept-

healthcare.pdf) .
4. Provide STI/HIV risk reduction counseling.

IIL. Guidelines for Related Prevehti\re Health Services (Providing Quality Farnily'
- Planning Servivces — Recommendations of CDC and US OPA., 2014: p. 20)_.‘

A. For clients without a PCP, the following screening services should be provided on-site or by
referral in accordance with federal and professnonal medical recommendations:
e Medical History
Cervical Cytology and HPV vaccine -
Clinical Breast Examination or discussion
‘Mammography : :
Genital Examination for adolescent males to assess normal growth and development and
other common genital findings.

IV. Shmma'r uality Famil Plannm Services Recommendatlons of -
- CDC and US OPA 2014: pp 22- 23): '

A Checkhst of famlly plannmg and related preventive health services for women: Appendlx C

B. Checkllst of famlly planmng and related preventive health services for men: AppendixD -

V. Guidelines for Oth‘er Medical Services

A. Postpartum Services
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Provide postpartum services in accordance with federal and professional medical recommendations.
In addition, provide comprehenswe contracept1on services as described above to meet family -
planning guidelines. :

B. Permanent Contraceptlon Seerces ‘

Public Health Services Guidelines on Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Family Planning-
Projects (42 CFR Part 50, Subpart B, 10-1-00 Edition) (https://www ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-
idx?S1D={93¢09d3dad79124016304b202ac9860& mc=true&node= pt42.1. SO&mn divS#sp42.1.50. b
) must be followed if permanent contraception services are offered.

C. Minor Gynecological Problems

Diagnosis-and treatment are provided according to each agency’s medical guidelines.

D. Genetic Screening

Initial genetic screening and referral for genetic counseling is provided to clients at risk for
transrhission of genetic abnormalities. Initial screening includes: family history of client and partner.

VI Referrals

Provide for coordination and use of referrals and linkages with primary healthcare providers, other
‘providers of healthcare services, local health and welfare departments, hospltals voluntary agenc1es
and health services projects.supported by other federal programs, who are in close physical
proximity to the Title X site, when feasible, in order to promote access to services and prov1de a
seamless continuum of care.

- Agencies must establish formal arrangements with a referral agency for the provision of services
required by Title X that are not available on site. Agencies must have written policies/procedures for .
follow-up on referrals made as a result of abnormal physical exam or laboratory test findings. These
policies must be sensitive to cllent s concerns for conﬁdentlallty and privacy.

If services are determined to be necessary, but beyond the scope of Title X or the state program -

clinical guidelines, agencies are responsible to provide pertinent client information to the referral -
“provider (with the client’s consent) and to counsel the client on their responsibility to follow up w1th '

the referral and on the importance of the referral. ~

‘When making referrals for services that are not required under Title X or by the state program

clinical guidelines, agencies must make efforts to assist the client in 1dent1fymg payment sources, but
agencies are not responsible for payment for these services. : :

VII. Emergencies

All agencies must have written protocols for the management of on-site medical emergenoies.
Protocols must also be in place for emergencies requiring transport, after-hours management of
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contraceptive emergencies and clinic emergenmes All staff must be familiar w1th emergency
protocols
VIIIL Resources
Contraception:

e US Medical Ellglblllty for Contraceptive Use, 2016
https://www.cdc. 0ov/mmwr/volumes/65/rr/l 16503al.htm?s_cid=rr6503al w
» Update to U.S. Medical Eligibility Criteria for Contraceptive Use. 2016: Updated
Recommendations for the Use of Contraception Among Women at High Risk for
HIV Infection | MMWR (cdc.gov).
»  Available as a mobile app:
‘ https://www.cdc. Oov/lemoductlvehealth/conuaccpt:on/conu aception-app. html
e - U.S. Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016.
httos /www.cde.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/rr/tr6504al .htm
» » Update to U.S. Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use: Self-
Administration of Subcutaneous Depot Medroxyprogesterone Acetate [ MMWR
(cde.gov) :
»  Available as a mobile app:
"~ https://'www.cdc. oov/leproductlvehealth/contraceptlon/corm aception-app.html

& Beds1der Providers: hittps:/providers.bedsider.org/

- o “Emergency Contraception,” ACOG Practice Bulletm No 152, September, 2015. (Reaffirmed
2022).https://www.acog.org/Clinical-Guidance- and-Publications/Practice-Bulletins/Committee-
on-Practice-Bulletins-Gynecology/Emergency-Contraception '

e Emergency Contraception FAQs (ACOG) https://www.acog.org/womens-
health/fags/emergency-contraception '

e “Long-Acting Reversible Contraception: Implants and Intrauterine Devices,” ACOG Practice
Bulletin Number 186, November 2017 (Reaffirmed 2021). https://www.acog.otg/Clinical-
Guidance—and-Pub-licétions/Practice-Bulletjns/Comm’ittee-on-Practice-Bulletins-

- Gynecology/Lon g‘-Actina-ﬁReversible—Contraceotion-lmolants-and-Intrauterine-DeVices.

e Long-Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC) Quick Coding Guide (ACOG)

https://www.acog.org/practice-management/coding

e Contraceptive Technology, Hatcher, et al. 21% Revised Edition.
http://www.contraceptivetechnology.org/the-book/

" o Managing Contraceptive Pill Patients, Richard P. Dickey. 17" Edition.

s Condom Effectiveness (CDC) htto://wWw.cdc.gov/condomeffectiveness/index.html

. _Reproducﬁve Health National Training Center (RHNTC): https://rhntc.org/
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o Contraceptive Counseling and Education eLearnmg
hittps://rhntc. orL/resources/contraceptlve counseling-and-education- elearmno

o Efficient Questrons for Client-Centered Contraceptive Counseling Palm Card:
https://rhntc.org/resouices/efficient-questions- cllent-ccntcred contraceptive- counsclmm .

_ palm-card

o Birth Control Methods Options Chart: httbs://rhn'tc.org/resources/birth-control—meth_ods- |
options-chart '

Preventatlve Care
o US Preventive Servrces Task Force (USPSTF) http: //www usprcventlveservrcestasktorce org

o U.S. Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF), Guide to Clinical Preventive Services,
2014. http://www.ahrq. Oov/professronals/clrnrclans movrderslourdehnes—
recommendations/guide/index.htim] :

e Cervical Cancer Screening Guidelines (Updated April 2021)
https://www.acog. org/clinical/clinical- gurdance/mactrce—ad\1qory/artrc1es/2021/04/updated-

cerv1cal—cancer-screenmg guidelines

o American Society for Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP) http://www.ascep.org

o 2019 ASCCP Risk-Based Management Consensus Guidelines for Abnormal Cervical
Cancer Screening Tests and Cancer Precursors: https:/www.acog. org/clinical/clinical-
ouidance/practice-advisory/articles/2020/10/updated- guldclmcs-ior-managcmcnt-of—
cervrcal cancer—screenms,-abnomlahtres

o Management of Abnormal Vaginal Cytology and HPV Tests (February 2020)
https: //www.ascep.org/pearl

0 Mobile app: Abnormal pap management: https://www.asc-co.org/mobil_e-app'

e “Breast Cancer Risk Assessment and Screening in Average-Risk Women,” ACOG Practice
Bulletin Number 179, July 2017 (Reaffirmed 2021). https://www.acog.org/Clinical-Guidance-
K ~ and-Publications/Practice-Bulletins/Committee-on-Practice-Bulletins-Gynecology/Breast- - °
Cancer-Risk-Assessment-and-Screening-in-Average-Risk-Women

.Adolescent Health ' ' :
e American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), Bright Futures hitps:/www. aap. org/en/mactlce-
managcmcnt/br ight-futures

e American Medical Assocratlon (AMA) Guidelines for Adolescent Preventrve Services (GAPS)
" http://www.uptodate.com/contents/guidelines-for-adolescent-preventive-services

¢ North American Society of Pediatric and Adolescent Gynecology hftp://www.naspag.org/ '

e American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP)
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o Policy Statement: “Contraception for Adolescents,” October, 2014 (reaffirmed August
1 2021). httn://nediatrics.aappublications.org/content/earlv/ZO14/09/24/peds.20.14—2299'

e American Academy of Pediatrics, Policy Statement Options Counseling for the Pregnant
" Adolescent Patient. Pediatrics, September 2017; 140:3.
https://publications.aap.org/pediatrics/article/ 140/3/020172274/38291/Opt10ns Counselmg for- -
the-Pregnant-Adolescent?searchresult=1 -

e Mandated Reporting (Reproductive Health National Training Center)
https://www.fpntc.org/resources/mandatory-child-abuse-reporting-state-summatries/new-
hampshir ‘ S -

e Know & Tell, Informatlon and trainings on child abuse and neglect, 1nclud1ng NH mandated
reporting requlrements https://knowandtell.org/

Sexually Trgnsmltted Diseases
e STI/HIV Resources for HealthCare Providers (NH DHHS): https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/programs-

services/disease-prevention/infectious-disease- control/sexually-transmitted-infections-
| #:~text= In%20\IH%7C%2Ohealthcare%20p10w1dus%?()ean Fxpedlted%2OPa1mer%7OTherap
: %2C%2001%20EPT

s STI/STD Treatment and Screening Guidelines (CDC): httb'//www cde.gov/std/treatment/

o ,Recommendatlons for Providing Quality STD Clinical Serv1ces (STD QCS) (CDC):
https://www.cdc.gov/std/qes/default.htm - _

o Auvailable as a mobile app: https://V\W\V.edc.Qov/ntobile/rnobileann.html

. Expedited Partner Therapy (CDC): httDS'//www cdc. oov/std/ept/defanlt htm -

e HIV/AIDS Info for Health Professnonals (National Institutes of Health): https /loat. mh Uov/lnv- _
resoureeb/health-profess1onals ~ ,

e Sexually Transmltted Infections Services. eLearmng (RHNTC)
https://rhntc.org L/resouxees/sexuallv transmitted-infections-services- elearnmg

e National STD Curriculum; https /iwww.std.uw.edu/ ,
e National Network of STD Clinical Prevention Training Centers: hitps://nnpte.org/

Pregnancy testing and counseling/Early pregnancy management
e American Academy of Pediatrics, Policy Statement, Options Counselmg for the Pregnant

Adolescent Patient. Pediatrics, September 2017; 140:3.
https:/publications.aap.org/pediatrics/article/140/3/¢201 72274/38291/()ptlons (‘ounselmg for-the-
Pregnant-Adolescent?searchresuli=1

o Reproductive National Training Center (RHNTC): https:/rhntc.org/



DocuSign Envelope ID: B3CAD929-7A49-4095-A55D-E49229EDOA3D,

Attachment 2, NH FPP Clinical Services Guidelines -
Amendment #2

o Pregnancy Testmg and Counselmg eLearning: https: I hntc org/rcsourocq/prconancv-thtlng--
and- counc;chno—cleammq

o Adoptlon as an Option in Family Planning Settings Webinar;
https://rhntc.org/resources/adoption-option-family-planning-settings-webinar

Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 8th Edition. AAP Committee on Fetus and Newborn and ACOG
Committee on Obstetric Practice. Edited by Sarah J. Kilpatrick, Lu-Ann Papile and George A.

‘Macones. Book | Published in 2017. ISBN (paper): 978-1-61002-087-9:

https://ebooks.aapmiblications.or;z/cohtent/ cuidelines-for-perinatal-care-8th-edition

Early pregnancy loss. ACOG Practice Bulletin No. 200. American College of Obstetricians and
Gynecologists. Obstet Gynecol 2018: 132:¢197-207. https:/www.acog.org/Clinical-Guidance-and-
Publications/Practice-Bulletins/Committee-on-Practice-Bulletins-Gynecologv/Early-Pregnancy-Loss

Fertility/Infertility Counseling and Basic Workup
* Reproductive National Training Center (RHNTC): https://rhntc. OI‘Q/

o Support for Achieving a Health Pregnancy eLearning: hitps://rhntc.org/resources/support-
achieving-healthy-pregnancy-elearning

o Basic Infertility Protocol Job Aid: https://rhnte. om/rcsourceq/baslc mfcmlltV protocol-
job-aid

e American Society for Reproductive Medicine (ASRM) http://www. astm.org

o Practice Committee Documents: httns //www.asrm.or O/news-and-pubhcatlons/practlce-

~ committee-documerits/ '

o Optimizing natural fertlllty a committee opinion. Fertil Steril, 2022; 117, 53-63.
hitps://www.asrm.org/alobalassets/astm/asrm-content/news-and-publications/practice-
guidelines/for-non-members/optimizing_natural fertility.pdf

o https://www.asrm.org/globalassets/asrm/astm-content/news-and- publications/practice-
vuldclmw/for -non- mcmbms/dxaonostlc evaluation. of the_infertile female.pdf

Preconceptlon VlSlt

‘. Recommendations to Improve Preconception Health and Health Care—Unites States 2006

,((,DC) https://www.cde.gov/mmwr/PDE/rt/tr5506.pdf

e ACOG Committee Opinion No. 762. America College of Obstetr1c1ans and Gynecologlsts
Obstet Gynecol 2019;133:¢78-89. https://www.acog. orsz/chmcal/chmcal guidance/committee-
opinion/articles/2019/01/prepregnancy-counseling

. Reproductlve Health National Training Center (RHNTC) Preconceptlon Counselmg Checkllst
- https //rhntc.org/resources/preconception- counselmfz-checkhqt

Health Equity

e Structures & Self: Advancing Equity and Justlce in SRH (Innovating Education in Reproductive
Health): https:/www. 1nnovatm0-educat10n org/2019/10/structures-self-advancing-equity-and-

{ustice-in- mh/
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* Patlent Experience Improvement Toolklt (RHNTC): https: //rhnte.org/resources/patient-
‘experience- 1mprovement toolkit :

Other
e American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOG) Practlce Bulletins and Committee
Opinions are available on-line to ACOG members only, at http://www.acog.org
o ACOG Clinical Subscription includes clinical guldance including full access'to ACOG’s:
Practice Bulletins and the bi-monthly monograph series, Clinical Updates for Women’ s
Health. https://www.acog.org/store/products/clinical-resources/acog-clinical-
subscription?utm_source=vanity&utin_medium=web&utm_campaign=subscribe

e American Cancer Society http://www.cancer.org/

e Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality http://www.ahrq.gov/clinic/cpgsix.htm

° C.enters for Disease Control & Prevention A to Z Index: http;//\vww cdc.gov/az/b.hitml

o Women’s Health Issues, published blmonthly by the J acobs Institute of Women’s Health
- _http://www.whijournal.com/ .

e . American Medical Association, Information Center https://www.ama-assn.org/

e US DHHS, Health Resources Services Administration (HRSA) https://www.hrsa.gov/ -

o ‘National Guidelines Clearinghouse (NGCH) http://www.guideline.gov |

e NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force:
- https://iwww. nhhumantrafﬁcl<in2tas]dbrcc.com

~ TitleX Resources
o Office of Populatlon Affalrs https://opa.hhs.gov

o Title X Statutes, Regulatlons and Legislative Mandates hitps: //opa hhs. frov/ grant-
moqx ams/title-x- serv1ce ;_rants/tltle x-statutes-regulations-and- leuslatlve—mandates

o . Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Family Planning Projects (42 CFR Part 50,
Subpart B,.10-1-00 Edition): hitps://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/iext- -
1dx?SID=193c09d3dad79124016304b202ac9860&mc=true&node=pt42.1.50&rgn=div5#sps
2.1.50.b ’ | o

e Reproductive Health National Training Center (RHNTC): https://rhntc.org/

e Clinical Training Center for Sexual and Reproductive Health (CTCSRH): Ahttps://ctcsr'h.or,q/

Subscribe to the Family Planning Post, a quarterly newsletter for the NH FPP network that

includes family planning information, education, and professional development and trammg

opportumtles Emall Brittany.A. Foleyga)dhhs nh. gov to subscrlbe
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_ Agpendlx A
"The Typical Effectiveness of Food and Dru Admmlstratlon-Approved Contraceptlve Methods

Blrth Control
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Source:_ https://1'hntc.or,fz/sites/default/_ﬁ'lcs/resourc_es/rhntc birth. contrél chart 3-4-2022.pdf
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Appendix B
Staff should complete one of the two following training plans, as applicable:
I. Annual Staff Training Plan All staff that are niot new to the Title X NH FPP must complete the training list on an annual basis,

“within the State Fiscal Year (July 13— June 30™). New staff are not required to follow this training plan until after their first year of
emlo nent when the have comletedtheNew Sta T mm and Title X Orientation Plan. _

Option 1 (recommended) Annual NH FPP Title X Live Webinar The date of the webinar

will be announced via email each year, and will cover several Title X required training . .
' toplcs as well as other NH FPP program-related items. All Title X Staff
nnual-Title X Training administrative,

- Ogtlon 2: Title X Orientation Requirements far Title X Funded Family Planning Projects clinical, etc.
{RHNTC Recorded Webinar) https://rhntc.org/resources/title-x-orientation-program-
-1 requirements-title-x-funded-family-planning-projects
; Title X Staff must complete one of the training options below:
i7| Ontion 1: Complete one of the options from the list below:
" e Cultural Competency in Family Planning Care eLearnlnq, Time: 1 S hours;
. continuing education available
o Language Access Trainings (must complete both):

1.) Language Access 101: Creating Inclusive Clinics Webma Time: 30 All Title X Staff
minutes; contmumg education available | administrative,
2.) Working Effectively with Medical Interpreters elearning; Time: 30 clinical, etc.

- minutes; continuing education available
o leadership for a Diverse and Inclusive Family Planning Organ/zatlon, Time: 1 hour
¢ Think Cultural: Culturally Competent Nursing Care Program; continuing educatlon
-available
o Structures and Self: Advancing Equity and Justice in SRH elearning
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e Trouma Informed Care in the Family Planning Setting Webinar; Time: 1.5 hours
e Complete any webinar in the Putring the OFP into Practice eLearning Series

| Option 2: Attend a related tralnmg opportunity shared or hosted by NH FPP staff during

the year.

Option 3: Alternate trainings related to client-centered services and Health Equtty may
be used with pre-approval from NH FPP staff. -

Annual 340b Sexual Health

NH DHHS hosts an annual webinar event that covers a variety of sexual health topics,
including NH STD surveillance updates. A save the date will be shared once it is available.,

| At leaSt 2 clinical Title X staff must attend the live webinar. All other clinical staff must
| watch the webinar recording within 30 days of it being made available. A sheet of staff,
.| signatures will be collected 30 days after the recording is made available.

All Clinical Title X
Staff

NH Mandatory Reporting

State Fiscal Year 2024 _
Training on New Hampshire mandatory reporting is required of all Title X staff once during
a two-year project period.

Mandatory reporting trainings are available live and on-demand thrdugh Know & Tell.To
request a live training, or to view pre-recorded training options available, visit:

| https://knowandtell.or

Alternate training options on mandatory reporting may be used, but must be New
Hampshire-specific.

.| State Fiscal Year 2025

Complete each of the following:

1.) Review the following: Mandatory Child Abuse Reporting State Summary, New
Hampshire ’

2.) Watch the following: Trauma-Informed Mandatory Child Abuse Reporting in a Family
Planning Setting Video' :

= ‘5 Additional Resources (optional):
| identifving and Responding to Human Trafficking in Title X Settmas elearning Course
|| Ihe Basics of Human Trafficking, guide

All Title X Staff
administrative,
clinical, etc.
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New Staff Training and Title X Orientation Plan

All staff new to Title X and the NH FPP must complete the training list as soon as possible, or at least by the deadline outlined in the training-plan
below. Online training

optlons are prov1ded so new staff can complete as their schedule allows.

N‘I;FPIT T?“"‘"‘g Training Details Staff Required Timeline
equireiment
ARt w b Title X Orlentatmn I\equu ements for I ltle A Funded f‘(!ﬂllh« P/anmna Pro]ectv Within the
Title X Orientation - elearning Time: 45-90 minutes Alclifr?tlf X Staff first
eéLearning - ' : - RSt 30 days of
S 2, *In order to receive a certificate of completion, participants must be logged in clinical, etc.
3 : O . : 3 i ; employment
.| prior to starting the course and complete the course evaluation upon completion :
| Mandatory reporting trainings are available live and on-demand through Know &
T e S 1 Tell. To request a live training, or to view pre-recorded training options available, ; ' Within the
o T i : All Title X Staff
NH Mandatory- . .7 | visit: hm)s.//l\nowandtcll.ore/ . . first
RIS administrative,
Reporting- ~ . ‘ clinical etc 60 days of
S AT s BT *Alternate training opttons on mandatory reportmg may be used but must be New e employment
: | Hampshire-specific.
| Cultural Competency in Familv Planning Care eLearning . Within the
‘Cultural Competenc Time: 1.5 hours / Contmumg Education: 1.5 contact hours offered (free) All Title X Staff first -
in Famlly Plannin | administrative, 90 (;a Sl
Care eLearnmg "2 #in ovder to receive a certtf tate of completion or CEs, participants must be logged clinical, etc. 2L (aps oF.
s . employment
: | in prior to starting the coiirse and complete the course evaluation upon completion ,
":| NH DHHS hosts an annual webinar event that covers a variety of sexual health
2| topics, including NH STD survelllance updates. A save the date will be shared once
%] it is available.
_ . L Within the
. Annual 340b Sexual | At least 2 clinical Title X staff must attend the live webinar. All other clmzcal staff 'ﬁil]f)l(msltc:t!f _first year of
must watch the webinar recording within 30 days of it being made available. For . employment -
| new clinical staff onboarding after this timeframe, it is strongly encouraged that
| they watch the most recent webinar recording as part of their training plan,
| otherwise they must plan on watching the next session available. "
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Appendix C
TABLE 2. Checklist of famlly planning & and feldted preventwe health sérvices ferwamen
Famﬂy planning seryices
mm\dde saw!ces in acmrdance with &he a;:xpmpﬂate ctmka! rmmmmdzﬁan} )
e Contraceptive Pragnancy testing ard " Preconception health . - Related preventive
Scraening components, © - sérvices” couriseling Eastﬁlnfemttty sarvicas sérvjees STD services? ‘health services’
History . o e .
- Reproguétive 186 plan® Screen o S:mam Scrsen Sersen Serden
“tidical histonger Screen : : Scigen ) Scréen | “Scrégn
Cijtrent prégrancy status’ Screen ’ . ) o
Sénaf health assessmants®® Screen Scroen Serean, . . Screen
intzma te pariner vighence 339 Scregn
Aicotiol and ather drg useﬁ*‘ R ' Sérean
“Totiacca useSS Sereen feombined : Serean
harnonal methots
for clients aged £35 -
.  years) )
Immunizationst. - . ‘ Screan . . Scraen for HAV &
1 , : : : . Hpyss
Deprossion®d . . . Boraen
folicaca®d . . ) Scroen
" Physical examamination T < TF e .
Helght, wcight arid BAISE . Sersen thormionat . Seréan USeredn
‘methodsytt : i T -
Sload pms_s_uze%‘i . Screen {combined . . “Scroen
L : hormonaimethods) - ) : s :
e L TR ' i Screenfs-
Strean findtiating . Screan (if clibically Scréen .
dxsphr.}gm or IUB} Indicatind) i
- Signs of androgen excass™ ) ST Seraen
“Thyraid e Serzen ;
Labnmmry testlng -
Pregriancy test ¥ - Serdafy (it cl‘smcally Serédn
indicatedy - * . .
Chiamydis® ¥ . Sireentt : . ScreEn®®
anénj}ea@rt : Scraan’t . : ' Scrond®
- Syphilish$ | o : Screan’¥
‘HM’A[DS“ '
: L -Serenr’d e )
Cénvicat Eymbgy? ) . . . s “Sivents
?,‘iammogmphy” i i . i Sﬁeen”"

Abbreufaﬂcns- E!M!‘ body. mass mde\r HW hepam' B vigusy HIWM)S = human mmunodeﬁ»czeﬂcy v:msfaxquized ;mmumdeﬁmncy syndmme HPV = human papilomavirus;”

FTH ble p:esunts h:ghhgms from CDCS racomsmind; nson ccvntmcepﬁ’ve use. Howevey, pmuﬁess shwld consuh appropriate gmdtzlmgs when msaimg mdx» idual patients to obtaln
siled information about’ spectf‘;c madicalconditionsand charar:mnslm {Sgurce: CDE LS medical piigsm nty ciiterfa fof contraceptiva use 2010 MMWR ?010,59((\20. R4, .
ot lth s are listed ,epamtely h&m!oh@hlfgbt memm;mmnce inthe u:ax,text ofall Iypes c«ffamlty piannsng Viits The servicés listedin tmsccéumn

el 2
can B trsad ms Medlcat Eltg!bﬂ;tytmnm 2} amang obase waman {Sauxce w‘:DC Hs. m@dt@ ei”g I <!ity el 10 m
we}ght am catmlaung BM! at haseling mighf be helpful t¢ mofiltoring any cha ngas 31 Conss kng vmmen who, mrgh:be mncamed aboutwe;ght chzmqe parehied to be asmcxamd

58 !ndraws that s maenmg Lssuggevsted only g lhcsn pérsuns at hlghest 1k o £ i suly
§% pMostwormien Sohot reduing atkditonia) STD screning 2t thie timi 6 D Insertion If thisy havéalrdy be
quidelinas, kﬂanm, GA:US Departmgnt of Health 2nd Hufman Sozm;ces, 0201 abieat hﬂp/fwm mc gm'fs&imnamam CDC Sexuaify transmted disases traatmmt gmde{‘ e,
~ 2010; NMMWR 20 10,5980, RR-12]): 1f 2 wotan hasagt beert scrgned acmrding o gurdeime'ﬁ reaninia can be parfornied at the tme of IUD insertion and Insertion should viot’ bede!ayed
fome icitis or current, chismydial infacsion or gendizhed shobld not widergo 1D nsection (LS. Madical E!g;bélﬁy Eittaria 4) womnarwhe have 3 Yery high individual -
0. : ) Eurrantly Jafkicied psxmaz} g@naraﬂy shkild not unederso 10D insy g iifiry Critaiia %) {Sobice: 00 USH madical ra%rgmumy
. chiterta for cunbm@twe S8 2070, MASWR MIO;SQ[N& RRA}] farthesa: woman, iUD irisortion shtiidbe déla}eaﬁ iintif appmpnats testing and tregtmem fraaits
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Appendix D .
TABLE 3. Chacklist of family planningand refated preventive health services formen
) Family planning services

) {provide services in accordance with the appropriate clinical recommendation) .
Scmehing cainponents and source 5 : o ) Basic| mftm!rty Preconaep on ‘Related pmg&ﬁtii}é
of recommendation . Contraceptive services™ services health sarvlces* STD services® “health services:
History 5 . ] . -

Reproductive e plan® . Screen Sereen Screery Screen

Medical history¥ Screen : Screen Screen, Screen

Sexual health assessmisnt™ ) - Sereen Sereen Sereery Sereer:

Alcohol &cither drug use WtF © Sereen

Tobacce useh*® - . Soreen . L )
* {rarmunizations? : Serzere - Sereenfor HPVE HBYS
Depress scmq r Screen
Physical examination " . R

Height, weight;and BM!’ Ad Sereen’

Biood pressurey it Serpendd ]

Genitalexpm?t - T " Screen (i clindcally .~ Screen (i chmcaliy Screen’

indicated) indicated) )

Labaratory testing ) .

Chlamydia® : Scisan®s

Gonotrhea? " : . - Screanis

Syphilisis* ) : : 'Sct'een“

HNIMDS‘ i p 5%

Scxeen§§

is

an’iﬂy or mfant health outcomes {Source; Frey K, Navauo 5, Koie!chuck M lu 1 Tne ciinical wmxant ofpn:canoeptmn cam. pne:onc
‘Obstet 5 ;ynem | 2008; !99{6 Suppt: 2}5389—93)

§ STD ervicesal px&_}mate preconceptmn hea\th but are tstad .&paratély hereto hagh xght thexr lmponance Tnthie context of 3% types of fam:ly plannmg Visit. The

** £().5, Preﬁnb\!é 1ces Task Fotee recommendation.
i Professm’ml mad" cal assox.satwn recommendatmn.
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Effectiy

I&E Materlals Review and Approval Process Policy -+ S

ub’ Sectlon(s) Famlly Planmng Program" Versmn 3. 0
:ate Uulv 1 ’?02’)J Next., ,ev1ew Date [June 30, 2024 el L e :

Approved by: HALEY JOHNSTON

II.

Authority Section 1006(d)(1), PHS Act; 42 CFR 59.6

Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to describe the processes of the Department of Health and Human
Services, Division of Public Health Services, NH Family Planning Program (NH FPP), the Title
X Grantee for ensuring sub-recipient compliance with the Title X requirement to establish a
review and approval process, by an I&E/Advisory Committee, of all informational and
educational (I&E) materials (print and electronic) developed or made available under the Title X
project prior to their distribution, to ensure that materials developed or made available under the
project are suitable for the mtended population or community to which they are to be made

_ avallable

Policy

NH FPP Title X sub_—fecibients shall provide for the review and approval of I&E materials (print
and electronic) developed or made available under the Title X project by an I&E/Advisory
Committee prior to their distribution, to assure that the materials are suitable for the population

. or community to which they are te be made available and the purposes of Title X of the Act. The

project shall not disseminate any such materials which are not approved by the I&E/Advisory
Committee (CFR 59.6 (a)). : ’ v

I11. ProCedureS

All I&E review and approval operations, including the establishment of an I&E/Advisory
Committee as described in CRF 59.6 (b), are delegated to individual sub-recipient agencies.
Oversight of these operations rests with the NH FPP who will ensure each sub-recipient's
adherence to Title X requirements ielatzng to the review and approval of I&E materials per CFR
59.6-and as outlined in this policy document.

I&E/Advisory Commlttee Requirement -

Sub-recipient agencies are required to have an I&E/Advisory Committee to review and approve
all I&E materials as set forth in.this policy. Sub-recipient agencies may create an I&E/Advisory
specific Committee to meet these requirements, or they may use an Advisory Board or other

NH FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
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committee that is already in existence for these purposes as long as 1t meets the requlrements
outlined below.

j Crif_eria for Estéblishing an I'&'E'/Advis.o'ry Committee

Each NH FPP Title X suB-recip_ient agency. is required to establish and maintain their own
- I&E/Advisory Committee. The committee shall be established using the following criteria: -

1. Size

The committee shall consist of no fewer than five members and-up to as many members
as the sub-recipient ‘determines (the size provision may be walved by the Secretary for
good cause shown).

2. Composition

The committee shall consist of individuals broadly representative of the population or

~ community for which the materials are intended (in terms of demographic factors such as
race, ethnicity, color, national origin, disability, sex, sex characteristics, sexual

- orientation, gender identity, age, marital status, income, geography, and including but not
limited to individuals who belong to underserved communities, such as Black, Latino,
and Indlgenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders and
other persons of color; members of religious minorities; lesbian, gay, bisexual,
transgender, and queer (LGBTQ+) persons; persons with disabilities; persons who live in
rural areas; and persons otherwise adversely affected by per51stent poverty or mequallty)
In house staff cannot service as commtttee members. ;

3. Functions

The I&E/Advisory Committee must review and approve all I&E materials (print and
. electronic) developed or made available under the project prior to their distribution to

ensure that the materials are suitable for the population and community for which they

are intended and to ensure their consistency with the purposes of Title X (CFR 59.6)."

In reviewing materials, the I&E/Advisory Committee shall:

a. Consider the educational, cultural, and diverse backgrounds of the md1v1duals to
whom the materials are addressed;
b. Consider the standards of the populatlon or community to be selved with respect
to such materials;
c. Review the content of the material to assure e that the information is factually
, correct, medically accurate, culturally and linguistically approprlate inclusive and
'~ trauma informed; :
d. Determine whether the material is suitable for the population or commumty for
which it is to be made available; and
e. Establish a written record of its determinations.

 NHFAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
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This I&E/Advnsory Committee must meet (v1rtually or in person) at least twice
-annually or more often as appropriate for the review and approval of all I&E
materlals Each committee meeting should result in the followmg

. the addition of new/updated I&E materials,
¢ the expiration of any old/outdated materials, as necessary
_o the re-approval of I&E materials, as appropriate

Each material being distr ibuted under the Title X project must be reviewed on an annual
basis to determine that it meets the above requirements. The annual review must result in
re-approval or expiration of each I&E material.

Responsibility of Review and Appreval

It may be necessary for the I&E/Advisory Committee to delegate responsibility for the
review of the factual, technical, and clinical accuracy of all I&E materials developed or
made available under the Title X-funded project to appropriate project staff (e.g., RN, NP,
CNM). If this function is delegated to appropriate project staff, the I&E/Advisory
Committee must still grant final approva] of each I&E material on an annual basns

- IV. Demonstratmg Compllance w1th I&E Materlals Pollcy Requ1rements

The NH FPP will collect documentation descrnbed below as requlred or as necessary in order to
monitor sub-recipient compllance with the Title X project as it relates to the review and approval
of all I&E materials. : '

1) I&E Materials Llst On an annual basis, sub-re01p1ents will be requlred to submit a

.comprehensive list of all I&E materials (print and electromc) that are currently being

~ distributed or made available to Title X clients. The list must-be completed using the I&E

Materials List. Template provided by the NH FPP, which must include all required data

elements for each material, including a date of approval for each material that is within one

year from the date the I&E materials list is due to be submitted (refer to the current Family
Planning Reporting Calendar). ‘

a. NH FPP Title X Network I&E Master List: Once I&E Materlals Lists are received
from each sub-recipient, the NH FPP will produce and provide a de-identified master
list of all I&E materials cuirently in use across the NH FPP Title X network.
Materials on this list are not approved for network-wide use. This list is to be used
only for the purposes of information-sharing and to aid sub-recipients in -
brainstorming materials or types of materials they would like to share with their own -
client population (i.e., each desired material must go through a full review and
approval process by the -sub-recipient's own I&E/Advisory Board to ensure the
desired material is appropriate for the client population that is being served by their

NH FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
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. own agency).

2.) Policies and_Procedures. Sub-recipients must have written documentation that outlines their
process for conducting material reviews. This documentation should include at a minimum:

e A process for assessing that the content of I&E materials is factually correct, medically
accurate, culturally and linguistically appropriate; iniclusive, and trauma informed, and
how it is ensured by the committee or appropriate project staff:

e How the I&E/Advisory - Committee provides oversrght and final approval for I&E
materials, if this responsibility is delegated.

e The criteria and procedures the 1&E/Advisory Commlttee members will use to ensure

~ that the materials are suitable for the population and community for which they are

intended.

" A process for reviewing materials written in languages other than English.
How review and approval records will be maintained.
A process for howold materials will be exprred - _
A process to document compliance with the membersh1p size requirement for the
I&E/Adv1sory Committee (updated lists/rosters, meeting minutes).

e A process to document that the I&E/Advisory Committee(s) is/are active (meeting

_ minutes). -

e A process for selecting individuals to serve on the I&E/Advisory Commlttee(s) to ensure

~ membership i is broadly representative of the population/community being served.

o A process for documenting that the I&E/Advisory Committee are meetmg twice a year
at a minimum (meeting minutes, review forms) -

e A process to ensure that new/updated materials are routinely added, and as necessary

' (meetmg minutes, review forms)

- I&E Materials Review and Approval Process Pollcy Agreement

On behalf of Lamprey Health CMfereby certlfy that I have read and understand this
(Agency Name)-

. I&E Materials Review and Approval Process Policy as detailed above. 1 agree to ensure all
agency staff and stibcontractors working on the Title X project understand and adhere to the

aforementioned policies and proeeduresvset forth.

Gregory white

Printed Name

. bocuSigned by: . ‘ ) ) -
(‘émgm? (Wheite - 10/27/2023

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

Signature ' ' Date

NH FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
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NH FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM
Sub-Recipient Required Trainings

This document provides a detailed list of NH Family Planning Program (NH FPP} training requirements that apply to all NH FPP Title X sub-recipient
agencies and their staff who engage with Title X clients. These.requirements' are subject to change per the NH FPP or Title X Regulations. ‘

If you have questions about the féquired trainings, please email brittany.a.foley@dhhs.nh.gov

Sub-recipient agencies must maintain staff training records, including which staff completed the required trainings and when. Evidence that '
training.requirements were completed by all project staff are to be submitted annually to the NH FPP, or upon request. :

Staff should complete one of thé two followihg training plahs, as applicable:

\ .
1. New Staff Training & Title X Orlentatlon Must be completed by new staff as soon as possrb]e, or at least in accordance with the timeline

outlined in the training plan.
2. Annual Staff Training - Staff that are not new to Title X and the NH FPP are required to complete this trammg plan onan annual basis,

within the State Fiscal Year (July 1% - June 30t).

Definitions: o
NH DHHS; New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servicés
RHNTC: Reproductlve Health National Training Center I
ltle X Staff: all staff who /nteract with Title X family planning clients, are Title X-, funded or work on the Tlt!e X project. Th/s includes front desk staff medical
ass:stqnts, contraccpt:ve counselors, social workers, medlcal providers, nurses, etc.
' . TitleX Clinicdl Staff: all clinical staff that interact with Title X family planning clients. This includes, nurses, medical assistants, physicians, nurse ;;iactitioners,

physician assistants, clinical behavioral health providers, etc.
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Annual Staff Training Plan Al staff that are not new to the Title X NH FPP must complete the training list on an annual basis, within the State Fiscal Year
(July 1%t — June 30™). New staff are not required to follow this training plan until after their first year of employment when they have completed the New Staff
) Tra/nmg and TltIeX Orlentat/on Plan.
"NH FPP Training ’
Requirement

I —— T ———— S

. il
. Staff Required |
Option 1 (recommended): Annual NH FPP Title X Live Webinar The date of the webinar will be

announced via email each year, and will cover several Title X required training topics as well as other
NH FPP program-related items. , '

i

All Title X Staff
. ' . , : . administrative,
Option 2: Title X Orientation Requirements for Title X Funded Family Planning Projects (RHNTC clinical, etc.
Recorded Webinar) https: ; resources/title-x-orientation-program-re uirements-title-x- C

funded-family-planning-projects

Title X Staff must complete one of the training options below:
Option 1: Complete one of the options from the list below:
o Cultural Competency in Family Planning Care eLearnmg, Time: 1.5 hours; contlnumg
" education available’
s Llanguage Access Trainings (must complete both)
1.) Lanquage Access 101: Creating Inclusive Clinics Webinar; Time: 30 minutes;
continuing education available

2.) Working Effectively with Medical Intergreters elearning; Time: 30 minutes;

continuing education available

eadersh:g for a Diverse and Inclusive Family Planning Organization; Time: 1 hour )

Think Cultural: Culturally Competent Nursing Care Program; continuing educatlon availa ble

Structures and Self: Advaricing Equity and Justice in SRH elearning
‘Trauma lnformed Care in the Family Planning Setting Webinar; Time: 1.5 hours
Complete any webinar in the Putting the QFP into Practice eLearning Series

Opfion 2: Attend 3 related training opportunity sHared or hosted by NH‘-FPP staff during the year.

Option 3: Alternate trammgs related to cllent-centered serwces and Health Equlty may be used
with pre approval from NH FPP staff.

All Title X Staff

- administrative,

clinical, etc.
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‘Annual ::3,,40b e
. Sexual Health
Webina”r

NH DHHS hosts an annual weblnar event that covers a variety of sexual health topics, lncludmg NH

STD.surveillance updates. A save the date will be shared once it is available.

.i+| At least 2 clinical Title X staff must attend the live webinar. All other clinical staff must watch the
" | webinar recording within 30 days of it being made available. A sheet of staff signatures will be
.| collected 30 days after the recording is made available.

All Clinical Title X
Staff

State Fiscal Year 2024

Training on New Hampshire mandatory reporting is required of all Title X staff once during a two-

| year project period.

Mandatory reporting trainings are available live and on-demand through Know & Tell. To request a

| live training, or to view pre-recorded training options available, visit: https://knowandtell.org/

| Atternate training optlons on mandatory reportlng may be used, but must be New Hampshire-
| specific.

‘Repoiting

iy

State Fiscal Year 2025
Complete each of the following:

4 1.) Review thé following: Mandatory Child Abuse Repo rtirg State Summarv, New Hampshire

2.) Watch the following: Trauma- Informed Mandatory Child Abuse Reporting in a Famllv Planmng

| Setting Video

‘| Additional Resources (optional):

| Identifying and Responding to Human Trafficking in Title X Settings, eLearning Course

The Basics of Human Trafficking, guide

All Title X Staff
administrative,
" clinical, etc.
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New Staff Trammg and Title X Orientation Plan All staff riew to Title X and the NH FPP must complete the training list as soon as possible, or at
least by the deadline outlined in the training plan below. Onlme training options are provided so new staff can complete as thelr schedule allows.

Staff Required Timelire

Tltle X Onentatlon Requ:rements for Tltle X Funded Fam:lv Plannmq Pro;ects
.| elearning Time: 45-90 minutes

All Title X Staff

Within the first

administrative, 30 days of
*In order to receive a certificate of completion, participanits must be logged in prior to clinical, etc. employment

starting the course and complete the course evaluation upon completion

Mandatory reporting trainings are available live and on-demand through Know & Tell.
To.request a live training, or to view pre-recorded trammg options avallable, visit:
https: //knowandtell org/

*Alternate tralnlng options on mandatory reportmg may be used, but must be New
Hampshlre-specrf ic.

All Title X Staff -

Within the first

administrative, 60 days of
clinical, etc. employmient

Cultural Competency in Family Planning Care el.earnmg
Time: 1.5 hours / Continuing Education: 1.5 contact hours offered (free) -

Al Title X Staff

 Within the first

. : , , _ administrative, 90 days of
*In order to receive a certificate of completion or CEs, participants must be Iogged in clinical, etc. employment
prior to starting the course and complete the course evaluation upon completion = o
NH DHHS hosts an annual webinar event that covers a variety of sexual health topics,
mcludmg NH 5TD surveillance updates. A save the date will be shared once it is
available. ;

o ' , , . All Clinical Title x | \Vithin the

At least 2 clinical Title X staff must attend the live webinar. All other chn/ca/ staff must Staff : M of
watch the webinar recording within 30 days of it being made available. For new clinical employment

staff onboarding after this timeframe, it is strongly en_cburaged that they watch the
most recent webinar recording as part of their training plan, otherwise they must plan
on watching the next session available.
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State of New Hampshire
- Department of State

CERTIFICATE.

I, D.avid M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampsbhire, do hereby certify that LAMPREY HEALTH CARE,
INC. is a New Hampshire Nonproﬁt Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on August 16, 1971. I further -
certify that all fees and documents required by the Secrefary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 66382 ’ : ' =
Certificate Number: 0006319717 '

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
thiﬁs 11th day of September A.D. 2023,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Laura Valencia, hereby certify that:
1. 1am aduly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders,.'duly called and
held on September 27, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were preeent and voting.

VOTED: That Susan Durkin, co- CEO, Clmlcal and Gregory White, co-CEO, Administration, is duly authonzed on
- behalf of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshlre and

any of |ts-agencres or departments and further is authorized to execqte any and all documents, agreements and

other instruments, and any amendments, revisrons, or madifications thereto, which may in his/herjudgment be

desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3.1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in fuII force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authonty was valid thlrty (30)
days prror to and remains valid forthlrty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that it is understood that the State. of New Hampshrre will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation.
To the extent that there are any limits on the authorlty of any listed individual to bind the corporatlon in contracts

with the State of New Hampshlre all such limitations are expressly stated herem

160&2023 a B - laura VaIenC|a Diialy sined by Laurs Velenci
' Signature of Elected Offlcer

Name: Laura Valencia
Title:  Secretary, Board of Directors

" Dated:

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD
h :

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LAMPHEA-01 CSMITH10

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

9/12/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER."

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may requnre an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rlghts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER Llcense # 1780862 .

GONTACT Lauren Stiles

HUB Int ti | New England X
|575 Ugﬁg':téﬂna ew kngland. AIC No, Ext}: | 8% nop:
Cumberland Foreside, ME 04110 AbREss: Lauren. StlleS@hublntematlonal com,
- : INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE ~_ NAICH
insurer A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company [18058
INSURED i insurer B ;: Atlantic Charter Insurance Company 44326
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. INSURER C ¢
207 South Main Street ' INSURERD :
Newmarket, NH 03857 - )
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: ) -REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN-ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY 'REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

ADDL|SUBR

POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP

) TYPE OF INSURANCE INSE | WD POLICY NUMBER (MNUDBIYYYY) | (MMDBYYYY) LIMITS
A | X | coMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EAGH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000|

| cLams-mape: [ X occur PHPK2563602 7112023 | 7//2024 |DAMECETORENTED T 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) © | $ 5’000
- PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | $ . 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
poLICY D RS Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 3,000,000

OTHER: $

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE T s

ANY AUTO . BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §

OWNED SCHEOULED -
AUTOS ONLY UTos BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
ED PROPERTY DAMAGE -

|| HRSS onwy AUTO%V&N % (Per accident) ]

. $

UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENGE $

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED | I RETENTION $ i $

PER OTH-
B |WORKERSSoMEENSATION, X | ERrume | [
YIN WCA00545411 7112023 71112024 - 500,000
ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ '

- | OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLU NIA . : ) : 500.000
(Mandatory in NH}) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § ?
If.yes, describe under I 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below . E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT. | §. i

bESCRIP'nON OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES . {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, 'may be attached if more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

. CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

¢ -

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL- BE DELIVERED IN
. ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rlghts reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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LAMPREY
‘HEALTH CARE

Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

Our Mission

The mission of Lamprey Health Care is to provide high quality primary medical care and health related
services, with an emphasis on preventlon and lifestyle management, to all individuals regardless of
ablllty to pay. - -

+ Weseektobea leader in providing access to medical and health services that improve the health status
of the individuals and families in the communities we serve.-

+ Our mission is to remove barriers that prevent access to care; we strive to eliminate such barriers as
language, cultural stereotyping, finances and/or lack of transportation.

+ Lamprey Health Care’s commitment to the community extends to providing and/or coordinating access
to a full range of comprehensive services.

. Lamprey Health Care is committed to achieving the hlghest level of patient satisfaction through a personal
and caring approach and exceedmg standards of excellence in quality and service.

Our Vision

+ We will be the outstanding prlmary care choice for our patients, our' communities and our service area,
and the standard by which others are Judged

+ We will continue as pacesetter in the use of new knowledge for lifestyle improvement, quahty of life.

+  We will be a center of excellence in service, quality and teaching.

K ‘We will be part of an integrated system of care to ensure access to medlcal care for all individuals and

families in our communities.

+ We will be an innovator to foster development of the best prlmary care practlces adoption of the tools of -

 technology and teaching.

+ We will establish partnershlps linkages, networks and referrals with other orgamzatlons to provide

access to a full range of services to meet our communities’ needs.

Our Values | o
We éxist to serve the needs of our patients. '
We value a positive caring approach in delivering patient services.
~ We are committed to improving the health and total well-being of our communities.
We are committed to being proactive in identifying and meeting our communities’ health care needs.
We provide a supportive environment for the professnonal and personal growth, and healthy lifestyles
of our employees.
+ We provide an atmosphere of learning and growth for both patients and employees as well as for those -
- seeking training in‘primary care.
+ We succeed by utlhzmg a team approach that values a posmve constructive commltment to Lamprey
Health Care’s mission.

* ¢ & o o

Affirmed 11/16/2022
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Septerhber 30, 2022 and 2021

With Independent Auditor's Report
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) BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT_AUDITOR'S REPORT

" Board of Directors 4 '
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc..

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (collectively, the Organization), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, functional expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Organization as of September 30,-2022 and 2021, and the results
of their operations, changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for\Opmron

We' conducted our -audits in accordance WIth U.S. generally accepted audltrng standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have -
obtained is sufﬂcrent and appropriate to provrde a basis for our audit opinion. '

_ Responsrbllltles of Management for the Consolidated Fmanclal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatlon of these consolidated fmancral
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of -
consolidated financial statements that are free from material mlsstatement whether due to fraud or
error. ;

In preparing the consolldated financial statements, management is reqwred to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
‘Organization's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the flnanCIaI
statements are avallable to be issued.

. Maine » New Hdmpshire «» Massachusetts « Connecticut « West Virginia » Afizona « Puerto Rico .-
‘ _ berrydunn.com ' -
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Board of Directors
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Page 2 .

_Audit_orfé Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

- report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements.’ '

In performlng an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards we:

o Exercise professional Judgment and malntaln professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the-consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an .
‘opinion on the effectlveness of the Organlzatlon s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion -
is expressed.

‘e Evaluate the appropriateness of accountlng poI|C|es used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

" e Conclude whether, .in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
. aggregate, that ralse substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to contlnue as a gomg
concern for a reasonable period of time. :

We are’ reqmred to communrcate with those charged with governance regardrng, among other matters,
" the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
- matters that we identified during the audit. .
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Board of Dlrectors
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care Inc.
. Page 3

. Report on Consolidating Information

- Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated fi nancial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30, 2022
~ and 2021, and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the -
" years -then ended are presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial
-statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations and changes in net assets
~ of the individual entities, and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
_information is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the -
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolldated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures,  including comparing and reconciling such
information ‘directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated -
. financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
-procedures .in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the
consolidating information is fairly stated in all material respects in relatlon to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

W Dsinn WMeVeil f Furder, LLC.

Portland, Maine
April 5, 2023

3
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolldated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2022 and 2021 ~

Current assets _
- Cash and cash equivalents
_ Patient accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Other receivables
Inventory =
Other current assets

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use _
Fair value of interest rate swaps
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

ASSETS

022 021

" $ 3,113,427 $ 3,777,557
1,783,724 1,389,692
1,196,731 - 724,399
139,731 137.513
238,124 177,384
366,193 262,941 -
6,837,930 6,469,486
3,961,087 - 4,003,423
236,743 .
7,322,436 7,507,299

$18,358.196

$17.980,208

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities ‘ -
' Accounts payable and accrued expenses
“Accrued payroll and related expenses
Due to third party payers
Deferred revenue
" Current maturities of Iong-term debt

Total current lrabrlltles

. Long-term debt, less current maturities
Fair value of interest rate swaps

Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor réstrictions

Total net assets

Totel liabilities and net assets

$ 658,309

$ 540,324
1,381,807  1,306.202
e 241,304
283,638 - 423922
72.440 190,068
2,396,194 2,601,910
. 2,700,836 2,749,747 -
(68,196) - 67,441
5028834 _5.419.098
12,610,798 11,047,776
718564 _ 613.334 -
13,320.362 12,561,110
$18,358,196 $17.980,208

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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' LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolldated Statements of Operatlons

Years Ended September 30 2022 and 2021

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Rental income
Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
* Net assets released from restriction for operations

~ Total operating revenue.

Operatlng expenses
- Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
‘Purchased services
Facilities |
. Other operating expenses
" Insurance
Depreciation
_ Interest

Total operatlng expenses
Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capltal acquisition

_ Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

181128

2022 - 2021
$11,411,666 $10,386 518
164,761
8,142,840  8,644.519
1,077,550 634,309
363,791 364.248
21,160,597 20.210.722
12,359,463  11,309.801 -
2607,203 2258427
785,520 - 954,094
3,219,637 2,504,470
703,288 667,034
532,932 860,344
147,154 140,849
465,622 476,470
93271 102,602
20,914,180 19.274.091
246,417 936,631
372,380 150,216
~ - 216,414
44,225 ___ 65285
$. 663022 $_1,368.546

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-5-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. .
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses »

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Total Administration

; ; Healthcare Program and Support
i : ’ Services - . AHEC/PHN * Services Services Total -
, . ’ \ .
Salaries and wages - $ 9,991,275 "% 462,982 $ 10,454,257 $ 1,905,206, $ 12,359,463 -
- Employee benefits ; 2,107,711 -97,668 - 2,205,379 401,914 2,607,293
" Supplies . . " . 762,477 5,881 768,358 17,162 785,520
Purchased services 1,089,215 849,499 1,938,714 1,280,923 . 3,219,637
Facilities - ) 559,216 - - 559,216 144,072 703,288
Other . 194,227 . 57,048 - 251,275 281,657 532,932
Insurance . - R - - . 147,154 147,154
Depreciation - o ‘ - - - 465,622 465,622
Interest L - - _ - 93,271 93,271
Allocated program support ’ 812,790 48,489 861,279 (861,279) - -
Total - : $_ 15516911 $_ 1,521,567 $__17,038478 $ 3,875,702 $_ 20.914,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

.-6_
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDSOE LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. -
: Co’nsolidatéd Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2021

; : Total Administration

Healthcare Program and Support . s

Services AHEC/PHN Services Services Total
Salaries and wages $ 9107974 $ - 453641 $ 9561615 $ 1,748,186 $ 11,309,801
Employee benefits’ - 1,627,746 83428 1,711,174 . 547,253 2,258,427
Supplies ) : 924,304 6,075 930,379 23,715 - 954,094
Purchased services . 1,062,898 " 418,398 1,481,296 1,023,174 - 2,504,470
Facilities . - ' . 475,941 26,042 501,983 . . 165,051 - 667,034
Other L - 379,745 - 87,277 437,022 - 423,322 860,344
Insurance - = ' - 140,849 140,849
Depreciation ) - - - 476,470 476,470
Interest - . - - 102,602 102,602
Allocated program support : ©o 1373345 : 93217 1,466,562 (1,466.562) -
" Total . _ - $ 14951953 $_ 1,138.078 $_ 16.090.031 $ 3,184.060 $_ 19,274,091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-7



DocuS|gn Envelope ID: BI}CAD929-7A49-4095 -A55D- E49229EDOA3D
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC,

Consolldated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

" Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions
Excess of revenue over expenses _
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital acqwsmon

‘Increase in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions ~ -
Contributions
Grants for capital acqmsmon
'Net assets released from restriction for operatlons A
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition
Increase in net assets with donor restrietions
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year .

Net assets, end of year

022

$13,329,362

021
. § 246417 $ 936,631
" 372380 - 150216
] 216.414
44225 _ 65285
663,022 _1.368.546
419,527 572,096
93,719 i
(363.791)  (364,248)
(44,225) __ (65.285)
105230 142,563
768,252 1511109
12,561,110 11,050,001

$12,561.110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

8-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE; INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolldated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
‘Change in net assets ,
~ Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
(used) provided by operating activities
Depreciation .
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Grants for capital acquisition
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Patient accounts receivable ‘
" Grants receivable
Other receivables
" Inventory
Other current assets
(Decrease) increase in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruedexpenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Due to third-party payers
' Deferred revenue
Provider Relief Fund refundable advance
. COVID-18 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund
refundable advance

Net cash (used) :proyided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
- Capital acquisitions

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants received for capital acquisition
Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash (Lised) provided by financing activities

~

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equwalents and
restricted cash :

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

_ Cash and cash equivalentsand restricted cash, end of year

2022 2021
768,252 § 1,511,109
465,622 476,470
(372,380)  (150,216)
(93,719)  (216,414)
(394,032) 6,960
(442,332) (65,831)
. (2,218) (7,509)
(60,740) (47,793)
(103,252)  (115,142)
50,375 80,263
75,605 - (16,162)
(241,394) 121,755
(140,284) 351,501
- (196,549)
» - - (250,000) -
(481,497) _1.482.442
- (222.149) _ (306.735)
(222,149) ' _(306.735)
63,719 © . 216414
(66,539) _- (69.235)
(2,820) 147,179
(706,466) 1,322,886 -
7.780.980 _6.458.094

'$_7.074.514 $_7.780.980

The accgmpanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statéments:

-9
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Consolldated Statements of Cash Flows (Concluded)

‘Years Ended September. 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 021

Composntlon of cash and cash equivalents and restrlcted cash,
end of year | . . .
Cash and cash equwalents L : $ 3,113,427 $ 3,777,557

Assets limited as'to use . ) : - 3,961,087 4,003,423

$.7.074.514 $.7.780.980

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow lnformatlon

Cash paid for interest \f$_93.271 '$__102,602
- Capital expenditures included in accounts payable $___ 58610 $_. -

Property and equipment acquisitions included in grant receivables ~ $—_30.000 $___.__ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements:-

L
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC.
Notes to Consolldated Fmanclal Statements _

September 30, 2022 a_nd 2021

Organization

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of New

Hampshire. LHC is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) whose primary. purpose is to- provide

high quality family health, medical and behavioral health services to residents of southern New
- Hampshire without regard to the patient’s ability to pay for these services.

Subsidiary -

Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of
New Hampshire. FLHC’s primary purpose is'to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the property
occupied by LHC's administrative and program ofﬂces in Newmarket New Hampshire. LHC is the sole -
corporate member of FLHC.

¢ 1

Summarv of Slerlcant Accountmﬂq Policies

Basis of Presentation

‘The cohsolldated financial statements of the Organlzatlon have been prepared in accordance with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) which require the- Organization to
report information in the consolldated financial statements according to the followmg net asset.
cIassrf catlons

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed "
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets. may be used at the dlscretron of the Organization's
‘management and the Board of Dlrectors

Net assets with donor restrlctlons Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors -
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be- met by
_actions of the Organlzatlon or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in

- nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetwty, of which there
were-none in 2022 or 2021. :

Principles of Consolidation

“The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LHC and its subsidiary, FLHC

(collectively; the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates -

The preparation of consolidated financiat statements in'eonfOrmity with U.S. ‘GAAP, requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

1.
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LAMPREY I-_IEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Coneolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

Income Taxes

Both LHC and FLHC are public charities under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As
" public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in -
-accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business. income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that reqU|re
adjustment to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

COVID 19 and Relief Fundmg

In March 2020 the World Health Organlzatlon declared coronavirus disease (COVID-19) a global
pandemic and the United States federal government declared COVID-19 a national emergency.

" The Organization implemented-an emergency response to ensure the safety of its patients, staff
and the community. In adhering to guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, fhe Organization took steps to create safe distances between both staff and
patients. All providers received the necessary equipment to allow for medical and behavioral health
visits using telehealth

The Orgamzatlon received COVID-19 relief funding, including the Paycheck. Protection Program
(PPP) loan which was forgiven in' June 2021, Provider Relief Funds and State of New Hampshire
COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund loan Wthh was converted to a grant. The
various COVID-19 relief programs are complex and subject to mterpretatlon The programs may be
subject to future investigation-by governmental agencies. The PPP can be audited for up to six
years from the date of forgiveness. Any difference between amounts previously recognized .and

~amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are adjusted in future periods as
adjustments become known. '

Cash and Cash Eguivalent

. 'Cash and cash equivalents consist of busmess checking and savings accounts as weII as petty -
-cash funds. :

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The balances are

~insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization’s cash balances may exceed FDIC insurance. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management belleves it is not
exposed to any significant risk.

RevenL_Ie Recognition and Patient Accounts Receivable

Net patient service revenue is reported at the amount that refllelcts the consideration to which the
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due
from patients and third-party payers (including commercial insurers and governmental programs).

w4 =
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' LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements’

September 30, 2022 and 2021

Performance obllgatlons are determined based on the nature of the services provided. by the
Organization. The Organization measures the performance obligations as follows:

.o Medical, behavioral health and ancnlary services are measured from the commencement of
an in-person or virtual encounter with a patient to the completion of the encounter. Ancillary
services provided the same day are considered to be part of the performance obllgatlon
and are not deemed to be separate performance obllgatlons '

o Contract pharmacy services are measured when the prescrlptlon is dispensed to the patlent
as reported by the pharmacy admlnlstrator

The majority of the Organization's performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time.

. The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and . -
cash flows are affected by the payer. In assessing coIIectablhty, the Organization has elected the

- portfolio approach. The portfolio approach is being used as the Organization has alarge volume of
similar contracts with similar classes of customers (patients). The Organization reasonably expects
that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a.group of contracts would not differ materially
from considering each contract separately. Management's judgment to group the contracts by
portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each portfolio category. As a result,
aggregating all the contracts (which are at the patient level) by the particular payer or group of . -
payers will result in the recognition of the same amount of revenue as  applying the analysns at'the
individual patlent level. A table detallmg the payers is presented in Note 9.

A summary of payment arrangements follows:
‘Medicare

The Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health and ancillary services
provided to patients based on the lesser of actual charges or prospectively set rates for all FQHC
services provided to a Medicare beneficiary on-the same day. Certain other services provided to
patients are reimbursed based.on predetermined payment rates for each Current Procedural
Termlnology (CPT) code, which may be less than the Organization's public fee schedule.

. Medlcald

The. Organization is primarily reimbursed for medical, behavioral health and ancillary services
provided to patients based on prospectively.set rates for all FQHC services furnished to a Medicaid
beneficiary on the same day. Certain other services provided to patients are reimbursed based on
predetermined payment rates for each CPT code, which may be less than the Organlzatlon s public
fee schedule. -

-13-
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- LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
) " ' Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements '

" September 30, 2022 and 2021

' Commercial Pavers
“The Organization has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercral insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. Under these
_arrangements, the: Organization is reimbursed for services based on contractually obligated
payment ratés for each CPT code, which may be less than thé Organization's public fee schedule.

Patients

‘ The Organrzatron provrdes care to patients who meet certain criteria under its slrdrng fee discount
program and certain other programs. The Organrzatlon estimates the costs associated with
providing care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multrplyrng that ratio
by the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to eligible patients. The
estimated cost of providing services to patients under the Organization charity care programs

~amounted to $1,058,465 and $1,000,557 for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The Organlzatron is able to provide these servrces with a component of funds
received through federal grants. : _

For uninsured patients who do not qualify under the Organization's sliding fee discount‘program
the Organization bills the patient based on the Organization’s standard rates for services provided.

Patient balances are typically due within 30 days of billing; however, the Organization does, in- .-

certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients that allow payments in excess of
one year. For those cases, the flnancmg component is not deemed to be srgnrf icant to the control.

340B Contract Pharmacv Proqram Revenue " C o

-

The Organrzatron as an FQHC is elrgrble to participate in the 3408 Drug Pricing Program This
program requires drug manufacturers to provide-outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other covered
. entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.

The contract pharmacies dispense drugs to elrglble patients of the Organization and bill
commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement received by the contract
‘pharmacies is remitted to the. Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. The
drspensrng and administrative fees are costs of the program and not deemed to be implicit price-

concessions which would reduce the transaction price. The Organization recognizes revenue in the

amounts that. reflect. the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the
prescription after the amount has been determined by the pharmacy benefits manager.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B "programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with all laws
and regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review .and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penaltles and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid, and 340B programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
" included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known. During the year
"~ ended September 30, 2022, a reserve related to 34OB Medicaid clarms ‘was removed and
: $241 394 has been mcluded in income. .

-14 -
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC.
Notes to Consolidated Flnanclal Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

-Patient Accounts Receivable

Patierit accounts. recelvable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances.

Patient account's;receivable consisted of the following:

October1, . September 30, September 30,

2020 ; 2021 ‘ 2022

" Patient accounts recei\/able $ 1,099,010 $ 1,210,952 $ '1 ;595,065
- 340B contract pharmacy program 297642 178,740 188.659
Total patient accounts receivable $__1.396652 $__1.389.692 $ 1-783=724

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patlents most of whom. are local residents -
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. The accounts receivable from patients and .-
third-party payers net of aIlowances were as follows at September 30:

2022 021

Governmental plans . A ' _
‘Medicare ' . : o . 24% 22% .
Medjcaid S ' _ : - 32% 35 %

Commercial payers - _ ' - 17% 18 %

Patient T ' A . : 27 % 25%

Total | . 100 % 100 % -

Grants and | Other Receivables

Grants and other recelvables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances All such amounts are considered collectible.

The Organlzatlon receives a sngnlflcant amount of grants from HHS. As with all government
funding, these grants are subject to reduction or termination in future years. For the years ended
September 30, 2022 and 2021, grants from HHS (including both direct awards and awards
passed through other organizations) represented the majority of grants, contracts and
contributions revenue. ' ' '

A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable grants, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has met the

. performance requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant
provisions, as applicable. Amounts recelved pnor to incurring quallfylng expendltures are reported
as deferred revenue.

-15-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

The Organization has been awarded cost reimbursable grants in the amount of $1,447,113 and
$2,378,450, which are available through March 2023 and May 2023, respectively, that have not
been recognized at September 30, 2022 because quallfylng expendltures have not. yet been
mcurred

The Organization also received a capital grant, Hea/th Center Infrastructure Support, in the amount
of $671,534, which is available for use for approved capital projects through September 14, 2024.
The Organization intends to use this” grant for renovations of the ‘Organization's Na_shua, New
- Hampshire facility. See Note 4 for further discussion regarding the project.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include cash and cash equivalents designated by the Board of Directors
for specific projects or purposes and donor restricted funds, as discussed further in Note 3.

~ Property and Equipment

Property’ and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are
expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized. Provision for depreciation is .
computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the.related assets. The
Organlzatlon s capltallzatlon policy is apphcable for acqws:hons greater than $5,000.

“ _ Contnbutlons

Unconditional promises to give cash- and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the

_ promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit use of the donated assets. When a_
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is -
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net. assets. without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of operations as net assets released from restriction.
Contributions whose restrictions are met in the same period as the support was received are
recognized as net assets without donor restrictions.

The Organization reports gifts of property and equipment as support without donor restrictions
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived
assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported.as support with dohor
restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be -
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or

acquired Iong I|ved assets are placed in service.
|
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L_AMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -

‘September 30, 2022 and 2021

Functional Expenses

. The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function of the Organization. Expenses allocated between
program services and administrative support include employee benefits which are allocated based
on direct wages, facilities which are based upon sguare footage occupied by the program, human
resources and information technology which is based upon employee worked hours attributed to
the programs. )

Excess of Revenge over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes
in net assets without donor restrictions, which are excluded from this measure include contributions
of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor restriction, were
to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets) and changes in fair value of interest rate
swaps that qualify for hedge accounting. :

‘SubseguentEv'ents '

For pUrboSes of the p'reparation of these consolidated financial statements, ‘management has
considered transactions or events occurring through. April 5, 2023, the date that the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent
events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements.

2. Avallabllltv and Ll_qwdltv of Flnanclal Assets

The Organlzatlon regularly monitors liquidity required- to meet its operatmg needs and other

. contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash.and cash equivalents and a line of credit (Note 5). The Organization had average .
days .cash and cash equivalents on hand (based on normal expendltures) of 56 and 73 at
September 30, 2022 and 2021 respectively.

| F|nan0|al assets available for general expenditure within one year as of September 30 were as

follows:
- 2022 ¢ - 2021 .
Cash and cash equivalents ’ : - $ 3,113,427 $- 3,777,557 -
Patient accounts receivable A \ o 1,783,724 1,389,692
‘Grants receivable - - o 1,196,731 724,399
Other receivables » B 139.731 137,513
' Financial assets available -~ — ~ $_6.233.613 $_6.020.161
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

The Organization has certain -board- designated assets limited as to use which are available for.

general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations upon obtaining approval
. from the Board of Directors and other assets limited as to use for donor-restricted purposes, which

are more fully described in Note 3. Accordingly, these assets have not been mcluded in the
- quantitative mformatlon above.

3. Assets Limited as.To Use

Assets I|m|ted as to use are-made up of cash and cash equwalents WhICh are to be used for the
following purposes at September 30:

2022 ' 2021

Board-designated for o . : ; '
Transportation ; : 8 27,059 $ 27,059
Working capital s 1,641,947 = 1,641,947 -
Capital improvements ’ - 1,677,061 1,677,051
Other o - 80131 79755

Total board-designated - - 3,426,188 -  3,425812
" ‘Donor restricted - o . - ‘ | 534,899 577,611
Total - . . $.3961087 $ 4003423
4. Progem and E‘gu'ipr‘nent
Property and equipment consists of the following at Septe"mber 30:
_ 2022 2021

Land and improvements N o ‘ -8 1,1‘_54,753 $ 1,154, 753

Building and improvements -0 11,901,465 11,831,191 -

Furniture, fixtures and equipment . _ - A1.877.573 - 1,835,579
Total cost .. - - . 14,933,791 14,821,523
Less accumulated depreciation o . 7.86;,789' 1,397,168

R . | . 7,071,002 7,424,355

Construction in progress and assets not in service ‘ 251,434 82944

Property and equipment, net - $.7.322436 $_7.507.299
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AN_D FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
| Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

The construction in progress primarily relates to the renovations of the Organization's Nashua,
New Hampshire facility to expand clinical space and reconfigure existing space for improved:
workflows for increased patient access and improved patient experience. The total project cost is
estimated to be approximately $3,500,000 and anticipated to be funded by a capital grant.(as
outlined in Note 1), board designated and donor restricted cash and debt financing. The renovation
is projected to be completed before the expiration of the capital grant in September 2024.

Property and equipment acquired with Federal grant funds are subject to specific federal standards
for sales and other dispositions. In many cases, the Federal government retains a reS|dual
- ownership interest in the assets requiring prior approval and restrictions on disposition.

- 5.  Line of Credit
The Organization has an available $1,000,000 revolving line of credit from a local bank through
May 2024, with an interest rate at Prime, but not less.than 3.25% (6.25% at September.30, 2022).
The line of credit is collateralized by all business assets There was no outstandmg balance as of
September 30, 2022 .and 2021.

6. - Long-Term Debt ' ' R

Long-term debt consists of the following at September 30:

Promissory note payable to Iocal bank; see terms outlined :
below. (1) - ‘ . ‘ _$ 790,941 $ 811,195
Promissory note payable to local’ bank; see terms outlined : ;
below. (2) . ; _ _ 1,982,335 2,028,620,
Total long-term debt . .- .' 2,773,276 2,839,815
Less current maturities - - ‘ 72,440 90,068
Long-term debt, less current maturities $_2,700,836 $_2.749.747

(1) The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 20 years, with fixed monthly payments of $4,787 including principal
and interest at the one-month Secured Oyernight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 1.5% through
February 2032 when the balloon payment is due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The
Organization has an interest rate swap agreement for the ten-year period through 2032 that limits
the potentlal interest rate fluctuation and substantlvely fixes the rate at 3.77%.

(2) The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with variable monthly principal payments plus interest at
the one-month SOFR plus 1.5% through October 2029 when the balloon payment is due. The note
is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap agreement for the
ten-year period through 2029 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation and substantially flxes '
the rate at 3.173%.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC.
Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

- The Organlzatlon is required to meet certain admlnlstratlve and financial covenants under the Ioan
agreements included above. In the event of default, the bank has the option to terminate the
agreement and immediately request payment of theé outstanding debt without notice of any kind to
the Organization. The Organlzatlon was in compliance with all loan covenants at September 30,
2022. . .

Maturitie.s of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as follows at September 30:

12023 o ' : $ 72,440
2024 ' 4 76,813
2025 . ‘ 79,753
2026 . ' . 82,546
2027 . - _ . s ' 85,437
Thereafter, . o : 2,376,287

Total ' ' . o e $ 2,773,276

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Organization parhmpates in certain fixed-payer swap contracts related to underlylng, variable
rate debt obligations. The purpose of these contracts is.to protect the Organization against rising
interest rates related to the variable rate debt. These contracts qualify for-hedge accounting as a
.cash flow hedge and are reported at. fair value as an asset or a liability. As a perfectly effective
cash flow hedge, the change in fair value of the contracts is reported in the change in net assets

‘without donor restrictions. The Organization expects to hold the swap contracts until- their = -

respective maturltles

The interest swap. contract terms are:summarized as follows at September 30:

2022 2021
Fixed ‘Variable ~ . FairValue Fair Value ,
Rate . - Rate " Notional Asset Asset Termination ,
Entity @ Paid Received Amount  (Liability)  (Liability) Date Counterparty
LHC 37700 % 45184 % $ 789,739 $ 68196 $ (2,632) 02-17-2032  TD Bank
FLHC 3.1730 %  4.0534 % 1,972,058 _ 236,743 (64.809) 10-02-2029  TD Bank

Cumulative unrealized asset (liability) . $_304.939 $_ (67.441)

U.S. GAAP establish a fair. value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant
-assumptions based on market data obtairied from sources independent of the reporting entity
(observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting
entity's own assumptions -about market partncnpant assumptions (unobservable inputs classmed
w1th|n Level 3 of the hierarchy). r

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical. assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC
' Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021 -

Level 2 — Significant.other observable inputs-other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Signif cant unobservable inputs that reﬂedt an entity's own assumptions about the
' assumptlons that market part|C|pants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Orgamzahon uses inputs other than quoted prices that are observable to value the interest
rate swaps. The Organization considers these inputs to be Level 2 inputs in the context of the fair
value hierarchy. These values represent the estimated amounts the Organization would receive or
pay to terminate agreements, taking into consideration current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the counterparty (present value of éxpected cash flows). =

8. Net Assets

Net assets without d_ondr restrictions are designated for the following purposes at September 30:

2022 2021
Undesignated [ o $ 9,184,610 .$ 8,521,964
. Board-designated (Note 3) A rh ' 3,426,188 _3.425812
Total . . L, $12,610,798 $11.947.776
Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following specific purposes at September
30 _
2022 2021
Temporary in nature: - _ '
Capital improvements 8 80,477.'$ 178,927
- Capital acquisitions not in service : . 183,664 35,720
Community programs - ‘ 454,423 382,817
Substance abuse prevention A ' - . 15870
Total : A ' ~$_ 718564 $_ 613,334
Net assets released from restriction were used for the following:
2022 - 2021
Community programs ’ $ 347,921 $ 360,024
Substance abuse prevention ' ’ ‘ 15,870 - 4,224
Capital acquisition _ e o 44,225 65,285

Total - o | $__ 408,016 $_ 420,533

-21 -



DocuSign Envelope ID: B3CAD929-7A49-4095-A55D- E49229EDOA3D

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2022 and 2021

9. Patient Serwce Revenue

Patient service revenue was as follows for'the years ended September 30:

022 2021

- Gross charges o . $16,193,275 $14,780,770

-34OB contract pharmacy revenue _ - 2.288.391 k 1,853.873

Total gross revenue o . " 18,481,666 16,634,643
Contractual adjustments and |mpI10|t prlce concessions ' (6,412,843) (5,684,212)
Sliding fee discounts (813,170) (777,588)
Other patient related revenue . ' : 156,002 - 213,675 -

Total patient service revenue $11.411,655 $10.386.518

The mix of net patient service revenue from patlents and thll’d -party payers was as follows for the
years ended September 30

022 2021
Medicare - - L 19% 14 %
Medicaid ' S . » 46%  42%
Commercial payers _ TR o ) - 30% - 41 %
_Patient . . DA L 5% . 3%
' 100 % 100 %

10. R'etirement Plan

The Orgahization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
The Organization contributed $342,532 and $281,223 for the years ended September 30, 2022

and 2021, respectlvely

11. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30,
- 2022, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of either FTCA or medical malpractice insurance coverage,
nor are there any unasserted. claims’ or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractlce insurance coverage on a clalms made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.
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" | Notes .td Consolidated Financial Statements. | |
September 30; 2022 and 2021

12. vLit‘igétiqn s

From time-to-time certain complaints are filed against the Organization in the ordinary course of

‘business. Management vigorously defends the Organization's actions in those cases and utilizes

insurance to cover material losses. In the opinion of management, there are no matters that will
materially affect the Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.‘

Consolidating Balan’cé Sheet

-September 30, 2022

ASSETS
; Friends of
Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care, 2022 . -
Inc. - Inc. Consolidate_d
Current assets _ . - .
Cash and cash equivalents ' ' $ 1,436,518 $ 1,676,909 $ 3,113,427
Patient accounts receivable . ’ , 1,783,724 - . 1,783,724 .
Grants receivable ' C 1,196,731 - 1,196,731
Other receivables '. . ' 139,731 - 139,731 -
Inventory - . ‘ 238,124 - 238,124
Other current assets ' ‘ 366,193 - 366,193
Total current assets - - 5,161,021 1,676,909 6,837,930
Assets limited as to use - ! ' . 3,961,087 .- 3,961,087
Fair value of interest rate swaps - - 236,743 236,743
Property and equipment, net ‘ i - _5,755.561 1.566.875 7,322,436
Total assets A $_14877669 $_ 3480527 $_18,358.196
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities L . -y = e B '
~ Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 645502 $ . 12,807 $ - 658,309
~Accrued payroll and related expenses P B - 1,381,807 - - 1,381,807
Deférred revenue o . . ' 283,638 - 283,638
Due to (from) affiliate ‘ - 25,100 (25,100) ' -
. Current maturities of long-term debt ) . 27.993 44447 72,440
Total current liabilities ‘ ) 2,364,040 _ 32,154 2, 396 1 94
Long-term debt, less current maturities ' ' 762,048 1,937,888 2700,836
Fair value of interest rate swaps : . (68,196) - - (68,196)
‘Due to (from) affiliate : _1.045164 (1,045,164) -
Total liabilities - 4,103,956 924878 _ 5028834
‘Net assets . .
" Without donor restnctlons ' : 10,055,149 - 2,555,649 12,610,798
With donor restrictions : _ 718,564 - - 718,564
Total net assets . . 10773713 2,555,649 13,329,362 .
Total liabilies and net assets© | $_14,877.669 $_ 3480527 $_18,358.196
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.
Consolidating Balance Sheet |

September 30, 2021

ASSETS
Friends of
Lamprey - Lamprey ‘
Health Care, Health Care, 2021
Inc. Inc. _Consolidated
Current assets : .
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2207080 $ 1,480,497 $ 3,777,557
Patient accounts receivable , 1,389,692 - 1,389,692
_ Grants receivable ' 724,399 - 724,399
Other receivables : - : ; 137,513 - 137,513
Inventory : 177,384 - 177,384
“Other current assets . 262,941 - 262,941
Total current assets 14,988,989 1480497 6,469,486
Assets limited as to use . _ : 4,003,423 - 4,003,423
Property and equipment, net : 5,830,543 1,676,756 7,507,299
Total assets ' : .$ 14,822 955 $_ 3157253 $_17.980.208
LIABILITIES AND NET A_SSE.TS ‘

Current liabilities , X | T .

. Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 537,394 $ 2,930 $ . 540,324
Accrued payroll and related expenses - 1,308,202 _ - - 1,306,202
Due to third party payers : ) 241,394 : - 241,394
Deferred revenue ' 423,922, . - 423,922

" Due to (from) affiliate ' 21,985 (21,985) T
Current maturities of long-term debt 45072 44996 90,068

; Total current liabilities ' - 2,575,969 25,941 2,601,910

Long-term debt, less current maturities 766,123 1,983,624 2,749,747

Fair value of interest rate swaps - 2,632 64,809 67,441

Due to (from) affiliate . 1,073.876 (1,073.876) : -

Total liabilities s : ' 4418600 _ 1,000,498 5.419.098

Net assets ' - . . . ‘ '
Without donor restrictions t - 9,791,021 2,156,755 11,947,776
With donor restrictions ' : S 813,334 ' - 613,334 -

Total net assets ‘ - 10.404,355' 2,156,755 12,661,110

Total liabilities and net assets . $_14,822955 $__ 3157253 $_17.980,208
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operafions

\

- Year Ended September 30, 2022

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
" Rental income
Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for
operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits

- Supplies o
Purchased services
Facilities
Other operating expenses

. Insurance .
Depreciation

" Interest expense

Total operating expenses
Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net assets released from restriction for
capital acquisition ;

Increase in net assets without donor
restrictions

Friends of . 4
Lamprey Lamprey ' o
Health Care Health Care, 2022
Inc. Inc. Eliminations Consoli_dated
$11,411,655 $ - $ . - $11,411,655
164,761 227,916 (227,916) 164,761
8,142,840 - ' - 8,142,840
1,076,095 1,455 - 1,077,550
363,791 - - 363,791
21,159,142 229 371 (227.916) 21,160,597
12,359,463 - - 12,359,463
2,607,293 - - 2,607,293
785,520 - - 785,520
3,219,557 80 - 3,219,637
930,204 300 (227,916) 703,288
530,932 2,000 . - 532,932
147,154 - - 147,154
355,740 109,882 - 465,622
73,504 19,767 . - _93.271
21,010,067 132,029 (227.916) 20.914.180
149,075 197,342 - 246,417
70.828 301 552 - 372.380
44 225 - - - 44,225

$_ 264.128

$__ 398,894

$

$__663,022
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Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2021

Operating revenue
- Net patient service revenue
 Rental income .
Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for
operations

Total -operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services
Facilities
Other operating expenses
Insurance
Depreciation
Interest

Total opérating expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps '

- Grants for capital acquisition
. Net assets released from restriction for
- capital acquisition -

Increase in net assets without
. donor restrictions

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey -
Health Care, Health Care, 2021
~Inc. Inc. Eliminations Consolidated
$10,386,518 - - 8 - $10,386,5_18
-181,128 227,916 - (227,916) 181,128
8,644,519 T - 8,644,519
634,169 140 - 634,309
364,248 - - .364,248
20,210,582 208056 _ (227.916) 20210722
11,309,801 - - 11,309,801
2,258,427 - - 2,258,427
954,094 - - 954,094
2,504,395 75 - 2,504,470
885,776 9,174 (227,916) 667,034
856,309 . 4,035 ' - 860,344
140,849 - - 140,849
. 366,581 109,889 - 476,470
86,613 15,989 - 102.602
19.362.845 139,162 . _ (227.916) 19,274,091
847,737 . 88,894 - 936,631
15,609 134,607 = 150,216
216,414 - - 216,414
65,285 - - 65,285
$ 1145045 -$_ 223501 $ .- $_1.368546
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE INC.

Consolldatmg Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended Septemberl 30, 2022

~ Net assets without donor restrictions
"Excess of revenue over expenses:
. Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net assets released from restriction for capltal
acquisition

Increase in net assets without doner restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions
Contributions
Grants for capital acquisition :
Net assets released from restriction for operatlons
Net assets released from restrictions for capltal
‘ acquisition
. Incteaee in net assets with donor restrictions
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

~ Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey ,
Health Care, Health Care, 2022
Inc. Inc. . Consolidated
$ 149075 $° 07,342 $ 246417
70.828 301,552 372.380
44225 - 44,225
264.128 - . 398.894 663,022
419527 : 419,527
93,719 - 93,719
(363,791) - _(363791)
(44.225) : (44,225)
105,230 - 105230
369,358 398,894 768,252
10404355 _2,156.755 12,561,110
$10.773.713 $_2.555.649 $13,329.362
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September' 30, 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions
Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Grants for capital acquisition
'Net assets released from restrlctlon for capital
acquisition

[ncrease in net assets without donor restrictiohs
- Net assets with donor restrictiéns
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
*Net assets released from restnctlon for capital
acquisition
" Increase in net assets with donor restrictions
'Ch'ange' in net 'assets_ :

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Friends of
Lamprey Lamprey '
Health Care, Health Care, 12021
Inc. Inc. Consolidated
$ 847737 $ 88894 $ 036,631 .
15,609 134,607 150,216 -
216,414 "« 216,414
65,285 - 65,285
1,145,045 223501 _1.368.546
572,096 - - 572,096
(364,248) : (364,248)
(65,285) - (65,285)
142,563 : 142 563
1,287,608 . 223501 1_,511,109'
9116747 1933254 11,050,001
$10,404.355 $.2.156.755 $12.561,110.
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2023 Board of Directors
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Term Ends 2023 ©
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Years of Service: 9 : Affiliation: University of: New Hampshire
Committees: Executive (chair), Community * Years of Service: 32 - N
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Michelle Boom
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Years of Service: 7 - Affiliation: Homémaker
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Affiliation: Eastern Bank
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Committees: Finance and Audit

- Jane Goodman
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Committees: Executive, Commumty Relatlons Affiliation: Nashua Soup Kltchen & Shelter
and Marketmg :

o
foe]
1]
L3

[|Page . Updated July 26,
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Not. - LAMPRE
& HEALTH CARE

Distribution ‘%&f hiere Exzollence dnd Caring go Hand i Mand
2023 Board of Directors
Raymond Goodman, I1I

Jim Ryan

Term ends 2024 . " Term Ends 2026

Affiliation: University of MA Foundation New
Years of Service: 10 Affiliation: Greater Lawrence ‘amily Health

Committees: Community Relations and
Marketing (Chair), Quality Assurance

Samantha Stamas .

Todd J Hathaway

H Umvers ity

Term Ends 2023

Affiliation: Wadleigh, Starr& Peters, PLLC o N
Years of Service: 1 -~ Wilberto Totres
Committees: Governance, Quality Assfirance

munity Relatlons/Marketmg

Carol LaCross .

Term Ends 2025
Affiliation: Agile Workplace Stafﬁng/Bell
Tower Home Health Care

Years of Service: 5

Committees: Community Relatlons/Marketmg,

Technology

Term Ends 2024
_ Affiliation:
Years of Se
. ‘Committees
-Technolog

Term Ends 2025 -
Affiliation: Retired -

Years of Service: 3

Committees: Quality Assurance (Chair)

2|Page Updated July 26, 2023
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Gre ory A. Whlte, CPA

| Summary
Senior Level Executive with extensive hands-on experience in management, business leadership, and
working with boards, banks and other external stake holders. A CPA with an established record of success

in Community Health Center management. Strong in budgets; cash forecasts, grants, and team leadership.

Professional Experience

Lamprey Health Care — Newmarket NH L 2013 to present
Chief Executlve Officer ' v | |

e Responsible for the leadership; operation and overall strategic dlrectlon of New Hampshlre s
largest Federally Quallﬁed Health Center.

» Ensuring continuity and high quality primary medical care in three 51tes both urban rural, servmg
over 16,000 patlents in 40 communities.

e Leading a high performmg senior management team in, the direction of over 150 staff and
providers. : :

® Engagmo with leaders and stakeholders at the local, state and national levels to ensure that
Lamprey is at the forefront of innovative, high quality health care delivery.

_ Lowell Commumty Health Center — Lowell MA o 2009 to 2013
Chief Financial Officer o

e Responsible for the integrity of financial information and systems for this Federally Qualified
Health Center, employing 315 staff and providing over 120,000 visits annually. Upgraded
financial and administrative infrastructure to meet requirements during a time of rapid expansion.

e Lead the financing and budget development for a $42 million cap_ital facility project to include:
traditional debt, multiple tax credit sources, federal grants, loan guarantees, and private funds.

e Directed key prOJects for: 340(b) pharmacy implementation; 403(b) tax deferred savmgs plan
multiple federal stlmulus grants; and revised operating budget development.

e Representative to the. Lowell General PHO for managed care contract negotiation

¢ Recruited and managed a team of five directors to oversee and manage four support and one
programmatic department

Manchester Community Health Center — Manchester, NH : 1999 to 2009
- Chief Financial Officer ‘

e Recruited by the CEO. to bring structure and pfocess to the functional areas of the Centet’s
financial operations. Provided direction and oversight to key business areas; General
Administration, Patient Registration, Human Resources, FTCA/Legal and Medical Records.

1|Page S - Gregory White Resume -
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Gregory A. White, CPA

e Responsible for the development of key programs, Corporate Compliance, HIPAA, selection of a
new practice management system. Supported Joint Commission accredltatlon and the
implementation of an electronic medical record system.

e Led the development of financing for the Center’s new facility.

Greater Lawrence Family Health Center — Lawrence, MA - 1993 to 1998
Controller : - 1997 to 1998
Accounting Manager 1995 to 1997

Senior Accountant/Analyst 1993 to 1995

e Progressively responsible for all day to day financial operations of a Federally Qualified Health
Center, including: Accounts Payable, Payroll, General Ledger, Cash Management, Cost
Reporting, Patient Accounts, and Financial Reporting. Presented budgets, analysis, projections and
perlodlc reporting to the Board of Directors.

e Key leader for projects 1nvolv1ng selection of new financial accountmg software; selection of new
- practice management system; provider productivity measurement and analysis and group
purchasing. Oversaw budget of $5 million construction project.

e Developed reimbursement model for an innovative Fam11y Practice Residency program.
Alexander, Aronson, Finning & Co., CPA’s — Westborough, MA 1990-to 1993.
Staff Accountant/Auditor

Education & Professional Affiliaﬁons_
Babson College, Wellesley, MA -

BS, Accounting - 1990

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Certified Public Accountant- 1996

Healthcare Financial Management Association

Certified Healthcare Financial Profeséional -2008
National Association of CHC’s

Excel Leadership Program - 2003

National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians -
EMT } N.H. license number 18991-1

Boards, Advisory & Volunteer Experience
Massachusetts League of Commumty Health Centers — Special Finance Commlttee

2|Page . : ‘ : Gregory White Resume
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Gregory A. White, CPA

NH Health Access Network — Administrative & Training Committee
Community Health Access Network — Board of Directors, Finance Committee

Bi-State Primary Care Association — Capital Finance & Sustainability, Prospective Payment

The Way Home — Manchester, NH - Board of Trustees — Treasurer
Manchester Sustainable Access Project — Data Sub-group

Milford Ambulance Service — Volunteer EMT, Staff O_fﬁcer, Treasurer, Building Advisory Committee

- Milford Educational Foundation — 1999 to 2010 - Treasurer
Hegitage' United Way — Manchester — Community Investment Committee |
Milford Community Athletic Association - Coach | |
Lasell College — Co-Resident Director

N

‘3| Page » | Gregory White Resume
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CHIEF OF CLINICAL SERVICES/DIRECTOR OF QUALITY
IMPROVEMENT AND POPULATION HEALTH

Lamprey Health Care

2018 - Present

Provide effective leadership to medical, behavioral health, care
coordination, diabetes education, quality, safety, and risk

management teams. Develop specialty programs to enhance
care, including substance use disorder treatment, mobile health
care services, chronic care management, and embedded
specialty care services within a primary care setting. Direct the
organization’s COVI,D response. Direct the continuous refinement
of workflows to assure quality, efficiency, and patient
satisfaction. Develop performance metrics and dashboards to
inform decision making.

CLINICAL DIRECTOR/HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS
CLINICAL DIRECTOR/ NURSE/ QUALITY IMPROVEMENT
DIRECTOR 4

Families First Health and Support Center

1998 - 2018

Effectively led teams to deliver integrated services to the
community. Assured safe, high quality services were provided.
Responsible for the development and managément of all clinical
programs, quality, risk management; and'poli_cy and systems
development.

CHARGE / STAFF NURSE
Wentworth-Douglass Hospital
1997 - 1998

Provided inpatient nursing care and procedure support to
pediatric and-adult patients: Responsible for shift leadership.
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BOARDS OF DIRECTORS

Women in Leadership Program Advisory Board
University of Vermont, Grossman School of Business
2022 - Present '

Yogain Action'
2022- Present .

Seacoast Women's Giving Circle
2016 -2022

" Prescott Park Arts Festival
2005 - 2007

o
e

Lo
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ELIDORO P. PRIMERO

Professional Profile C _ : : _ : ‘

'MA "Finance/MSc Business Economics graduate with very strong background in management of all aspects of a
Community Health Center/Federally Qualified Health (CHC/FQHC) strategic planning and implementation, clinical and
program operations, quality .and systems improvement, patient support services(eligibility and financial assistance,
referrals, call center) Sfinancial analysis and management, all phases of revenue cycle management (billing & coding,
denial management, etc.), practice management, business informatics and health outcome performance metrics, legal and
fiduciary compliance and reporting. Ten+ years experience in healthcare leadership, clinic and financial operations
management/accounting functions of CHC/FQHC network of primary hedlth care services and graduate medical
education programs. Fifieen+ years of progressive experience with, increasing responsibility. and accomplishment in non-
profit healthcare setting.  Equally very strong in both. public and private grants- & contract management and
implementation. Community oriented. Mission and. achievement motivated. Fast learner. Energetic and forward thinker.
Astute, proactive, hands-on manager with ability to take charge, lead a team and organize large-scale work and manage
multiple priorities in high-pressure environment, and deliver timely and meaningful results. Team player with ability to
develop productive relationships with board members, colleagues, clients and staff at all levels. Strong wo;k ethics and
interpersonal skills. Computer system proficient. :

Applicable Experience, Skills and Accomplishments
Leadershlp/Growth/Fmancml Sustamablllty/Commumty Partnership//Budgeting/Financial Reportmg

. Prowded executive leadership ‘and maintained broad responsibilities for all administrative functlons including
operations, - outreach/marketing, finance, managed care/third-party contracting, physician compensation and
reimbursement, human resources, medical and business information systems, public relations, and planning and
development Oversees management personnel with direct responsxbllmes for. these functional areas. Reports to the

* governing body of the organization.

e Provided oversight and coordination of a/l financial management, busmess operations and accounting functions of a
multi-site Community Health Centers/Federally Qualified Health Centers (CHCs/FQHCs) with operating budgets
ranging from $14M to $100M.

e Enhanced quality outcomes (HEDIS metrics), expanded scope of services (integrated mental/behav1oral health with
primary care, on site 340B pharmacy and specialty care, telemedicine and accessibility of FQHC from 4 to 8 sites and
from $10M to $20M budget.

o Enhanced FQHC’s EMR system (eClinicalWorks/ECW, Athena Health, Greenway EHS/Mediadent) and accounting
system (Abila MIP Fund accounting, SAGE, Sage IntAcct). Impréved financial performance management metrics.

e Provided oversight and coordination of a// financial management operations, accounting functions and administration

. of two closely-knit, non-profit healthcare corporations (the clinical/faculty physician group practices and the graduate
medical education residency programs) of The Wright Center located- at Scranton, PA with a budget of over $100M
Recently, The Wright Center has received the FOHC status.

o. Managed day-to-day business of network .of primary care health clinics and ‘social services (multi-specialty, primary
medical and dental care, community as well as school-based and teaching health centers) that provide high quality and
coordinated patient care services including a 7-county HIV Program in Northeast PA that is funded by HRSA and PA

- State and housed in one of patient-centered medical homes.

e Developed partnerships and managed affiliations with various hospitals, school districts and other community-based
health and social serv1ce organizations that enhanced organizational capac1ty to provide integrated holistic care
services.

» Provided meaningful management information and decmon support in the admmlstratlon of corporate operations, in
the coordination of program activities, and in the implementation of quality -improvement efforts and new service
initiatives.

o At the Wright Center, expanded number of clinics and scope of clinical care services from 2 to 11 dlfferent sites
(including school-based clinics at 4 school districts).

¢ Enhanced quality, efficiency, and patient experience of care by implementing chromc care model and patient-centered
-medical home program clinics to NCQA recognition. Improved clinical quality and efficiency by implementing EHR
system, e-prescribing and mobile technology applications for meaningful use. Reduced operating costs by more than

-20% by implementing lean thinking principles in the organization processes and clinic activities.
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e Reviewed revenues, expenditures and performance quality measures with key program and respective clinic managers
to ensure congruence with business plans, goals, and objectives. Grew and maintained revenues at annual growth rate
of more than 15% per year, assets and net assets five-fold, net investments to net asset ratio more than 77%.
Maintained over120 days operating cash.

. e Managed day-to-day financial operations and accountmg functions including monthly closing, preparatlon and
reporting of financial statements and statistical reports, cash flow and revenue cycle management, purchasing, capital
and operations budgeting, financial health monitoring and strategic planning.

» Prepared timely, accurate, and meaningful financial analysis and performance/productivity management reports for

© board, executive and senior management reviews. Provided pollcy and strategy recommendations about business
performance and resource allocation.

e Oversaw proper and accurate maintenance of records, documentatlon detailed account schedules and analyses for
external reporting compliance requirements and audit (UDS, EHB, OSHPD 340B, Medicaid (Medi- Cal) and Medicare
Cost Reports, A-133, etc.)

o Completed a $5M matching capital grant for redevelopment of primary care clrmc.

o Established and continually upgraded the corporate enterprise resource planning (ERP) systems - companywide
(integrated) accounting and management information systems to provide support, facilitate adaptive decision making.

.o . Automated processes and workflows with leading edge technologies to ensure adequate internal controls safeguard
assets and minimize risk exposure.

e  Managed payroll, employee benefits (health and disability, 401¢k), risk and insurance property, liability, and workers
comp), cash and bank reconciliation, purchases, investments, inventory and capital assets.

o Hired, trained, supervised, and built competent accounting teams that satisfy the needs of management colleagues ina
consistent and uncomplicated way. :

Strategic Planning/Policy & Procedures/Financial Analysis

e Provided strategic information and worked closely with executive, strategic manaoement team and board leadelshlp in

setting corporate goals, strategy, resource planning and allocation.
"~ e Adept at using statistical and financial tools for strategic planning, trending, anal‘ysis corporate appraisal,
' forecasting, cost benefit analysis.

e Analyzed economic and health data, demographic trends, key business and performance indicators, forecasts, other
meanmgful metrics and their impact on the corporation. .

e Developed and tpdated policies & procedures in’ compliance wrth Health Center Program requrrements and in
preparation for HRSA OSV.

e  Generated and recommended strategies as part of the ongoing strategic planning process. Provided mforma‘uon and
support for management decision making. -

Grants and Project Management

e Developed, oversaw and administered over $10M multiple grants, projects and contracts annually that are funded by
Federal (i.e., HRSA, Bureau of Primary Care, CDC, SAMHSA, Office of Pharmacy Affairs, etc.), State, City
Government agencies, private organizations and foundations. '

o Identified prospective funding opportunities. Wrote grant proposals (Federal, State, local and private) and managed
implementation of awarded grants accordingly to set objectives, goals and budget. Monitored measurable clinical and
financial performance outcomes. Prepared progress and regulatory compliance reports on ongoing grants and projects.

e  Maintained accurate records, detailed account schedules and analyses for reporting, compliance and audrt requrrements
(UDS, EHB, OSHPD, 340B, Medicaid (Medi-Cal) and Medicare Cost Reports, 4-133, etc.).’

e Reviewed grant/project/contract status with key officers in government and private organizations.

e Resolved project-related issues. Formulated pollcy and strategy recommendations. Provided on- site technical
assistance as needed .

Work History
e Executive Dzrector/Dlrector of Finance, Samahan Health Centers, National City, CA (FOHC), 12/2019 — 6/2022.
o Chief Financial Officer/Interim Chtef of Operations, Samahan Health Centers National City, CA (F QHC) 7/2018-
1172019
o Chief Financial Officer, Henry J. Austm Health Center Inc., Trenton, NJ (FOQHC), 5/2014 -6/2018.
»  Chief Financial Officer and Director of Grants Management & Contract, The Wright Center Medical Group, P.C.
(Fi QHC) and The Wright Center for Graduate Medical Education, Scranton, PA. 06/2007 - 01/2013.
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Education

e . Health Care Executive P/ ogram, UCLA Anderson School of Management, Los Angeles, CA.

o  MA in Finance & Public Economics, Columbia University Graduate School, New York NY, Asia Foundation Scholar.
PhD Economics (academic requirements completed).

o Fellowship in International Economic Development, Harvard University Kennedy School of Govemment Cambridge,
MA, Asia Foundation Scholar.

® MSc in Industrial .and Business Economics, University of Asia & Pacific (formerly Center for Research and.
Communication), Philippines, Han-Siedel Foundation Scholar.

e BS in Mechanical Engineering, University of the Philippines, Quezon City, Philippines.

Other

Proﬁment in MS Office Pro (Excel Word, PowerPaint, etc.), Sage Intacct. Abila MIP, Sage Fund Accounting and
other Accounting Packages, eClinicalWorks (eCW), Greenway EHS/Mediadent, Athena Health EMR and Practice
Manafement Integrated Software. Active community volunteer
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| Melissa A. Lope

REGISTERED uunsz

Highly motivated, goakoriented pmfessaona! nurse wrih six years of expenance pmmdmg qualiy care o a varigly of

pcaﬁents Aimingto Ieverage my eéxpetience and lmowtedga bo effectively fil the nursing position within Lampray Health
e

Skilis Practiced; Advanced life su‘ppmt Age appmpﬁata_m‘ Headto ToeAssessmms, Medication
Administration, Criical Drips, Telemelry Monitoring, Data Cellection and Documentation, Computerized Charting, :
Crilical Thinking, Priorifization, Palient Rapport Bulding, PaﬁanrlFamﬁy Edlmtzon Thexapeuhc Communication, Patient
Advocacy, Leadership, Cultural Iy Compelent Care

. E! ONAL DEVELOPMENT
. Bsche!or of Sctcnce in Nurslng - Southem New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH

Associate of Science in Nursing - Manchester Community College, Manchester, NH
Bachelor of Science In Kinaslology: Athletic Training -~ Universily of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Cerfifications: Advanced Cardiac Life Support 12/2015 - Active, Basic Life Support 0772013 - Active
Ucenses' Regxstered Nurse (068267-21) 07/15/2013 - Active .

EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENOE , . :
Elliot Health System : - ' Manchester, NH
Remstered Nurse-Intensive Care Unit - ' 062018 - cunent

- Collaborates with other health care professionals th develop and revise freatment plans based on identified needs
and assessment data. Collaborates with physiciens to determine appropriate plan of care for critically Il patents.
iniates and implements acute care protoools fo provide high quality, sidlled nursing care to oritically i patients.
Utiizas critical thinking skills to implement patient care plans and to anlicipate patient needs. Assists physicians at
bedside with procedures including but not limfted o inseriion of central ines, infubations, and afterial ines. Reviews
test results such as lab values and radiography studies and reparts therm fo appnopnate physicians. Administers

" medications, blood products, bedside sedation, and paraiylics. Proficiently uses computer ducumentatxon to
maintain accurate medical reoords and maintain patient privacy, -

Southem New Hampamta medica! Cenfar : Nashua, NH

Registered Nurse - Infensive Care Unit ' 012017 -G6/2018

- Provides care for criically il patients as well as nonMca! paﬁenis residing in ICU. Provides life suppart including
the use of equipment such as ventiators, ﬁeadmg tubes, arferial ines. Administers medication drips such as
sedalives, pataiytics, vasopressors, efc, Assists in procedures such as infubafions and central fine placements.
Practices dinical autonomy at patient point of care as well as omanmnona! interpersonsl, and critical thinking skifls.

Gatholic Medical Center _ . A Manchester, NH

Reg:slefed Nurse - Cardiac Medical Unit 042014 - 1172016
~ Provided care for patients on cardiacielemabry unit and some med/surge averflow. Provided patient care and
teaching, administered medication induding cardiac drps. Assessed patient health problems and neads, developed
and implamentad nursing care plans, and maintained medical records. Monitored patients after cardiac 4
cathetedzations, shress tests, and EP procedures paying close attantion to protocal, Cal!aborated wilh oﬂwer team
members and doctors.

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation - Greenbriar o Naghua, NH

Registered Nurse - Skiled Rehab Unit 1072013 - 0412014

- Cared for rehablitation patients by assisting with activities of daily life, dressing wounds. monitoring vita) processes &
psychological condlions, aiding in physical therapy, and any ofher newssary functions, Pravided end-oflife care.
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Lamprey Health Care
- Kéy Personnel

Name T Job Title , .| Salary Amount Paid from this Contract |
'| Gregory White, CPA | Co-Chief Executive Officer - 0
Susan Durkin, RN Co-Chief of Clinical Services 0
Elidoro Primero Chief Financial Officer -0
Melissa Lopez Family Planning Coordinator 25%
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE \ 6 < >
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -

. DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES
Lori A. Shibinette . 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

Commissioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501 -
' Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Patricia M. Tilley _ www.dhhs.nh.gov
Director 3o '
’ July 14, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council _

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Dwnsmn of Public Health -
Services, to amend an existing -contract with Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (VC#1177677)
Newmarket, NH, for Reproductive and Sexual Health Services, by increasing the price limitation
by $171,541 from $431,505-to $603,046 with no change to the contract completion date of
December 31, 2023, effective upon Governor and Councul approval. 59.32% Federal Funds.
40.68% General Funds. 0

The original contract was approved by Governor and Counc:l on December 22, 2021 nem
. #41C. : A

Funds are available in the followmg accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropnanon of funds in the future operating budget with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Off ice,
if needed and justified.

,05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, FAMILY PLANNING
PROGRAM 100% Federal Funds ,

et | e | omre | o, z:',::g_:: e | e
2022 | o74-500589 andRel e | 90080206 $33,775 _» - 80 . $33,775
2023 | 074-500589 e Assr go0s0017 | 0 | 822070 | $22,070
2023 | 074-500589 ?JZ'"&Z'“ Pub Asst s0080206 | $33775 | 881,103 5114'978 f
2024 | 074500589 |anamer | soosozos | 16688 $45772 | $62,660
Subtotal | $84,438 |  $148,985 | $233,363

The Departmehl of Health and Human Services’ Mission is o join communities and fomilies .
“in prouiding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and-independence.
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council

Page20f3

05-9545450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, AND
TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES 100% Federal Funds

Increased

(5]
) e R L I M e
~ozg | 074500585 | Grants for P::f;:: 45030203 | " $48.494
Joga | 074500585 | Grants for P::dA;:: 45030203 | 45 204 $520 ——
oza | 074500585 | Grants for P::dA::: 45030203 _'524‘247' — 526,763
. Subtotal | $121,235 |  $3,101 $124,536

05-95-90-902010-5530 HEALfH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, FAMILY PLANNING
PROGRAM 100% General Funds .

. State - Increased
Classl . . Job Current | - Revlsed
Fiscal : Class Title : {(Decreased)
Yaar Account i Number. Buégfat, " Ampunt Budget
‘ Contracts for ' :
- 2022 ' . $90,333 $0. $90,333
102-500731 | Prog Serv. 80080207 . ‘ ,
‘ Contracts for | -

2023 | 102500731 | Prog Serv. 90080207 |. 990,333 §ogs - | #100.200
. ~ . | Contracts for o _ '
2024 | 102-500731 | Prog Serv. googozo7 |  $45.166 $9.538 $54,704

Subtotal $225,832 $19,494 | $245,327
Total | $431,505 $171,541 $603,046
EXPLANATION -

The purpose of this request is provide family plannmg clinical services, STI and HIV
counselmg and testing, cancer screening and health education materials for low—mcome
individuals in need of sexual and reproductive health care services. ’

31, 2023,

Approximately 1698 individuals will be served under this Agreement through December

The Contractor has provided the Department a written, signéd attestation asserling that

they have reviewed and are in compliance with the Title X regulation (42 CFR, Part 59), and that
they do not provide abortion services. As such, this provider is not.a reproductlve health facrhty
as defined in RSA 132:37, 1. ; .




DocuSign Envelope ID: B3CAD929-7A49-4095-A55D-E49229EDOA3D . )

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and tha Honorable Council
Page 3 of 3

Reproductive health care and family planning are critical public health services that must
be affordable and easily accessible within communities throughout the State. Through these .
contracts, the Department is partnering with a federally qualified health center located in a rural
“area to ensure that access to affordable reproductive health care is available in all areas of the
State. Family Planning services reduce the health and economic disparities associated with lack
of access to high quality, affordable health care. Individuals with lower levels of education and
income, uninsured, underinsured, individuals of color, and other minority individuals are Iess likely
to have access to quality family planning services.

The Contractor will provide family planmng and reproductive health services to individuals
in.need with a_heightened focus on vulnerable and low-income_populations mcludlng. but not
limited to the Uninsured; Underinsured; individuals who are eligible and/or are receiving Medicaid
services, adolescents; lesbian gay bisexual transgender, and or questioning (LGBTQ); individuals
in need of confidential services; individuals at or below two hundred fifty percent (250%) federal
poverty level, refugees; and individuals at risk of unintended pregnancy due to substance abuse.
The effectiveness of the services delivered by the Contractor wilt be measured by monitoring the

percentage of;
’ ¢ Clients in the family planning caseload who respectively were under 100% Federal

Poverty Level! (FPL), were under 250% FPL, and under 20 years of age.
« Clients served in the family planning program that were uninsured or Medicaid recipients
at the time of their last visit. . , _ .‘
° Famlty planning clients less than 18 years of age who received education that abstinence
is a viable method of birth control. ' . -

_ e Family planning clients who received STI/HIV reduction education. .
e Individuals under age 25 screened for Chlamydia and tested bositive.

.« Family planning clients of reproductive age who receive preconception counseling.
» Women ages 15 to 44 at risk of unintended pregnancy who are provided a most or .
moderately effective contraceptive method.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the sustamablllty of New
Hampshire's reproductive health care system will be negatively impacted. Not authorizing this
request could remove the safety net of services that improve birth cutcomes, prevent unplanned
pregnancy and reduce heatth disparities, which could increase the cost of health care for New

Hampshire citizens.,
Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.217, FAIN FPHPA006511 and CFDA #93 558, FAIN
2001NHTANF.

Inthe event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
w1ll not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Servrces
Amendment #1

- This Amendment to the Reproductrve and Sexual Health Services contract is by and between the State )
. of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Servrces ("State" or "Department") and Lamprey
Health Care, Inc. ("the Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executlve Councrl
on December 22", 2021, (Item #41C), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and condltlons specrfred in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A, Subparagraph 3.3,
the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties-agree to extend the term of the agreement increase the prrce I|m|tat|on or modrfy
the scope of services to.support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contalned
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, Genera! Provusrons, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$603,046 : o -

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contractrng Off icer for State Agency, to read
Robert W. Moore, Director. -

3. Modlfy Exhibit B, Scope of Services Subsection 2. 10 to read:

2.10 The Contractor shall work with the Department’s Contractor for the technical assistance:
required to meet integration requirements between the EMR and the NH Famrly Planning
Program data base system for FPAR 2.0, until March 31, 2023.

4, MOdify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Paragraph 2125 through subparagraph 2. ~12 5.6 to read:

2.12.6 The Cantractor shall establish an I&E Committee/ Advisory Board comprised of.
" individuals within the targeted population orfor communities for which the materials are

intended. The I&E Committee /Advisory Board, which may be the same group of

individuals, must be broadly representatwe in terms of demographrc factors mcludmg

21251 Race;

21252 Color;

21253 National ongnn
2.12.54 Handrcapped condition;
21255 Sex, and

| 21256 Age.’ | |
5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Paragraph 2.12.7 to read: \
Reserved

6. Modify. Exhibit B, Scope of Services Subparagraph 2.12.8.2 to read:

2.12.8.2" Health education 'and information materials are reviewed by the I&E
Committee in accordance with,Title X Family Planning I&E Advisory and
- Community Participation Guidelines/Agreement (Attachment 3).

. . . 0s
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. ) ) A-S$-1.3 - Contractor InitialsL
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7. Modlfy Exhibit B, Scope of Serwces by addmg Subparagraph 2.16.2.1 to read:

2.16.2.1 The Contractor shall have at least one (1) LARC method available, at each cllmc
location site, for insertion for any family planning client who requests a LARC method
of contraception.

8. Modlfy Exhibit C Payment Terms by. replacmg in its entlrety with Exhibit C Amendment #1,
Payment Terms, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. '

9. Modlfy Exhibit C-2, Family Plannlng Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-2, Famlly
Planning Budget Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and mcorpprated by reference herein.

10. Modify Exhibit C-3, Family Planning Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-3, Family
Planning Budget Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Modify Exhibit C-5, TANF Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-5, TANF Budget
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and mcorporated by reference herein.

12. Modify Exhibit C-6, TANF Budget by replacing in its entlrety with Exhibit C 6, TANF Budget
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit C- 7, FPAR Budget Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herem , ) . '

. o - _ . : 08
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. ' A-5-1.3 Contractor Ini(ialsC ,
Hiey . : . 771572022
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05-A01 . Page 2of4 Date : o



DocuSign Envelope ID: B3CAD929-7A49-4(595-A55D-E49229EDO/\SD .

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D59E1B0-8838-4B30-B17C-0F280E479742

All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendrﬁeht remain in full force and effect.
~This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

~ IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire ,
Department of Health and Human Services

' : DocuSigned by: .
7/15/2022 l Pteron M._ They
Date "~ Name: a M. Tilley '

. _ Title: pirector -

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. .

. ’ . » DosuSlgn@by:
7/15/2022 v l éngog Wafe
Date b o _ Name: y White.

Title: ceo

Lamprey Health Care Inc. - A-S-1.2
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_ The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. - : - S

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

. ' - ' DocuSigned by: :
7/18/2022 , ?\alﬂm Qunino
bate = - ~ : .Name' ~Guarino

Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: __(date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date s T Name:
Title:
Lamprey Health Care Inc. ' A-S-1.2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXH»IBIT C Amendment #1

1.

Payment Terms

This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.” 59.32% Federal Fundmg from the Family Planmng Serwces Grants, as
awarded on March 23, 2022, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Office of Assistant Secretary of Health, NH Family
Planning (Title X) Program, CFDA #93.217, FAIN FPHPA006511 and
from U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children & Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (ACF,
TANF) as awarded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human'
Services, Administration for Children & Families, Temporary Assistance

~ for Needy Families (TANF), CFDA #93.558, FAIN 2001NHTANF.

1.2. ~ 40.68% State General funds.

2. The Contractor shall not utilize any funds provided under thls Agreement for .
abortion services.

DS
" 'RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-050-A01 ' Lamprey Health Care, Inc. . Contractor Initials L

c-1.2

For the purposes of this Agreement:

3.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecuplent in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

3.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.332. '

3.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applles in accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

Payment shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures

incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the Department approved budget line items in Exhibits C- 1 Budget through

Exhibit C-7 FPAR Budget Amendment 1.

" The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department

by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

" The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the

Department in order to initiate payment.

5.1 Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon reglstermg wnth_
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

5.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

5.3. - Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs mcurred in the
prevnous month.

Page 1'0f 3 , Date7/15/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Serwces
Reproductive and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT C Amendment #1

5.4. lncludes'suppdrting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable. -

5.5. |s completed, dated and returned to the Department with the suppcrting -
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation, and is -
emailed to DPHSContractBilling@dhhs.nh.govThe Department shall make
payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of .receipt of each invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are
available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form Number P-37
of this Agreement. - :

7. The final invoice shaII be due to the Depariment no Iater than forty (40) days .
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provrsrons.
- Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Servaces dn
compliance W|th funding requirements. : ;

9. - The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
~ whole or in part in the event of non- complrance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

10.  Should the Contractor not meet the approxlmate number of chents served in
Year One (1) of the Contract Period, as specified in Subsection 1.2 of Exhibit
B. Scope of Services, the Department may adjust the State Fiscal Year funding
amountfor Year Two (2) of the Contract Period through a Contract Amendment

- subject to Governor and Council approval. :

11. Notwrthstandrng anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that

- funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event

of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation apphcable

to the services provided, orif the said services or products have not been

satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and condmons of this
agreement

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting. amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the .
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. : :

13. Audits

13.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs. ac@dhhs nh.gov |f
- any of the following conditions exist:

:Ds
RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-050-A01 Lamprey Health Care..lnc. . Contractor I;ilials \
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reproductlve and Sexual Health Services

EXHIBIT C Amendment #1

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
- federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual smgle audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

.200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
~annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

. 13.4.  Any. Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardléss
. of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's

risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return-to the Department all payments made undér the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been .
disallowed because of such an exception. ° ; .

! 13.6. The Contractor shall allow the Department to conduct financial audits
~on an annual basis, or 'upon. request by the Department, to ensure
compliance with the funding requirements of this Agreement. The
Contractor shall make available documentation and staff as necessary
to conduct such audits, including but not limited to policy and
procedure manuals, financial records and reports, and dlscussmns
with management and fi inance staff. :

0s
l’ ) L
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BT-1.0 ' . Exhibit C-2, Family Planning Budget Amendment #1
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
' Complete one budget form for each budgat period.
Contractor Name: ‘Lamprey Heaith Care -
- Budget Réquest for: Family Planning
; Budget Period G&C Approval-6/30/2023
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%
-Line ltem Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages- $172,267
2. Fringe Benefits $29,901
3. Consultants $0 .
4. Equipment _
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $0
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. )
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $1,500
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $500]
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $11,000
15.(e) Supplies Office so]
6. Travel ' S . 30
7. -Software '$0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications” - $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) .-
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) 30
Other (please spacify) 30
Other (please specify) $0
9. Subrecipient Contracts $0
Total Direct Costs $215,168
Total Indirect Costs - $0
TOTAL $215,168
DS
Contractor Initials(—\—'
Page 1of 1 ’ Date 75/,
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- BT10 Exhibit C-3, Family Planning Budget Amendment #1
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services !
Complete one budgét form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: Lamprey Haalth Care
Budget Request for: Family Planning
Budget Period 7/1/2023 - 12/31/2023
~ Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%
Line Item’ Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages. ' $95,654
2. Fringe Benefits $16,644
3. Consultants $0
4. Equipment i
. |indirect cost rate cannot ba applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $0
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy 366
5.(d) Supplies - Medical - $5.000
5.(e) Supplies Office $0
6. Travel $0
' 7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - MarketinglCommunications $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training - $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0
Othar (please specify) $0
Other (please spacify) $0
9. Subrecipient Contracts $0]
Total Direct Costs $1 17,.364
Total Indirect Costs 30
TOTAL $117,364

Page 1 of 1
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BT-1.0

Exhibit C-5, TANF Budget Amendment #1
New Hampshire Departm_ent of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care
Budget Request for: TANF. :
Budget Period G&C Approval-6/30/2023
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00% -
" Ling ltem Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1, - Salary & Wages $39,248
2, Fringe Benefits $6,711
3. Consultants e 30
4. Equipment
Indiract cost rata cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $0
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. ]
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical 0]
5.(e) Supplies Office $0
6. Travel $0}.
7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Markeling/Communications $3,115
8. (b) Other - Education and Training 30
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please spacify). $0
Other (please spacify) $0
Other (please spacify) $0
Other (please specify) 30
9. Subrecipient Contracts - $0]
' Total Direcf Costs $49,074]"
. Total Indirect Costs . $0
TOTAL $49,074]

Page 10f 1
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Exhibit C-6, TANF Budget Amendment #1

BT-1.0
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Care
Budget Request for: TANF
Budget Period 7/1/2023 - 12/31/2023
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%
Line Item Pragram Cost - Fundad by DHHS -
1. Salary & Wages $22,895]
2. Fringe Benefils $3,873
3. Consultants $0
4. Equipment _
Indiract cos! rata cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 %0
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. .
5.(a) Supplies - Educational’ $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab- $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0
5.(e) Supplies Cffice $0
6. Travel $0
7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0
8. {c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please specify) 30
Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) 30
Other (please specify) $0
9. Subrecipient Contracts $0
Total Direct Costs $26.768
Total Indirect Costs $0
TOTAL $26,768

Page 10of 1
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BT-1.0 . : ©_ Exhibit C-7, FPAR Budget Amendment #1
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: Lamprey Health Cara
" Budget Request for: FPAR
Budget Period 8/7/2022 - 3/1/2023
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%
Line Item 4 ’ Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $11,359

2. Fringe Benefits $1,959

3. - Consultants $2,600

4. Equipmeht . ; : '

Indirect cost rate cannol be spplied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $1,852

and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational - $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(¢) Supplies - Phammacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $200

6.  Travel $0 »

7. Software. _ $0

8. {(a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0] .
" I8. {b) Other - Education and Training 30

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

«  Other (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0
Other {please specify) $0
Other (please specify) ~ $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts - 34,000
Total Direct Costs $22,070

Total Indirect Costs _$0

TOTAL $22,070

Page 1 of 1
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSH[RE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AN D HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISI ON OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES

Lori A. Shibinette : ’ 29 HAZEN DRI\’E CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner : 603-271-4501 ° 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501
- R . . Fn\ 603- 271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964.
" Patricia M. Tilley ; : www.dhhs.nh, gO\

Director * -

December 7, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State Housse

Concord, New Hampshlre 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health. and Human- Services, Division of Public Health .
Services, to enter into contracts with the Contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed
$2,055,498 to provide reproductive and sexual health services to individuals in need with a
“heightened focus on vulnerable and/or low-income populations, with two (2) renewals options for
two (2) years each, effective January 1, 2022, or-upon Governor and Council approval, whichever
is later, through December 31, 2023. 54% General Funds. 46% Federal Funds:

"Contractor Name Vendor Code - Area Served " Contract Amount
Amoskeag Health | 157274-B001 | Manchester, NH $335,512
Coos County Family Health | 155327-B001 Berlin, NH - $268,152 | -
Concord Feminist Health o " :
Center dib/a Equality | 257562-B001 Concord, NH . ' $558,395
/ ~ Health Center -' .
Joan G. Lovering Health ' '
Cente rg 176132:R001 | Greenland, NH | $336,934
Lamprey Health Care | 177677-R001 Nashua, NH ‘ $431,505
: ' ’ Claremont, '
" Planned Parenthood of Manchester, - -
Northern New England 177528-R002 Keene, Derry, and $125,000
, Exeter.
$ 2,055,498

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and-

- are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
EXPLANATION

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission i lo join communities and families
in providing opportunilics for cilizens to achicue health and independence,
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" His Excellency, Governor Christdpher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council .
Page 2 of 3

The purpose of this request is prowde family planning clinical services, STD and HlV

" counseling and testing, and health education materials to low-income individuals in neéd of sexual

and reproductive health care services. All services shall adhere to the Title X Family Planning

Program regulations, which is a federal grant program dedicated to providing individuals with
comprehensive family plannung and related preventive health services. :

Approxumately 15 000 mdnvnduals wnll be served from January 1, 2022 through December '
" 31,2023

Reproductive health care and family planning are cntlcal public health services that must
be affordable and easily accessible within communities throughout the State. Through this
contract, the Department is partnering with health centers located in rural and urban areas to:
ensure that access to affordable reproductive health care.is available in all areas of the State.-
Family Planning services reduce the health and economic disparities associated with lack of
access to high quality, affordable health care. Individuals with lower levels of education and
income, uninsured, underinsured, individuals of color, and other minority individuals are less likely’
to have access to quality family planning services.

The - Contractors will provide family planning- and reproductive health services to
individuals in need, with a heightened focus on vulnerable and low-income populatlons including,
.but not limited to the uninsured; underinsured; individuals who are eligible for and/or are receiving
Medicaid-services, adolescents; lesbian gay bisexual transgender, and/or questioning (LGBTQ);
individuals in need of confidential services; individuals at or below 250 percent federal poverty
level; refugees; and individuals at risk of unintended pregnancy due to substance abuse.

The effectiveness of the services delivered by the Contractors llsted above will be
measured by monltonng the percentage of:

‘o Clients in the family planning caseload who respectively were under 100% Federal
Poverty Level (FPL) were under 250% FPL, and under 20 years of age.

e Clients served in the family planning program ‘who were uninsured or Medicaid
recipients at the ttme of their last visit.

¢ Family. planning clients less than 18 years of age who received educatlon that
abstinence is a viable method of birth control. .

e Family.planning clients who received STO/HIV reduction educatien.
o Individuals under age 25 screened for Chlamydia and tested positive.
o - Family planning clients of reproductive age who receive preconception counseling

¢+ Women ages 15 to 44 at risk of unintended pregnancy who are provrded a mostly or
- moderately effective contraceptive method.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a -
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department’s website from October 8, 2021
through November 4, 2021. The Department received six {(6) responses that were reviewed and .
scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreements, the parties have the option to
exercise two (2) renewals options, for two (2) years each, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and ' Council approval

Should the Governor. and Council not authonze thls request the sustalnablllty of New
Hampshire's reproductive health care system will be negatively impacted. Not authorizing this
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His Excelleﬁcy Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councul : ¢ - '
Page 30f 3 : ‘

- request could remove the safety net of services that i |mproves birth outcomes prevents unplanned ‘
pregnancy and reduces health dlsparmes which could increase the cost of health care for New
Hampshire citizens. . . .

Source’ of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number CFDA #93 217 FAIN
FPHPAQ06407 and CFDA #93.558, FAIN 2001NHTANF.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program. '

Respectfully submitted,

DocuSigned by:’

o &, (andry

24BAB37EDBEB4SS...

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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05-95-80-902010 )
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF COMM & R

FAIN # FPHPAD08407
. CFDA#93.217 100% Federal.Funds

FUNDER: -U.S. Department of Health and

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Family Planning

SFY 22-23-24 Contracts

Human

Sorvices, Offico of Assistant Secretary of Health
100% Fedoral Fund . :

AMOSKEAG HEALTH - VENDOR #157274-B001

/

6530 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
EALTH SERYV, FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM

Class/

Fiscal
Yoar | Account Class Title Job Number Budget
) Grants for Pub Asst :
SFY 22 |074-500585 |and Rel 90080206 . $32.308
] : Grants for Pub Asst N
SFY 23 .|074-500585 |and Rel 90080206 : $32,308
\ o Grants for Pub Asst : ]
SFY 24 074-500585 |and Rel 90080206 $16,154
’ Subtotal: $80,770
COO0S COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH - VENDOR #16§6327-8001
Fiscal Class / . :
Yoar | Account " Class Title Job Number Budget
Grants for Pub Asst .
SFY 22 :|074-500585 [and Rel 90080206 $26,733|-
. o Grants for Pub Asst - .
SFY 23 |074-500585 jand Rel 90080206 $26,733
Grants for Pub Asst ’
SFY 24 |074-500585 |and Re! 90080206 $13,366
D Subtotal: $66,832] -
Concord Feriinlst Heatth Conter dib/a Equality Health Center - VENDOR #257662-8001
Fiscal Ciass / ] ‘ ;
Yoar | Account Class Title Job Number Budget
Grants for Pub Asst : .
SFY 22 |074-500585 |and Rel 90080205 $39,244
: ; Grants for Pub Asst )
SFY 23 [074-500585 |and Rel 90080206 $39,244
Grants for Pub Asst i :
SFY24 |074-500585 |and Rel 90080206 $19,622
| Subtotal: $98,110




DocuSign Envelope ID: B3CAD929—7A49-4095-A55D-E49229EDOA3D

LAMPREY HEALTH HEALTH CARE - VENDOR #177677-R001

Fiscal Class / -
Yoar Account Class Title Job Numbaer - Budget
. . . |Grants for Pub Asst
SrY 22 . |074-500585 {and Rel "1 90080206 $33.775
Grants for Pub Asst ' - '
SFY 23 |074-500585 |and Rel * 90080206 . $33,775| .
: . |Grants for Pub Asst 5
SFY 24 |074-500585 (and Rel " 90080206 : ; $16,888

Subtotal: : $84,438

JOAN G. LOVERING HEALTH CENTER - VENDOR #175132-R001

Fiscal Class /

Year Account Class Title Job Numbaer Budget
Grants for Pub Asst ot
sFyY 22 - |074.500585 Jand Rel . 90080206 $29,607
. Grants for Pub Asst| - : ] ¢

SFY 23 |074-500585 [and Rel - ; 90080206 -$29,697

Grants for Pub Asst "y :
SFY 24 074-500585 |and Rel 90080206 . ) $14,850
;s Subtotal: ] $74,244

Total Federal

‘|Funds . $404,394

05-96-80-902010-6530 HEALTH AND;SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, -
HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIV, BUREAU.OF COMM & HEALTH SERV, FAMILY PLANNING PROGRAM

100% General Fund

AMOSKEAG HEALTH - VENDOR #1 §7274-8001

Flscal 0la§a ]

" Year | Account Class Title | Job Number Budget
Contracts for Prog : . : .
SFY 22 [102-500731 |Serv. 90080207 $66.,303
. Contracts for Prog .

|sFy 23 |102-500731 |Sarv. . 90080207 $66,303
. . Contracts for Prog ) '
SFY 24 |[102-500731 |Serv. 80080207 $33,151
Subtotal: $166,757

_COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH - VENDOR #155327-8001

Fiscal Class /

Year | Account Class Title Job Number " Budget
: Contracis for- Prog . B :
|SFY 22 [102-500731 Serv. 90080207 - $52,398).
~ |Contracis for Prog | ‘ : .
SFY 23 [102-500731 |Serv. 1 90080207 $52,398
. Contracts for Prog - ’
SFY 24 |102-500731 [Setv. 90080207 ’ . - $26,199

Subtotal: $130,995
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Concord Fominist Heatth Center dit/a Equality Health Cantor- VENDOR #267662-B001

Fiscal Class/ .
Yoear Account Class Title Job Number Budgot
. Contracts for Prog ) :
SFY 22 [102-500731 |Serv. " 90080207 $119,801
: ' ‘ Contracts for Prog
SFY 23 [102-500731 |Serv. 90080207 $119,801
Contracts for Prog i
SFY 24 [102.500731 [Serv. 80080207 $59,901
: Subtotal: $299,603
LAMPREY HEALTH HEALTH CARE - VENDOR #177677-R001
!
Fiscal Class/ .
Yoar Account Class Title Job Numbaer Budget
Contracts for Prog
sFY 22 |102-500731 {Serv. 90080207 $90,333
) Contracts for Prog o
SFY 23 |102-500731 |Serv. 90080207 $90,333
) ’ Contracts for Prog
SFY 24 , [102-500731 [Sarv. 90080207 $45,167
Subtotal: $225,833
JOAN G. LOVERING HEALTH CENTER - VENDOR #175132-R001
Fiscal | Classi , : : o
Yoar Account Class Title Job Number Budget
. Contracts for Prog-
SFY 22 |102-500731 {Serv. . 90080207 $68,372
. Contracts for Prog
SFY 23 1102-500731 |Serv. 90080207 $68,372
: Contracts for Prog
SFY 24 |102-500731 [Serv. 90080207 . $34,186
‘ Subtotal: $170,930
PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND - VENDOR #177528-R002
Fiscal | . Class/ .
" Yoar | Account Class Titlo Job Number Budgot
Contracts for Prog : :
SFY 22 |102-500731 |Serv. ) 90080213 $50,000
: Contracts for Prog
SFY 23 |102-500731 |Serv. . 90080213 $50,000
Contracts for Prog ]
SFY 24 [102-500731 [Serv. 90080213 $25,000
) Subtotal: $126,000.0
Total General )
"|Fund: 1,118,017
TOTAL AU ]
6630 1,622,411
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05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, AND TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES ' '

FAIN# 1801NHTANF

CFDA® 53.668 . :
FUNDER: US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, ADMINISTRATION FOR

‘CHILDREN
& FAMILIES, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES (ACF, TANF)
100% Federal Funds :

AMOSKEAG HEALTH - VENDOR #167274-8001 ) - S

Fiscal | Class/ R | .
Yoar Account Class Title Job Numbor Budget
Grants for Pub Asst
SFY 22 |074-500585 |and Rel 45030203 : $35,594
. : - |Grants for Pub Asst . )
SFY 23 |074-500585 |and Rel 45030203 $35,504
Grants for Pub Asst . .
SFY 24 |074-500585 {and Rel 45030203( : $17,797
; Subtotal: - : $88,985

~~
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COOS COUNTY FAMILY HEALTH - VENDOR #1556327-B001

Fiscal Clags /
Yoar Account Class Title Job Number Budgot
. : Grants for Pub Asst ; .
SFY 22 |074-500585 |and Rel 45030203 $28,130
Grants for Pub Asst ;
SFY 23 |074-500585 |and Rel 45030203] - $28,130
Grants for Pub Asst ‘ .
SFY 24 |074-500585 [and Rel 45030203 $14,085
. ' Subtotal: $70,325
. Concord Fominist Hoalth Contor dih/a Equality Health Center - VENDOR #267562-8001
Fiscal | - Clags/ .
Yoar | Account Class Titlo Job Number Budget
: " Grants for Pub Asst| - .
SFY 22 |074-500585 |and Rel . 45030203 $64.313
Grants for Pub Asst
SFY 23 |074-500585 [and Rel 45030203 $64.313
; Grants for Pub Asst :

SFY 24 |074-500585 |and Rel . 45030203 $32,156
' Subfotal: $160,782
. Z -

LAMPREY HEALTH HEALTH CARE - VENDOR #177677-R001

Fiscal | Class/
" Yaar Account Class Titlo Job Number Budget

: Grants for Pub Asst )
SFY 22 |074-500585 |and Rel 45030203 $48,494
Grants for Pub Asst : :
SFY 23 |074-500585 |and Rel 45030203 $48,404
) Grants for Pub Asst E
SFY 24 |074-500585 |and Rel 45030203 $24,247
Subtotal:. $121,236

JOAN G. LOVERING HEALTH CENTER - VENDOR #176132-R0O01

Fiscal Class/

Yoar Account Class Title Job Rumber Budget

: . Grants for Pub Asst] - :
SFY 22 |074-500585 |and Rel ) 45030203 $36.704
. -|Grants for Pub Asst

SFY 23 |074-500585 |and Rel 1 45030203 $36,704

~ |Grants for Pub Asst

SFY 24 |074-500585 land Rel 45030203 ~ $18,352

Subtotal: $91,760

TOTAL AU ’

6146 $633,087

GRAND j

TOTAL $2,056,498
\
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New Hampshire Dubartmen! of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procuroment
Bureau of Contracts and Procuremeont

1Briitany Foley

Scoring Sheet
ProjectID @ [RFP-2022.0PHS-17-REPRO i
ijocl Title .'R-pmductlvo 2nd Sexual Health Services 1
s " |Maximum Coos Céumy, Phinned
Polnts |Amoskeag Family Heakh  {Equalty Health |Lamprey Perenthoa [The Lavering
Avallable |Heath Services Center - Healhcara d Heagth Center
Tacnnlcll
Experience (Q1) 20 18 12 15 15 15 19
[Overal Capexity (Q2) 35 30 13 25 30 27, 35
Chinical Services (03) 4 23 20 as s 35 40
ema Day U nsertion . i :
Contraception (Q4) 35 28 25 35 25 35 35
Outreach end on (0S) - 20 5 15 13 19 10 . 20
" |staffing Pin (@8) 20 13 18 15 15 15 20
@n 25 ‘15 16 17 16 10 20
Data Requirements (Q8) - 10 7 8 7 8 5 9
Gually Improvement - f
and Capacily (Q9) 25 22 23 18 20 25 25
Fedomanca Measures s
{Appendix M) (Q10) 30 20 22 15 20 5 30.
-T 260 399 182 195 203 182 253
TO'I"AL POINTS 260 191 182 188 203 182 253
:"—"_-"'—"""—“_'—i o
1 Haley Johnston | Progam Specialist IV :
2,
‘Rhonda Slgﬂ 5 A mn
, ' H [
al I 1 t
! ‘Healh Prometion Advisor
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: FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Reproductive and Sexual Health Services (RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
~ be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

. AGREEMENT :
The State of New Hanipshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

G.ENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION. .
i.1 State Agency Name ’ . 1.2 State Agency Address

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services' | 129 Pleasant Street
' Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name . ' ‘| 1.4 Contractor Address
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. 207 S Main Street
) : . Newmarket, NH 03857 .
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date - - 1.8 Price Limitation
Number : - R ‘ i
.05_-095-090_—90201 0-5530 | December 31,:2023 $431,505
(603) 659-2494 ‘ 05-095-045-450010-6146 ' 5
1.9 Conlracting Officer for State Agency ‘ . 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Nathan D. White, Director o . (603) 271-9631
.11 Contractor Signature . _ 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory .
: Docqslgncd by: . Greg white . CEO
Date: 12/3/2021 »
tale Agency Signature 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
~DBocuSigned by: . ' Date: 1'2/3/20é1 | Patricia M. Tilley Director

P‘Xm}.fu M. Tl“(.\[ . .
¢N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: ) w ' o Director, On;

1.16 Approval By the Attorney General (Fo}'m, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

DocuSignad by: : A 12/3/2021
By: D qu[s{'ofﬂw Mays o

117 Apprm./‘a!' By the Goverrior and Executive Council ﬁfa;pplicable)

G&C Item number: ' ' G&C Meeting Date:

DS

. Page1of4 , . ALY |
o Contractor Initials
' Date
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. .The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State”), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
{“Contractor”} to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly,

‘described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated -

herein by reference (“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Exccutive

" Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,

unless no such approval is required, in whicli case the Agreement

shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services' prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the. Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any - obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.

Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date .

specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.,
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement . to the

contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,

without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federa! legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the

appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and ‘
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or isi .
“part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments

hereunder in excess of such avaitable appropriated funds. In the

event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the -

State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds

become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or’

terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LlMlTATlON/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all

.expenses, of whatever nature-incurred by the Contractor in the

performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

Page 2 of 4

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to .offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those:
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA.80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
‘OPPORTUNITY.

_6.1 In connéction with the performance of the Services, the

Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with alt federal executive orders, rules, regulations-
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
*The Contractor shall also comply with all apphcable intellectual

. property laws, ‘
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, refigion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit lhe State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the-covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense prowde all personnel
necessary to perform the Serviees. The Contractor warrants that
alt personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and- shall be properly licensed and
otherwise anthorized to do so under all applicable laws.

*7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of

this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and

_shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or

corporation with whom it is engaged in a-combined effort to -
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State eimployee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
“administration or performance of this Agrecment This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Coantracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning. the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

. Contractor Initials
127372021

Date " """
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
_ Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default”™);

8.1.1 failure to perform “the Servnces satisfactorily or on

schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a writien notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,’
lerminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of :

Default and suspending afl payments to be made under this

" Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

- 8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of

Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages thc Statc suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate . the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.
8.3, No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hcreof' after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard 1o that Event of Default, or any subsequent- Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINAT]ON
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Statc may, at its sole

discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or |

in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State’s discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3 of 4

submit to the- State a Transition Plan for services under thc
Agreement,

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION,

10.} As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video

-récordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic

representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or.unfinished.

10.2 All data and any pmpcny which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and,
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chaptcr 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure ofdata requires
prior wnttcn approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor-an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or

" other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For pufposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substamially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State,
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shal! not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which itisnota

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omis loé&f the

Contractor Initialé
Date” "> 7" """ 57 4202l
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Contractor, or- subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not’
. be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregomg, nothing herem
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
‘immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the

termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall requirc any
subcontractor or assignee o obtain and maintain in force, thc

following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate

or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than

80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of Néw Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and

issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement,
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified

- in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior lo the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by

reference.

15. WORKERS' COM PENSATION

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, ccruﬁes
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt -
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (' Worke/s

Conpensation").

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the reqmremcnts
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers’ Compensation -in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer .
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers’
~ Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable ‘renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be rcsponsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claimor benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New- Hampshire

Workers' Compensation laws in connection with
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time:
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office -addressed to thc parties at the addresses gnvcn in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. '

17. AM ENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns, The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof. '

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict |
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control ‘

20 THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto-do not mtend to

" benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be

construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference. 3

23. SEV ERABlLlTY. In the event any of the provisions of this

Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state’or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This- Agreement, which may be

executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the. entire agreement and
understanding between the pafties, and supersedes all prior

- agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof.
DS
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Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1,

1.2,

1.3

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05 La_m'prey Health Care, Inc, ) Contractor Initials _
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Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by addlng
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) tlmes for two (2)

_additional years each time, from the Completion Date, contingent upon

satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Paragraph 12, AssngnmentlDelegatlon/Subcontracts is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows: .

'12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the

Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor

compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written.
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed

and how corrective action shall. be managed if the subcontractor's

performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective

action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with

a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify

the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance. .

Add Paragraph 25, Requirements for Family Plan'ning Projects, as follows:
25. The 'antractor shall comply with all of the following provisions:

25.1 No'state funds shall be used to subsidize abortions, either directly
or indirectly. The family planning project will permit the
Commissioner of the Department of Health and Human Services,
or his or her designated agent or delegate, to inspect the financial
records of the family planning project to monitor. compllance with
this requirement.

25.2 At the end of each fiscal year, the Commissioner shall certify, in
writing, to the Governor and Council that he or she personally, or
~through a designated agent or delegate;, has reviewed the
expenditure of funds awarded to a family planning project and that
no state funds awarded by the Department have been used to
provide abortion services. .

253 If the Commissioner fails to make such certification or if the

' Governor and Executive Council, based on evidence presented by

the Commissioner in his or her certification, find that state funds
awarded by the Department have been used to provide abortion [;»
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services, the grant remp&ent shall .either: (a) be found to be in
. breach of the terms of such contract, grant or award of funds and
forfeit all right to receive further funding; or (b) suspend all
operations until such time as the state funded family project is
physically and financially separate from any reproductive health
facility, as defined in RSA 132:37.

:Ds
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. . General Terms

Scope of Services

08

(@

1 .

1.1. Forthe purposes of this Agreement the Contractor shall provide all services in

" accordance with the Title X Family Planning Program, which is a federal grant
program dedicated to providing individuals with comprehensive family plannmg
and related preventive health services. . b )

1_.2. For the purposes of this Agreeme.nt, all references to days shall mean business
days. .

- 1.3. The Contractor shall not utilize any funds provnded under this Agreement for
: abortion services. .
~ 2. Statement of Work_ _

. 2.1. The Contractor shall provude family planning and reproductive health services
to individuals in need of reproductive and sexual health services with a
heightened focus on vulnerable and low-income populations lncludlng, but not
limited to: ’

2.1.1. Uninsured.
2.1.2. Underinsured. | | | |
. 21.3. Individuals who are eligible and/or are receiving Medicaid services.
-2.14. . Adolescents.
2.1.5. Lesbian Gay Bisexual Transgender Questlomng (LGBTQ) ‘
~ 246.  Those in need of Confidential Servnces as defned in 42 CF.R. §
. ; 59.11. ,
24.7. Indlwduals at or below 250 percent federal poverty.level. \
2.1.8. .Refugees ' '
2.1.9. Persons at risk of unintended pregnancy due to substance abuse
' 2.2. The Contractor shall provude services to a minimum of 1 250 mdwnduals each -
v State Fiscal Year of the Agreement. .
2.3: The Contractor shall provide family planning and reproductlve health serwces .
that include, but are not Ilmlted to: : .
2 3 1, Clinical services. - ,
2.3.2. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) and Human Immunodeflmency'
} Virus (HIV) testing. .
2.3.3. STD and HIV counselmg
2.3.4. Sexual health education materials including tqpics on sterilization, STI
prevention, contraception and abstinence.
RFP-2022.DPHS-17-REPRO-05 Lamprey Health Care, Inc, v Contractor Inilials )
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2.3.5. . Preconception Health for all individuals of childbearing age.

,24

The Contractor shall make reasonable efforts to collect charges from chents

- without jeopardizing client confidentiality in accordance with Attachment 1, Title

25,

2.6.

X Sub-Recipient Fee Policy and Sliding Fee Scales.

The Contractor shall determine the eligibility of individuals for services under
this Agreement in accordance with applicable federal and state laws
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and’ procedures

The Contractor shall update their slldmg fee scales/discount of services in

accordance =~ with the release of Health Resources and Services -

. Human Services. New sliding fee scales/discount of services must be

2.7,

2.

- 2.10.

B-1.0

2.9.

calendar. _
The Contactor shall provide documentation verlfylng proof of an established:

Administration’s (HRSA's) annual Federal Poverty Guidelines, effective every -
‘February 1 of year each or as posted by the U.S. Department of Health &

. submitted every March of this Agreement in accordance with the reportrng ’

Electronic Medical Record (EMR) to the Department within thirty (30) days of

Governor and Council approval of this Agreement.

The Contractor shall work directly with the Department’s database Contractor.

to ensure full integration of their EMR with the Department's FPAR 2.0
compliant Family Planning database no later than June 30, 2022. ‘

The Contactor shall manually enter FPAR 2.0 data elements as required by
federal and any state required data elements into the Department's Family

Planning database starting January 1, 2022 until their EMR is fully integrated, -

but no later than the June 30, 2022.

The Contractor shall work with the Department's Contractor for the techmcal
assistance required to meet integration requirements between the EMR and

- the NH Family Planning Program data base system for FPAR 2. 0

211,

Clinical Services

2.11.1. The-Contracter shall provide reproductive and sexual health-clinical

services in compliance with all applicable federal and state guidelines
including the New Hampshire Title X Family Planning Clinical Services
Guidelines (Attachment 2).

2.11.2. The Contractor shall follow and maintain estabhshed written internal

protocols, policies, practices and clinical family planning guidelines that
~ comply with Title X rules, and will provide copies of said materials to
the Department upon request.

'“2.1 1.3.  The Contractor shall ensure all MDs, APRNs, PAs, nurses and/or any

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05 - : Lamprey Health.Care. Inc. Contractor Initials _
S 12/3/2021
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New Hampshire Family Planni'ng Clinical Services Guideli_né,s prior to
.providing any.services under this Agreement. -

2.11.4. The Contraétor shall submit the New Hampshire Family Planning

. Clinical Services Guidelines signed signature page to the Department

' for review and signature within thirty (30) days of Governor and Council
approval of this Agreement, and on an annual basis by August 31.

2.11.5. The Contractor shall ensure any staff subsequently added to provide

- Title X services also sign the New Hampshire Family Planning Clinical

Services Guidelines signature page prior to providing direct care and/or
education. - : -

. 2.11.6. The Contractor shall ensure reproductive and sexual health medical
services are performed under the direction of a Medical Director who is
a licensed physician with special training or experience in family
planning in accordance with 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(6).

2.11.7. The Contractor shall provide a broad rangé of contraceptive methods.
_including, but not limited to:

- 2.11.7.1. Intrauterine device (IUD).
211.7.2. Contfacept_ive Implant (Nexplanon).
2.11.7.3. Contraceptive pills. E |
2.11.7.4. Contraceptive injection (Depo-Provera).
2.11.7.5. Condoms. o |
2.11.7.6. Fertility awareness based methods (FABM).. -

2.11.8. The Contractor shall provide STD and HIV counseling and testing in
- compliance with the most up-to-date Centers for Disease Control and .
Prevention (CDC) STD Treatment Guidelines in Attachment 2, New
Hampshire Title X Family Planning Clinical Services Guidelines.

2.11.9. The Contractor shall provide sterilization counseling and referral
= services to individuals seéking sterilization services. ’

2.12. Health Education and Outreach

2.12.1. . The Contractor shall provide health information and educational
materials in accordance with Attachment 3, Title X Community
-Participation, Education and Project Promotion, Section 1. Advisory

- Commiittee and Information.& Educational (I&E) Materials.

2.12.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department an I&E policy for their
- agency by August 31 of each SFY or as directed by the Department.

2.12.3. The Contactor must sign and return the' Community Participation,
- Education and Project Promotion Agreement in Attachment 3 to the[ é‘a)

RFP-2022-DPH5-17-REPRO-QS Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Contractor Initials
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Department w1th|n thlrty (30) days of Governor and Council approval of
this Agreement.

2.12.4. The Contractor shall ensure I&E materials are sunable for the
populations and communities for which they are intended. Health
- education material topics may include, but are not limited to: -

2.12.4.1. Sexually transmitted diseases (STD).
2.12.4.2. Contraceptive mefhods.
2.12.4.3. Pre-conception care.
2.12.4.4. Achieving pregnancyfinfertility.
2.12.4.5. Adolescent reproductive health.
'2.12.4.6. Sexual violence.
2.12.4.7. Abstinence. |
_,2.12.&.8. Pap tests/cancer screenings. g
21249 Substance misuse services.
2.12.4.10.Mental health.

.2.12.5. The Contractor shall establish an I&E Committee and Advisory Board
comprised of individuals within the targeted population .or/or
communities for which the materials are intended. The I&E Committee”
and Advisory Board, which may be the same group of individuals, must

" be broadly representative in terms of demographic factors including:

2.12.5.1. Race;

2.12.5.2. Color;

2.12.5.3. National origin; .
2.12.5.4. Handicapped condition; -
2.12.5.5. -Sex, and

2.12.5.6. Age.

2.12.6. The Contractor shall ensure the I&E Committee reviews alI lnformahonf
and educational materials at a minimum of two (2) times per year to '
verify:

2.12.6.1. Materials are up to date c'>n medical accuracy; and

2.12.6.2. Materials 'are relevant and suitable for to the targeted
populations identified in Subsection 1.1, in accordance with
the Title X Family Planning I&E Advisory and Community
Participation Guidelines/Agreement (Attachment 3).

12/3/2021
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\

2127

2.12.8.

2.12.9.

2.12.10.

2.12.11.

2.13. Work Plan

B-1.0

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05 ' Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Contractor Initials

The Contractor shall ensure the Advusory Board assesses the Title X

Reproduction and Sexual Health Program .at-a minimum of two (2) -

times a year to ensure the program is meeting all goals and objectives
in accordance with the Title X Family Planning I&E Advusory and

- Community Participation Guidelines/Agreemenit.

The Contractor shall ensure:

2.12.8.1. The'|&E Committee and Advisory Board meet two (2) tlmes
per year at a minimum.

2.12.8.2. Health education and tnformatlon materials are revuewed by

the Advisory Board in accordance with Title X Family

Planning |&E Advisory - and Commumty Pamcnpatlon_

Guudellnes/Agreement (Attachment 3).

2.12.8.3 Health education materials meet current medical standards
~ and have a documented process for dlscontlnumg any out-
of-date materials.

The Contractor shall submit a listing of the I&E materials to the

Department annually on a set date as determined by the Department.

Information listed must include, but is not limited to:

2.12.9.1. Title of the I&E material,

2.12.9.2. Subject. |

2. 12 9.3. Advisory Board approval date. -

2.12.9.4. Publisher.

2.12.9. 5. Date of publication. _
The Contractor shall support program outreach and promotlonal
activities. utilizing .Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)
8, NH FPP TANF Policy. -

The Contractor shall provide program outreach and promotlonal.

~ activities or events utilizing: the Temporary Assistance for Needy

Families (TANF) funding included in this Agreement. Qutreach and
promational activities/events may include, but are not limited to:

2.12.11.1.0Outreach coordination.
2.12.11.2.Community table events.
2.12.11.3.Social media.
2.12.11.4.Outreach to schools.

Page § of 12 : Date
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. 2.13.1. The Contractor shall develop a Reproductive and Sexual Health
Services Work Plan for Year One (1) of the Agreement utilizing the Title
"X Reproductive and Sexual Health Services Work Plan Template
(Attachment 4), and submit the Work Plan to the Department for
approval within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date of this Agreement. -

2.13.2. - ' The Contractor shall:

. 2.13.2.1. Track and report Reprodu‘ctive_'and Sexual Health Services
Work Plan Qutcomes;

2.13.2.2. Revise the Work Plan accordingly; and .

2.13.2.3. Submit an updated Work Plan to the Department no later
than August 31, 2022 for Year Two (2) of the Agreement.

2.14. Site: Visits

214.1. The Contractor shall permlt the Department to conduct Site Visits upon
“request but no less frequently. than annually in order to momtor full .
compliance with Title X Program regulations, which includes but is not
limited to ensuring abortion services are not provided as a method of
family planning under this Agreement. The Contractor shall:

2.14.1.1. Complete the pre-site visit form to be provided by the
- , ' Department in advance of each scheduled visit;

2.14.1.2. Pull medical charts; and
2.14.1.3. Pullfinancial documents for auditing purposes.

2.15. Training , . _

2.15.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Director attends in-person and/or web-
based meetings and trainings facilitated by the Department upon
request. Meetings will include, but are not limited to, a minimum'of two
(2) Family Planning Agency Directors Meetings per calendar year. ‘

2.15.2. The Contractor shall ensure all family planning staff complete the Title
X Orientation e-learning courses, including:

2.15.2.1. *Title X Orientation: Program Reqwrements for Title, X
Funded Family Planning Projects,” and

2. 15 2.2. “Introduction to Reproductive Anatomy and Physmlogy

2.15.3. The Contractor shall ensure all famrly plannlng staff complete yearly
Title X training(s) on topics mcludrng

2. 15 3.1. .Mandatory Reporting for abuse, rape, incest, and human

trafficking; bs
' il
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- 2.15. 3 2. Femily Involvement and Coercibn'
2.15. 3 3. Non- Dlscrtmlnatory Services; and
2.15.34. Sexually- Transmitted Dlsease

2.15.4. The Contractor shall ensure all famlly planning clinical staff participate
in the yearly STD webinar training conducted by the Department and -
keep records of staff participation.

2.15.5. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing STD and HIV counseling
are trained utilizing CDC models or tools. :

2.15.6. The Contractor shall ensure all family planning clinical staff participate
in the yearly STD webinar training conducted by the Department and
keep records of staff participation. The training can be utilized for HRSA
Section 318 eligibility requiremeénts, if applicable. The Contractor shall:

2.15.6.1. Ensure a minimum of two (2) clinical staff attend the “live”
webinar on the scheduled date, and ~

2.15.6.2. Ensure clinical staff who did not attend the “live” webinér
- view a recording of the training within thirty (30) days of the -
“live” webmar as avatlable

2.15.6.3. Submit an. Attendance Sheet that mcludes attendee
signatures to the Department within thirty (30) days of the
s “live” webinar, as available. ;

2.15.7. The Contractor shall keep and maintain staff training logs available to
the Department upon request. .

- 2_.16.. Staffin ng

- 2¥16.1.  The Contractor shall ensure employees and subcontractors providing
: direct services to clients under .this Agreement have ‘undergone a
criminal background.check and have no convictions for.crimes that
-Trepresent evidence of behavior that could endanger clients served

under this Agreement. :

2.16.2. The Contractor shall have at a minimum one (1) clinical provider on
staff, available on-site at each clinic location, who is proficient in the
insertion and removal of Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC),

- 1UD and Implant; and provide documentation verifying proficiency to the
Department within thirty (30) days of Governor and Council approval of
this Agreement and on an annual basis no later than August 31, or as
directed by the Department. '

'2.16.3. The Contractor shall provide and maintain quatit”ed staffing to perform
and carry out all services in this Exhibit B, Scope of Work The

.Contractor shall: _ 0s

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05 Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Contractor [nitials
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21631 Ensure staff unfamiliar with the NH Famrly Planning
Program data system currently in use by the NH Family
Planning Program (FPP) attend a required one (1) day
orientation/training Webinar conducted by the Department S
database Contractor. :

- 2.16.3.2. Ensure staff are supervised by a Medical Director, with
specialized training and experience in family planmng, in .
accordance with Section 1.10.6 above. :

. 2.16.3.3. Ensure staff have received appropriate training and possess '
: the proper education, experience and orientation to fulfil the
requirements in this RFP and maintain documentatlon
verifying this requirement is met.

2.16.3.4. Maintain up-to-date records and documentation for staff
requiring licenses and/or certifications and submit’
documentation to the Department upon request and no less
than annually:

2.16.4. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing, via a written letter
submitted on agency Ietterhead when: ’

2.16.4.1.1. Hmng new _staff essential to carrymg ‘out
contracted services within thirty (30) days of
hire. include a copy of the mdrvrdual S resume.

2.16.4.1.2 A critical position is vacant for more than thirty .
(30) days; and

21641 3. There is not adequate staffing available to
. perform required services for more than thirty
(30) days. -

2.16.4.1.4. If aclinical site is closed for more than thirty (30)
.. days and/or is permanently closed. :

3, Exhlbrts Incorporated -

3.1. - The Contractor shall use 'and disclose Protected Health Informatlon in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
. Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act; (HIPAA) ‘of 1996, and 'in
accordance with the attached Exhibit |, Busuness Assomate Agreement, which

has been executed by the parties.

3.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhlblt K, DHHS Information = Security
Requrrements

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05 . . Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Contractor Initials
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hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4 Reporting and Deliverables
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4.1. The Contractor shall develop and submit the reports as specified in Attachment
5, Family Planning Reportmg Calendar to the Department on time, in
accordance with the dates in the Reporting Calendar. Reports and reportmg
activities include but are not limited. to:

4.1.1.

41.2.

4.1.3.

414,

4.1.5.

416,

Tracking and reporting Family Plannmg and Sexual Health Services

3.3. The Contractor shall eomply with ,aII' 'Exh'ibits D through K, which are attached .

performance.indicators and measures usmg Data Trend Tables (DTT) '

and work plans.

Developing and submitting an Outreach and Educat_ion Report to the
Department on an annual basis no later than August 31, or as specified
by the Department, which outlines the program promotlon activities and

-events mcludlng. but not Ilmxted to:

4.1.21. Outreach to schools.

-~ 4.1.2.2.  Community resource programs.

4.1.23. Social media. _
4.1. 2.4, Community table events

Collectmg and reporting general data con31stent wuth current Title X
Federal requirements through the NH FPP data system

Populations Affairs and the Department beginning January 1, 2022 or
the date the official elements are released. (See Attachment 6, FPAR
Data Elements — SAMPLE DRAFT).

Submitting the required FPAR Data Elements to the FPP Data System
Contractor electronically through a secure platform on an ongoing
basis, but no less frequently than monthly by the tenth. (10th) day of
each month.

Submitting any requested FPAR d'ocuments to the-Department. each
State Fiscal Year of the Agreement, in accordance with the Reporting

. Collecting FPAR 2.0 Data Elements as required by the Office of .

Calendar, in order for the Department to monitor and report program .

performance to the Office of Populatlon Affairs (45 CFR §742 and 45
CFR §923).

4.2. The Contractor shall' develop and submit an Annual Performance Measure

Outcomes Report to the Department on an annual basis no later than August.

31, or as directed by the Department. -
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4.3. The Contractor shall provide récords of employee salaries and wages that
 accurately reflect all work performed to the Department upon request. Such
- records shall include, but are not limited to:

4.3.1. All activity(s) for which each employee is compensated and
432 The total amount of time spent performmg each actrwty
Performance Measures

5.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance through the reqwred
Reporting and Deliverables in Section 3, and the Performance Measures
included in Attachment 7, Family Planning Performance Indicators and
Performance Measures Definitions. : :

- 5.2." The Contractor shall-provide other key data and metrics including 'client—level,'

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05 Lamprey Health Care, Inc. : Contractor Inilials

B-1.0

~ demographic, performance, and service data upon Department request.

- Additional Terms

+6.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

6.1.1. The Contractor agrees- that to the extent future state or federal
legislation. or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
"expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achleve
compliance therewith.

6.1.2.Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services '

6.1.3.. The Contractor. shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement

~ Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and

" language assistance services to be provided to ensure meamngful.

. .access to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English’

proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals

who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who have speech
challenges

6. 2 Credlts and Copyright Ownership

6.2.1.-All documents, notices, press Teleases, research reports -and other
materials prepared during-or. resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshlre Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided .in part by the State of New -
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were- -available or
required, eg the United States Depattment of Health and Human -

Servrces 05
@

12/3/2021
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6.2.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
- prior approval from the Department before prmtmg, productlon '
distribution or use.

6.2.3. The Department shall retain copynght ownershrp for any and all orlglnal
matenals produced, including, but not limited to:

6.2.3.1. Brochures.
6.2.3.2. Resource directories.
"~ 6.2.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
6.2.3.4. Posters.
6.2.3.5. Reports. .

6.2.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under thev )
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.”

6.3. Operatron of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

6.3.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. if any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation .of the said facility or the.
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions "of each such license or permit. In connection with the -
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities shall comply with
‘all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with Iocal building and zonmg codes, by-laws and
regulations.

7. Records
7.1. The. Contractor shall keep records that mclude but are not limited to:

7.1.1. Books, records documents and other electronic or phyS|caI data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
-Contractor in the performance of the Contract and all income recerved
or collected by the Contractor. .

7.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance 'with accounting
' procedures and practices, which sufficiently. and properly refiect all

- such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, [Ds
RFP—2022-DPH8-17-REPBO-05 Lamprey Health Care, Ipc. ’ ‘ : ' Contractor Initials ; i
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and to include, without limitatidn, all fedgers, books; records, and

" original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, -

vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind

contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested

or required by the Department.

7.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services-and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
servrces :

7.1.4. Medlcal records on each patient/recipient of services.

72 During the term of this Agreement and. the period for retention hereunder the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and

any of their designated- representatnves shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for- purposes of audit,

examination, excerpts and transcripts.-Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon’

payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the

Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement

. and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided

however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department

shall disallow any: expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder-the

Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Page 12 of 12 _ Date
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1.

1.1

Payment Terms

This Agreement is funded by:

1.2.

48%. Federal Funding from the Family Planning Services Grants, as
awarded on March 26, 2021, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Office of Assistant Secretary of Health, NH Family
Planning (Title X) Program, CFDA #93.217, FAIN FPHPA006407 and

from U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for

Children & Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (ACF,
TANF) as -awarded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Administration for Children & Families, Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families (TANF), CFDA #93.558, FAIN 2001NHTANF.

52% State General funds.

2. The Contractor shall not utilize any funds provrded under this Agreement for
abortion services. ;

RFP-ZOZZ-DPHS-17-REPRO-05. e Lamprey Health Care, Inc. . Contractor Initials

C-1.2

For the purposes of this Agreement:

3.1.
3.2.

3.3.

The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecrplent in -

accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

" The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in

accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

The de minimis lndrrect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with
2 CFR §200.414.

Payment shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be-in accordance with
the Department approved budget line items in Exhibit C-1 - Family Plannmg
Funds Budget through Exhibit C-6, TANF Budget.

The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and

_requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

\ ' Page 1°of 3 Date
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6.

10.

In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and -

emailed to DPHSContractBilling@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to: -

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street ’
Concord, NH 03301

The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty '(30) days
of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to- approval of the submitted invoice and

if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General

Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement. .

_ The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provaswns _

Block 1.7 Completnon Date.

The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Serv;ces in
compliance. with funding requirements.

The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in.

- whole or in part in the event of non-compliance wuth the terms and condmons

1.

12.

13.

14.

RFP—ZOZZ-DPHS-W—REPR_O-OS Lamprey Health Care, Inc. . Contractor |nitials _____
: 12/3/202 l

C-1.2

of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

Should the Contractor not meet the apprommate number of clients served in
Year One (1) of the Contract Period, as specified in Subsection 1.2 of Exhibit

B. Scope of Services, the Department may adjust the State Fiscal Year funding .
amount for Year Two (2) of the Contract Period through a Contract Amendment _

subject to Governor and Council ‘approval. .

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provaded or if the said services or products have not been

satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and condltlons of this

agreement.

Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts .within the price limitation and - adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the

Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without 4

“obtaining approval of the .Governor and Executive Council, If needed and -

justified.
Audits

14.1. 'The . Contractor * must email an annual audit to

melissa.s.morin@dhhs.nh.gov if any of the following conditions exist:

Page 2 0f 3 ) . Date
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14, 1 1. Condmon A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

14.5.

14.6.

federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the

requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lil-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3.. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and reqmred
: " by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulatlons to
submit an annual financial audlt :

If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual smgle audit

- performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant(CPA) to the

Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the réquirements of 2 CFR Part

200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Reqwrements for Federal awards.

If Condition B of Condition C exusts the Contractor shall submlt an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA thhm 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

Any- Contractor that receives an amount equal to .or gfeater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless

of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual-

financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department’s
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the

" Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for-any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
" Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
dlsallowed because of such an exceptlon

The Contractor shall allow the Department to conduct financial audits

on an annual basis, or upon request by the Department, to ensure

- compliance with the funding requirements of this Agreement. The
Contractor shall make available documentation and staff as necessary
to conduct such audits, including but not limited to policy and
procedure manuals, financial records and reports, and dlscussmns
with management and fnance staff.

RFP-2022-DPHS-17-REPRO-05 . Lamprey Health Care, Inc, - . Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION'REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQU!REMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41

" U.8.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to hiave the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sectlons
1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND' HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS |
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS :
"US DEPARTMENT - OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free = -
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1988 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of,the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by infereénce, sub-grantees and sub-.
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-freé workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee {(and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fisca! year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the. agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or .
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: .

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Servrces
129 Pleasant Street, .

Concord, NH 03301-65056

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful. manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohrbrted in the grantee’s
~ workplace and specrfymg the actions that will be taken against employees for vrolatron of such
: prohibition;
- 1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
: 1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; .
1.2.2." The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs and
1.2.4. = The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse vrolataons
. occurring in the workplace,;
1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
. given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);.
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that asa condmon of
employment under-the grant, the employee will - : .
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
" . . 1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction; .

1.5. - Notifying the agency in wrlllng within ten calendar days after recervrng notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. .
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federaolsagency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free . ) Vendor Initials

Workplacs Requirements . 12/3/2021
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Nouce shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant; '
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30-calendar days of recewmg notice under -
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
~ 1.6.1. Taking appropriate personne! action against such an ‘employee, up to-and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
. amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to par’nclpate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assxstance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal State, or Iocal health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maihtain a drug-free workplace through
E :mplementatlon of paragraphs 1.1, 1 2,13,1.4,1.5 and 1.6. -

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the slte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (’Iist-each Iccation)

Check 0 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

12/3/2021
Date

. B s
Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free : Vendor initials L
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' CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cemf' cation:

US DEPARTMENT ‘OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):

. *Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under-Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX
*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

* The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
~any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member -
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
_ connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperat(ve agreement (and by specific menhon
. sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have béen paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting ta influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of @ Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersngned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with tts instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhlblt E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the Ianguage of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperatlve agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certlfy and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a matenal representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is.a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
cenification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

OocuSigned by:

12/3/2021 (Neide,
Date , J white
Title: CEO
:’ D$
Exhibit E ~ Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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' CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
. Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12649 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, .
- Suspension, and Other Responsnblllty Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's .
representative, as identified i in Sectxons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the followmg
Certifi catlon

lNSTRUCTlONS FOR CERTIFICATION .
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospectlve prlmary part|C|pant is prowdlng the
certlf' cation set out below.

2. The inability of a perseon to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
- of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannct provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
- . determination whether-{o enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary .
participant to fumish a certification or an explanatron shall d|squaI|fy such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is @ material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
" when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an errongous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4, The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to:
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has bécome erroneous by reason of changed
cwcumstances

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered

transaction,” “partlmpant " “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “pnncnpal " “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions. -

6. -The prospectwe primary pammpant agrees by submlttlng this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person wha is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction; unless authorized by DHHS. ,

7. The prospective prlmary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regardmg Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in aII lower tier covered
transactions and in all sohmtatlons for lower tler covered transactions.

8. A participantin a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, mehglble or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records o
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and [ o8

Exhiblt F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters 12/3/2021 -
CUIDHHSN10T13 Page 1 of 2 . ‘Date
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. ;

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and ltS
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

. voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; .
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
* connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or Iocal)
" transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commnssnon of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)({b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period precedung this application/proposal had one or more pubhc
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify ta any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective partncupant shall attach an explanatlon to this proposal (contract).

) LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS .
- 13. By sxgnlng and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract) the prospectwe lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without madification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all sol:cxtatnons for lower tier covered transactxons

Contractor Name:

3 . DocuSlgnodby
12/3/2021 ' g
'Date h1 te

Title:

. Ds
Exhibit F =Certification Regardlng Debarment, Suspension Contractor lni!ialsL
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.

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH‘REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
- FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provrsrons agrees by signature of the Contractor s
representative as identified in Sectlons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followmg
certification: ,

Contractor will compty, and will requrre any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any appl:cable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Sectron 3789d) which prohlbnts
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national arigin, and sex, The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delirquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
~ reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. .Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act mcludes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohlblts recuplents of federal fi nancual
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national ongln |n any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 us.C. Sectlon 794), which prohibits recrplents of Federal financial
assistance from dlscrlmmatmg on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
" services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34) which prohlblts
discrimination and ensures equal apportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local -
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportatlon

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
dlscnmmatron on the baS|s of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106- 07) which prohibits drscnmmatlon on the
. basis of age in programs or activities recelvmg Federal financial assistance. It does notinclude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regutatlons 0JJDP Grant Programs) 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and nelghborhood organizations; ,

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith- Based"
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National-Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted- January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprlsal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with. federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termnnatlon of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment- _
——08
Exhibit G T l AN
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a ﬁhding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, naticnal crigin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Serwces and
to the Department of Health and Human Serwces Office of the Ombudsman,

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General P-rovisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sectlons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification; ; .

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the prowsnons
indicated above.

‘Contractor Name:

. ; \

12/3/2021
-Date

) . o o5
ExhibitG | E ' éw -
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Envirorimental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or’leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments by Federal grant, contract, loan, or.loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by. -
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to-comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penaity of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative' compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followmg
certification: :

1. By signing 'and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable effdrts-to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1894,

Contractor Name:

) ) . . . A DocuSigned by:
12/3/2021 | réy% (Meite
Date . : Name: breg white

- Title:  gq

: C Ds
Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and

with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45

CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, ‘Business '
'Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that

receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered -
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. =~

(1) Definitions. )
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
‘Code of Federal Regulations. :

b. “Busmess Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45 Code.
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘“Covered Entity’ has the meamng given such term in sectlon 160 103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulatrons

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as (he term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Sec’uon 164.501.

‘e. "Data -Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregat;on" in 45 CFR
, ,Sectron 164.501.

- f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR, Sectron 164. 501

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology fof Ecanomic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountabnlrty Act of 1996 ‘Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identnf able Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as,the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who quallf ies as a personal representatlve in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health
" Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States .
Department of Health and Human Services. .

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receivﬁi
PAIY

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 . ’ Exhibit ( Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Porability Act
Business Assaciate Agreement . 12/3/2021
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“Regunred by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

] Secretam shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Servuces or

his/her de5|gnee

. "“Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electromc Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not N
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,

. unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by>

a standards developlng orgamzat:on thatis accredlted by the American Natronal Standards

_ Instrtute

(2)

' Other Definitions - All terms not othenmse defined herein shall have the meanmg

estabhshed under 45 C.F. R Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HtTECH
Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmrt Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a (/iolation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
1, For the proper management and admmlstratlon of the Busnness Associate,
Il 'As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
n.: For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered -
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose'PHI to a
third party, Business Associate ‘must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose.for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreemenit from such third party to notify Business

- Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach. Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business. Assocrate shall not, unless such'disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under, Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response toa
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying ™
Covered Entity so that Covered Enmy has-an opportunity to object to the drsclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busfe é&’

32014 ' . Exhibit t ‘ Contraclor Inilials
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Associate shall refrain from drsclosrng the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. . , _ T :

If the,Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to

be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security -
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PH! in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Oblig ations and Activities of Business Associate,

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health informatior not prévided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured .
protected health information and/or any security incident that. may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall incluide, but not be
limited to: : ‘

o The nature and extent of the protected health information mvolved mcludlng the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification; .

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the

- disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acqurred or wewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health mformatlon has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate.shall comblete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entlty

The Business Assocrate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Securrty, and

. Breach Notlf' cation Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and -
Security Rule. '

Busrness Associate shall require aII of its busrness associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including -

" the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity

shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business assggiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be.receivi gﬁhll

. Exhibit] ‘ - Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Asscciate Agreement : 12/3/2021
Page 30f6 - :



-, DocuSign Envelope ID: B3CAD929-7A49-4095-A55D-E49229EDOA3ID L i

DocuSign Envelope ID: 70FD683F-DCD0-4CEE-8C3D-EQ07E889FSDIE

New Hampshire‘ Department of Health and Human Services.

Exhibit |

3/2014

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request -from Covered Entity,

‘Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all

records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determme

. Business Associate’ s compliance with the terms of the Agreement

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI'in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual i in order to meet the

- requirements under 45 CFR Section 164. 524

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for

“amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entlty to fuffill its "

obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Assocrate shall-document such disclosures of PHI and mformétlon related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accountrng of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Sectlon
164.528. : ~

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entlty for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such.information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. o _ ~

In the eventany individual requests acces's to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI

~ directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)

business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the -
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify’
Covered Entlty of such response as soon as practlcable

- Within ten (10) business days of termlnatlon,of the Agreement, for any reason, the

Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received: by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any. copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible; or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Assaciate shall continue to extend the protections of the -

purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long-as Business

Exhibit] . Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act .
Business Assaciale Agreement 12/3/2021
Page 4 of 6 Date .
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered’ Entlty, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Assoc:ate shall certlfy to
Covered Entity that the PHI has.been destroyed '

0b|lLtlonS of Covered Entnty

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any: changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's .
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or.

- disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section

164, 506 or 45 CFR Section 164. 508 . ; )

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Assoc|ate S use or dlsclosure of
PHI.

. Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and cond,i:tiqns (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered

.Entity's-knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate

Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately

-terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

alleged breach within a timeframe spec1f‘ ed by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entlty shall report the .

~ violation to the Secretary
Miscellaneous

~ Definitions and Regulatou References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those térms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended

-from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to

a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the anacy and
Secunty Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownersh:p rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be 1 ed
to permit Covered Entlty to comply with HIPAA, the Prlvacy and Security Rule. | (b

« Exhibiti . Contractor lni(ia!s
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e.. Searegation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any

' person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit [ are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PH|, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3). e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement;

g -
hY
.‘u

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pérties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

" Department of Health and Human Services Lamprey Health Care
tateey: " ragspfdbe Contractor

Pd.n'u'o. M. ’N\o{: % M

Signature of Authorized Representative

A0l

~ Signature of Authorized Representative

‘Patricia M. Tilley ' : Greg white .
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director ‘ : ; :

- CEO ,

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

12/3/2021 o . 12/3/2021

Date =~ . B Date

_ ' . : ; o8
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
: ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANC

The Federal Funding Accotintability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual

Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded.on or after October 1, 2010, to report on

data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the

initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over

$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Informatlon). the .

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following mfonnat:on for any

subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reportlng reqmrements

Name of entity .

Amount of award

Funding agency -

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

Program source i

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundmg action

Location of the entity- .

Principle place of performance

Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10. 2 Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC

oo NO~N

Prime grant recipients must subm;t FFATA requnred data by the end of the month, plus 30 days inwhich

the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
" The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,

and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees

to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Prowsnons

exacute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all appllcable provisions of the Federal

Financial Accountability and Transparency Act .

Contractor Name:

.. ‘ E , Docll:Slgm'd by:.
12/3/2021 ! ey Wity
‘Date ‘Name: e

, [DS
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inltials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 12/3/2021
CUDHHS/ 10713 Page 1.0f 2 : Date .
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FORM A A

" As the Contractor identified in Section 1. 3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below Ilsted questions are true and accurate.

\ 040254401
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual-gross revenue in U.S, federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants and/or

"cooperative agreements? . )
X __NO ' YES
" If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most hlghly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

v

Name: ____ . Amount:
Name: ' __ . -Amount
Name: 4 - , - Amount:
Name: | : A_mount:
— : o Amount: -

:os i
Exhibit J ~ Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
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A Defi nltrons
The foIIowmg terms may be reﬂected and have the descnbed meaning in this document:

1. “Breach™ means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorlzed drsclosure
‘unauthorized acquisition, -unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than 'authorizéd users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, “ Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in sectlon
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulatrons

2. Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meanmg "Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.s. Department
of Commerce

3. “Confi dentral Informatron or “Confidential Data" means all confidential information

. disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or-managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted.
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
+ Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI}, ‘Social Security Numbers (SSN),.
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4, “End User" means any person or entlty {e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream .user, etc) that receives
DHHS data or denvatrve datain accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portabrllty and Accountabllrty Act of 1996 and the
'regulatlons promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes-attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or musplacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsroutlng of physical or electronic

’ :oa
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the tfransmission of unencrypted Pl PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” {or “PI") means information whlch can be used to distinguish
. or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
‘ alone, or when combined with other pérsonal or identifying information which is hnked
or linkable to a specrf ¢ individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. '

9. "anacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for anacy of Indwrdually ldentlf able Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Servrces

-10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI"} has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Mealth Information™ in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 CF.R.§
160.103,

1. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protectlon of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C and amendments
thereto :

12. “Unsecured Protected-Health lnformation" means Protected Health Information that is”
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information .
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is

. developed or endorsed by a standards devel6ping organization that is accredited by
the American Natlonal Standards Institute.

. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
- A, Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential lnformation.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the anacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Informatlon in response to a

&
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vrequest for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunlty to
consent or object to the disclosure.

_3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such.
additional. restrictions and, must not disclose. PHI in violation of such additional

" restrictions and must abide by any addltlonal security safeguards

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derlvatlve there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Conitract. ' \

5. The Cantractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any cther purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. ;

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representahves .
“of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compllance with the terms of this
Contract

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application- Encryption. If End User is transmlttmg DHHS data. containing
. Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been’ evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
appllcatlon s encryption capabllmes ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method- of transmitting DHHS
data. : R

3. -Encrypted Email. End User may ‘only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted- and being sent to and being received by emanl addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
. Data, the secure socket Iayers (SSL) must be used and the web snte must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sntes End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or- Google Cloud Storage, to transmvt‘
Confidential Data. )

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmlt Confidential Data via certified ground
‘mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit -
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. '

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

. . . :os
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wnreless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. ;

Remote User Communication. If End User is employing. remote communication to -
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User’'s mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be

© transmitted or accessed. .

10.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure. of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

. be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24

1.

hours). ‘ _ p

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. ‘After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist; unless, otherwise required by law or pemmitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A

Retention

" 1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or procesé data collected in

- connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

- States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of

cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabxlmes and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations. :

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security 'monltorlr{g capabllltlee are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems

3 , The Contractor agrees to provide securlty awareness and education. for tts End

Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Conﬁdentlal Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5.  The Contractor .agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

- . :os :
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerabrlrty of the hostrng
infrastructure.

'B. .Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
- sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshlre data destroyed by the’
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster .
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media contarmng State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards.and TechnologY. uU. S.
Department of Commerce The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upori request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requlrements erI be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data usmg a
secure method such as shredding. : -

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this -
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

" IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper securlty ‘controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted servnces

C 2 The Contractor wall maintain policies and- procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

08 ’
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The Contractor will maintain appropriate.authentication and access controls to

contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department cont” dential |nformat|on
where applicable.

The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are-in place to -
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or

" Department conﬁdentlal mformatton for contractor provided systems.

10.

11.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for tts End
Users in support of protecting Department copfldenttal information. :

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process -or processes that defines specific secunty
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor including breach notification requirements,

The Contractor will work W|th the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub—contractors prior to
system access being authorized..

If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the

agreement,

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System

_Management ‘Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when' the

-scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire

or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless’

prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department. . _

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach_' Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to .
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.

_.The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V5. Last update 10/09/18 : . Exhit;it K Contréctorlnitiats
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12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

the breach, including but not limited to: credit menitoring services, mailing costs and

" costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to

the breach.

Contractor must, cemply with all applicable stafutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects

- maintain the privacy and security of P] and PHI! at a level and scope that is not less

than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal .agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for mdmdually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law

Contractor agrees to establlsh and mamtaln appropriate admlnlstratlve technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to

. prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and

scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology pohaes guldehnes standards, and
procurement mformatlon relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification ‘and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer and the
State’s Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at.the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network: -

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data. to .
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such saféguards as .referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or madvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c.. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
_PFI are encrypted and password-protected. .

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being’
© sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

) . E o}
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limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

Confidential Information received under this -Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non~duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys ,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

only authorized End Users may transmit the Confi dential Data, mcludlng any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portablé media as required in section IV above.

in all other instances Confldentual Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based

- assessment of the circumstances involved.

understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.

“This applres to credentials used to access the site. directly or lndlrectly through |

a third party application.

V5. Last ubdate 10/09/18 . - Exhibit K : . Contractor Initials

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users.'DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this:
"Contract, including the privacy -and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and-other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confldentral Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
- Security Incidents and. Breaches immediately, at the’ emall addresses provided in
Section VI .

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches rnvolvmg PHI in

~ accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’'s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures
Contractor s procedures must also address how the Contractor wrll

1. ldentify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4, 1dentify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Inc1dents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
CD& .
DHHS Information

Security Requirements 12/3/2021
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs assocnated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. :

_Incidents and/or Breaches that |mpllcate Pl must be addressed and reported as .
" applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
" A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
' DHHSPrivacyOffi cer@dhhs nh.gov
B. DHHS Secunty Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov .

:ns .
Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements . . 12/3/2021
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- TITLE X SUB-RECIPIENT FEE POLICY AND SLIDING FEE SCALES
[Section: Maternal & Child Health Sub Section(s): Family Planning Program Version: 1.0

Effective Date: 01/28/21 Next Revuew Date: 01/01/2022

Approved by: | HALEY JOHNSTON

Authority - PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES ACT 45 CFR PART 59

I. Fee Policy

Féderal Poverty ALevel, Third Party Billing, and Income Verification

Client income and eligibility for a discount should be assessed, documented in the client record,
and re-evaluated at least annually. Reasonable measures should be taken to verify client income,
without burdening clients from low income families. Documentation of income may include a
copy of a pay stub or some other form of documentation of family income; however clients who
cannot present documentation of income must not be denied services and are allowed to self-
report income. Sub-recipients that have lawful access to other valid means of income verification
because of the client’s participation in another program may use those data rather than re-verify
income or rely solely on the client’s self-report. If a client’s inconie.cannot be verified after
reasonable attempts to do so, charges are to be based on the client’s self-reported income.
Whenever possible there should be separate charts for client records and medical records.

Clients whose documented income is at or below 100% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) must

" not be charged, although the agency must bill all third parties legally obligated to pay for the
services (Section 1006(c)(2), PHS Act. 42 CFR 59. 5(a)(7)) B:Ils to third parties may not be
discounted.

Clients who are responsible for paying any fees for services received must directly receive a bill
at the time services are received. Bills to clients must show total charges minus any allowable
discounts. Fees charged to clients must reflect true costs to a sub- recnplent agency.

Agencies must offer by federal mandate a broad range of acceptable and, effective medically
approved family planning methods (including naturat family planning methods) and sérvices
(including pregnancy testing and counseling, assistance to achieve pregnancy, basic infertility
services, STI services, preconception health services, and adolescent-friendly health) either on-
site or by referral (42 CFR 59.5(a)(1)). For the purposes of considering payment for
contraceptive services only, where a client has health insurance coverage through an employer
that does not provide the contraceptive services sought-by the client because the employer has
a sincerely held religious or moral objection to providing such coverage, the project director
may consider the client’s insurance coverage status as a good reason why they are unable to 68

(o

ot
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pay for contraceptive services (42 CFR 59.2).

Discount Schedules/Reasonable Cost .

A discount schedule (schedule of discounts or sliding fee scale) must be developed and
|mplemented with sufficient proportional increments so that inability to pay is never a barrier to
receiving services. The discount schedule must be based on family size, family income, and
other.specified economic considerations and is required for individuals with family incomes
between 101% and 250% of the FPL (42. CFR 59.5(a)(8)). For clients from families whose
income exceeds 250% of the FPL, charges must be made in accordance with a schedule of fees '
designed to recover the reasonable cost of providing services (42 CFR 59.5(a)(8)). 1

The schedule of discounts should include charges for a new client, an established client,
“counseling and education, supplies, and laboratory costs. The schedule of discounts must.be
updated annually and be in accordance with the current Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG). Sub-
recipient agencies may choose to apply alternative funds to the cost of services in order to
provide more generous discounts than what is required under the Title X project.

. \ i . .

On an annual basis, sub-recipient agencies must submit to .the grantee (New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, New Hampshire -
Family Planning Program (NH FPP)) a copy of their most current discount schedule that reflects
the most recently published FPG. '

Third Party Payments

Sub-recipient agencies are required to bill all possible third party payers, mcludmg public and
- private sources, without the application of any discounts, to ensure that Title X funds will be
used only on’ clients without any other sources of payments. Sub- -recipient agencies are
encouraged to have written agreements with NH Medicaid Plans, as approprlate Title X funds
will be used only as the payer of last resort. ’

'
1

Where the cost of services is to be rexmbursed under title XIX XX or XXI of the Socual Security
‘Act, a wrltten agreement with the title XIX, XX or XX agency is required.

Family income of insured clients should be assessed before determmmg whether copayments or
additional fees are charged. Clients whose family income is at or below 250% of the FPL should
not pay more (in copayments or additional fees) than what thcy would otheérwise pay when the
schedule of discounts is apphed

Fee Waiver

Fecs must be waived for individuals with family incomes above 100% of the FPL who, as
determined by the site director, are unable, for good reasons, to pay for family planning services
provided through the Title X project. Clients must not be denied services or be subjected to any

variation in quality of services becaiise of the inability to pay.
:DS
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Voluntary Donations

Voluntary donations from clients are perm1551ble however, clients must not be pressured to
make donations, and donatlons must not be a prerequisite to the provision of services or supplies.
If a sub-recipient agency chooses to ask for donations, then donations must be requested from
all clients, including clients using public or private insurance. In such a case, it may be-helpful
to display signs at check-out or have a financial counseling scnpt available for project staff who
will be tasked with collectmg donations.

Donations from clients‘ do not waive the billing/charging requirements set out above (i.e., if a
client is unable to pay the fees for services received, any donations collected should go towards
the cost of services received.

Discount Eligibility for Minors

Eligibility for discounts for unemancipated minors who receive conf dential services must be
based on the resources of the minor, provided that the Title X provider has documented its efforts
to involve the minor's family in the decision to seek family planning services (absent abuse and,
if so, with appropriate reporting) (42 CFR 59.2).

A minor is an individual under eighteen years of age. Unemancipated minors who wish to
receive services on a confidential basis must be considered solely on the resources of that minor.
If a minor with health insurance requests confidential services, charges for services must be
based on the minor’s own resources. Income available to a minor client, such as wages from

- part-time employment and allowances transferred directly to the minor, must be considered in
determining a minor’s ability to.pay for services. Basic provisions (e.g.,, food, shelter,
transportation, tuition, etc.) supplled by the minor’s parents/guardians must not be mcluded in
the determmatlon of a minor’s income.

Under certain conditioﬁs where confidentiality is restricted to limited members of a minor’s

- family (e.g., there is parental disagreement regarding the minor’s use of family planning
services), the charge must be based solely on the minor’s income if the minor client’s
confidentiality could be breached in seeking the full charge. It is not allowable for sub-recipient
agencies to have a general policy of no fee or'flat fees for the provision of services to minor
clients. Nor is it allowable for sub- reclplent agencies to have a schedule of fees for minors that
is different from all others receiving services.

If a minor is unemancipated and confidentiality is not a concern, the minor’s family income
must be considered in determining the fee for services as with all other clients. Health insurance
plans covering a minor under a parent/guardian’s policy should be billed, if the minor does not
- need or request.confidential services. In such a case,-a written consent form permntmg the billing
of the health insurance plan, signed by the minor, must be included in the minor’s client record. -

Confidential Collections

\

DS

(@

Sub-recipient agencies must inform clients about the existence of the discount schedule and the

12/3/2021



, DocuSign Envelope ID: B3CAD929-7A49-4095-A55D-E49229EDOA3D -

DocuSign Envelope ID: 70FD683F-DCD0-4CEE-8C3D-EQ7EBBIFSD1E

Attachment 1 - Title X Sub-Reciplent Fee Policy and Sliding Fee Scales

fact that services wnll not be denied due to mabnhty to pay. Sub-recipient agencies must make
reasonable efforts to collect bills, but they must in no way jeopardize client confidentiality in
the process. Sub-recipient agencies must inform the client of any potential for disclosure of their
confidential health information to policyholders where the policyholder is someone other than
the client. Sub-recipient agencies must also obtain a client’s permission before sending bills or
* making phone calls to the client’s home and/or place of employment.

Sub-reclplent Fee Policy Documentation Requlrements

The NH FPP w:ll collect documematlon described below as required or as necessary in order
to monitor sub-recipient agencies to ensure comphance with the Tttle X project as it relates to
" the Fee Policy detailed above.

Sub-recipient agencnes must have written documentation (policies and procedures) of the
. following processes, which must be consistent and demonstrated throughout sub-
recipient service sites (e.g., in client records, clinic operations): .

e A process that will be used for determmmg and documentmg the client’s eligibility for
discounted services.

e A process for cnsurmg that client income vernfcatlon procedure(s) will not present a

barrier to receipt of services.
A process for updating poverty guidelines and discount schedules.
A process for annual assessment of client income and discounts. -

- A process for informing clients about the availability of the discount schedule.

A process used for determining the cost of services (e.g., using data on locally
prevailing rates and actual clinic costs to develop and update the schedule of fees;
frequency for updating the costs of services). _

¢ A'process for assuring that financial records indicate client income is assessed and that
charges are applied appropriately to recover the cost of services.

A process for how donations are requested and/or accepted.
Documentation that demonstrates clients are not pressured to make donations and that -
donations are not a prerequisite to the provision of services or supplies (e.g., scripts).

e A process for determining whether a minor is seeking conﬁdentlal services (e.g.,
question on intake form). %

e A process for asséssing minor’s resources (e. g., income).

A Jprocess for alerting all clinic and billing staff about minor clients who are seekmg
and receiving confidential services.

* A process for obtaining and/or updatmg contracts - with prlvate and public insurers.

A process used to assess family income before detcrmmmg whether copayments or
additional fees are charged. : '

e A process for ensuring that financial records indicate that clients with family incomes
between 101%-250% of the FPL do not pay more in copayments or additional fees
than they would otherwise pay when the discount schedule is applied.

o A process for identifying third party payers the sub-recipient will bill to collect

e & o o

reimbursements for cost of providing services. . :bs .

]
-
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e A descnptlon of safeguards that protect client confidentiality, particularly in cases
where sendmg an explanation of benefits could breach client conﬁdentlallty

1L Definition of A Family Planning Visit

According to the current (2020) Title X Family Planning Annual’ Report (FPAR), a family
planning client is an individual who has at least one family planning encounter during the
reporting period (i.e., visits with a medical or other health care provider in which family
planning services were provided). The NH FPP considers individuals ages 11 through 64 years
to be potentlally eligible for family planning services. However, visit def'nmons are needed to
determine who is a famlly planmng client.

anlly Planning Visit: a documented contact (either face-to-face in a Title X service site or
virtual using telehealth technology) between an individual and a family planning provider of
which the primary purposé is to provide family planning and related health services to chents
who want to avoid unintended pregnancles or achleve intended pregnancies services.

A virtual family planning encounter uses telecommumcatxons and mformatlon technology to
prowde access to Title X family planning and related preventive health services, including
assessment, diagnosis, intervention, consultation, education and counseling, and supervision,
at a distance. Telehealth technologies include telephone, Jacsimile machines, electronic mail

- Systems, videoconferencing, store-and-forward imaging, streaming media, remote momtormg
dewces and terrestrial and wireless communications.

Types of Family Planning Visits

1. . Family Planning Encounter With A Clinical Service Provider: a documented, face-
to-face or virtual encounter between a family planning client and a Clinical Services
Provider {e.g., physicians, physician assistants, nurse practitioners, certified nurse.

‘midwives, and registered nurses with an-expanded scope of practice who are
appropriately trained in family planning) in which the client is provided (in association
with the proposed or adopted method of contraception or treatment for mfemllty) one
or more of the following medical services related to family p]anmng

* Pap Smear o * Blood Pressure Reading

* Pelvic Examination * HIV/STI Testing

* Rectal Examination : * Sterilization

* Testicular Examination ¥ Infertility Treatment -

* Hemoglobin or Hematocrit - * Preconception Counseling

* Pregnancy options counseling

2. Family Planning Encounter With An Other Health Care Provider a documented,
face-to-face or virtual encounter between a family planning client and-an Other
Services Provider (e.g., registered nurses, public health nurses, licensed vocational or 65

JA LY
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licensed practical nurses [LPNs], certified nurse assistants, health educators, social
- workers, or clinic aides) in which family planning education or counseling services are
" provided in relation té contraception (proposed or adopted method), infertility or
sterilization. The counseling should include a thorough discussion of the following:
¢ Reproductive anatomy and physnology |
o Infertility, as appropriate
o HIV/STI's
¢ The variety of family planning methods available, mcludmg abstmence and
fertility-awareness based methods
e The uses, health risks, and benefits assocnated with each.family plannmg
~ method
o The need to return for evaluation on a regular basis and as problems are
identified

Education and/or counseling related to contraception, infertility or sterilization, which may
‘occur in a group setting on an individual basis, must be face-to-face-or virtual contact and
documented in the client’s medical record in order to be counted as a family planning clicnt.

Laboratory tests, in and of themselves, do not constitute visits of any type. If laboratory testmg
is performed and there is no other face-to-face or virtual contact between a provider and a
client, then the visit cannot be counted. However, if the tests are accompanied by other
medical services involving family planning related to contraception (proposed or adopted),
infertility, preconception counseling, or sterilization and/or family planning counseling and/or-
~ education related to contraception (proposed or adopted), infertility or sterilization, an
individual will have had a medical or any other health care provider visit by virtue of such
medical services or counselmg and/or education and is considered a family planning medlcal
visit.

Pap smears and pelvic examinations in and of themselves constitute a medical visit but not a
family planning medical visit. However, if a pap smear and pelvic examination are. -
accompanied by other medical services involving family planning (related to contraception
(proposed or adopted), infertility, preconception counseling, or sterilization) and/or family

. planning counseling and/or education related to contraception (proposed or adopted),
infertility, preconception counseling, or sterilization, an individual is consxdered to have had a
f'amlly planning medical visit.

On_ce an individual has been determined tobea fanﬁfy planning client, there are a number of

required services that must be provided to that client. See the NH FPP Family Planning
Clinical Services Guidelines for detailed information on the minimum required clinical services.

12/3/2021
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' Examples of Clients Who Are Family Planning Clients

An eleven-year old who is not sexually active, but is provided with counseling and
education regarding reproductive anatomy and physiology can be considered as a family
planning client. Counseling and education regarding contraceptive methods and

* HIV/STI counseling and education should also be provided to such clients if appropriate.

According to the Title X legislative mandates and conditions in the notice of grant award
(NOA), Title X providers must counsel minors 6n how to resist sexual coercion;

encourage minors to include their family in the decision to seek family planning services, -

and follow all state reporting laws on child abuse, child molestation, sexual abuse, rape,
or incest. In Title X and as with the provision of all medical services, discussions between
the provider and the client are confidential and based on the provider’s expertise in

assessing what each clients’s needs are, and are indicated in the notes within the client’ s'

er

medical chart.
An adolescent male who comes in for contraceptive methods education and counse]ing

“with his adolescent girlfriend can be counted as a family planning client as long as the’

client is encouraged to receive other documented Title X requxred services for males in
the future (e.g., sexual history, partner history, and HIV/STI. education, testicular self-

exam (TSE) education, etc.). According to the Title X legislative mandates and

conditions in the NOA, Title X providers must counsel minors on how to-resist sexual
coercion; encourage minors. to include their family in the decision to seek famlly

o planmng services, and follow all-state reporting laws on child abuse, child molestatlon

sexual abuse, rape, or incest. In Title X and as with the provision of all medical services,
discussions between the provider and the client are confidential and based on the
provider’s expertise in assessing what each client’s needs are, and are indicated in the

" notes within the client’s medical chart.

An adult male under 65 years old coming in for a comprehensive preventive health visit

can be counted as a family planning client if the client receives contraceptive method
education and/or counseling (i.e., condoms) and receives other documented Title X
required services for males (e.g., sexual hlstory, partner history, HIV/STI education,
testicular exam, etc.).

An adult male un:der 65 years old coming in for an HIV/STI visit can be counted as a
family planning client if the client receives contraceptive method co'Li'nseling and/or
education (i.e., condoms) and receives other documented Title X required services for
males (e.g., sexual history, partner history, and HIV/STI education, etc.). Required

testicular exam screening may not occur during the HIV/STI visit, but should be

performed if the client comes back for other health care services in the future. The

" message that condoms can. prevent both unintended pregnancy and HIV/STIs must be

included as part of the counseling and/or education provided to the client.

@
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A male who relies on his partner’s method for contraception can be counted as a family
planning client if the client receives contraception and preconception counseling, and
education on thé partner’s contraceptive method. '

Sterilized individuals can be counted as family planning clients as long as they are under
65 ye'aré old and receive other Title X required services, since such individuals have
selected a method of birth control (sterilization). All sub-grantees offering sterilization
must obtain informed consent at. least 30 days, but no more than 180 days, before the
date of sterilization.. . ,

Individuals who are abstinent can be counted as family planning clients as long as they
are under 65 years old and receive other Title X required services, since such clients have
* selected a method of contraception (abstinence).

" A female under 65 years old can be counted as a family planning client if they receive
contraception ediication or counseling and other documented Title X required services
for females as appropriate (e.g., sexual history, partner history, HIV/STI education, etc.).

Pregnant individuals or those who are seen for their late stage pregnancy or post-partum
visit can be counted as a family planning client if the client receives contraception
education and counseling and/ot HIV/STI testing as-part of their care. -

Individuals who have a positive pregnancy‘tesf result.can be counted as a family planning
client as long as they receive pregnancy diagnosis and counseling services. Pregnant

_individuals may be provided with information and counseling regarding each of the
following options: prenatal care and delivery; infant care, foster care, or adoption; and
pregnancy termination,

Individuals with a negative pregnancy test can be counted as a family planning client if
the client receives contraception education and counseling. In addition, any cause of
delayed menses should be investigated. ' '

Examples of Visits That Are Not Considered Family Planning Encounters

e - An individual who receives anonymous HIV counseling, testing, and referral services
cannot be counted as a family planning client since the visit cannot be documented and
the client does not have a medical record.

e Anindividual whose reasons for visit does not indicate the need for services related to
" preventing or achieving pregnancy.

II. Core.(Minimum) Family Planning Services
The following services must be charged for on a sliding fee scale, which includes a zero pay

category for clients with incomes < 100% of the FPL, and a discount schedule for clients with [ 5‘2‘1)
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family incomes >101% and < 250% of the FPL.

[. - Client education must provide all clients with the information needed to: make
informed decisions about family planning, use specific methods of contraception and
_identify adverse effects, perform a breast/testicular self-examination, reduce the risk of
HIV/STI transmission, understand the range of available services and the purpose and
sequence of clinic procedures, and understand the importance of recommended
screening tests and other procedures involved in the family planning visit. Client
education must be documented in the client record. All clients should receive education
as a part of an initial visit, an annual revisit, and any medically indicated revisits
related to family planning. Education can occur in a group or individual setting.’

2, Counseling to assist clients in reaching an informed decision regarding their
reproductxve health and the choice and continued use of family planning methods and
services must be provided for all clients. In addition all clients must receive counseling

_on, at a minimum, education about HIV infection and STls information on risks and
HIV/STI infection prevention, and referral services. Documentation of counseling must
be included.in the client’s record. The client’s written informed voluntary consent to
receive services must be obtained prior to the client receiving any clinical services. In
addition, if a client chooses a prescription method of contraception, a method-specific
consent form must be-obtained and updated routinely at subsequent visits-to reflect
current information about the method. The signed informed consent form must be kept

_in the client’s record. All clients should receive counseling as a part of an initial visit,
an annual revisit, and any medically indicated revisits related to family planning.

3. Comprehensive history for all clients at initial visit, with updates at subsequent visits,

" must be obtained. Histories for all ¢lients must include at least the following areas:
significant illnesses, hospitalizations, surgery, blood transfusion or exposure to blood
products, and acute or chronic medical conditions; allergies; current use of prescription
and over-the counter medications; extent of use of tobacco, alcohol, and other drugs;
immunization and rubella status; review of systems; pertinent history of immediate
family members; and partner history (including injectable drug use, multiple partners,
risk history for HIV/AIDs, and sexual orientation). Histories of reproductive '
functioning in female clients must include at least the following: contraceptive use
(past and present); menstrual history; sexual history; obstettical history; gynecological

" conditions; history of HIV/STIs; pap smear history; and in utero exposure to DES for
clients born between 1940 and 1970. Histories of reproductive function in male clients

.must include at least the following: sexual history; history of HIV/STIs; and urologlcal
conditions. .

4. Complete Physical Exam for all clients. For clients, the exam should include (but not
required) height and weight, examination of the thyroid, heart, lungs, extremities,
breasts, abdomen, and blood pressure evaluation. For female clients, the exam mus?
include-blood pressure evaluation, breast examination, pelvic examination including:
vulvar evaluation and bimanual exam, pap smear (for those 21 years old and older),
and HIV/STI screening, as indicated. All physical examination and laboratory test [ gﬁ)
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requirements stipulated in the prescribing information for specific methods of
contraception must be followed. ’

5. Laboratory Tests are required for the provision.of specific methods of contraception.

- Pregnancy testing must be provided onsite and HIV, Chlamydia, Gonorrhea, and
Syphilis testing must be provided for all clients upon request or if indicated. The
following laboratory procedures must be provided to clients if required in the provision
of a contraceptive method: anemia assessment, vaginal wet mount, diabétes (blood
sugar) testing, cholesterol or lipid testing, Hepatitis B testing, rubella titer, and
urinalysis. ' ' :

7. Level I Infertility Services must be made available to female and male clients desiring
such services. Level | Infertility services includes: initial ‘infertility interview,
education, physical examination, counseling, and appropriate referral.

8. Revisit schedules must be individualized based on the ¢lient’s need for education,
counseling, and clinical care beyond that provided at the initial and annual visit. Clients
selecting hormonal contraceptives, [UDs, cervical caps, or diaphragms for the first time
should be scheduled for a revisit as appropriate after initiation of the method to
reinforce its proper use, to check for possible side effects, and to provide additional
information or clarification. A new or established client who-chooses to continue a
method already. in use need not return for a revisit unless a need for re-evaluation is
determined on the basis of findings at the initial visit. T

9. Under the federal Title X law, grants cannot be made to entities that offer only a single
_method or unduly limited number of family planning methods. Either directly or
_ through referral, all reversible and permanent methods of contraception must be
- provided, which include barrier methods (female and male), IUDs, fertility awarenéss
based methods, hormonal methods (injectables, implants, oral contraceptives, and
emergency contraception) and sterilization. Methods not directly provided at the site
should be referred first to another Title X site, if appropriate, and, secondly, elsewhere
at an agency with which the site has a formal arrangement with for the provision of the
service. : ,
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R A

SAMPLE DISCOUNT SCHEDULE

~ The following discount schedule can be used by agencies to help develop their own discount
schedule. This discount schedule is a sample and does not necessarily reflect the current FPL.

100% Discount’ Cat 80 Cat 50
w pov::?;ﬁm 100% of poverty 101-135% of poverty 136 -185% of poverty
numbers No Fee $25.Fee S50 Fee-

Family Skzs . From To: From: To: From: . To:
] $120601 8 - $ 12,179.60 | $12,180.60 | $16,400.60 | $16,401.60 | $22,430.60 |
2 $16240 [ § - % 16401.40 ] $16,402.40 | $22,085.40 | $22,086.40 | $30,205.40
3 $20420( 8 - $ 20,623.20 | $20,624.20 | $27,770.20 | $27,771.20 | $ 37.980.20
4 $24600| 8 - - $ 24,845.00 | $24,846.00 | $33,455.00 | $33,456.00 | $ 45,755.00°
5 $28780 |8 - $ 29,066.80 | $29,067.80 | .$39,139.80 | $39,140.80 | $ 53,529.80
6 183296038 - $ 33,288.60 | $33,289.60 | $44,824.60 | $44,825.60 | $ 61,304.60
7 $37,140 (5 - $ 37,510.40 | $37,511.40 | $50,509.40 | $50,510.40 | $ 69,079.40
8 (%4132018% - $ 41,732.20 | $41,733.20 $56,194.20 | $56,195.20 | $ 76,854.20

Additional

family

member |$4,180

@
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Fee Policy Agreémeﬂt

On behalf of _ - , | hereby certify that I have read and understand the
o (Agency Name) -

Information and Fee Policy as detailed above. [ agree to ensure all agency staff and

subcontractors working on the Title X project understand and adhere to the aforementioned

policies and procedures set forth.

Authorizing Official: Printed Name

Authorizing Official Signature Date

o
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SAMPLE

State of New Hampshire - -
Department of Health & Human Services
Bureau of Population Health and Community Services
Maternal & Child Health Section
Famly Planning Program

Family Planning Clinical Services Guldelmes
Effective July 1, 2020

<Revised November 1996 November 1997, January 2001, May 2001 October 2004, October
2007, December 2009, December 2010, February 2011, February 2012 April 2014, June 2019,
May 2020> ,

These guidelines detail the minimum required chnical services for F_aririly Planning
delegate agencies. They are designed to meet the Title X regulations and Program Guidelines for
- Project Grants for Family Planning Services, U S. Department of Health & Human Services

Each delegate agency is expected to use these gulde!més as minimum expectations for
clinical services; the document does not preclude an agency from providing a broader scope of
services If an agency chooses to develop full medical protocols, these guidetines will form the
foundation reference. Indrwdual gwdelines may be quite acceptable with an evidence base. An
agency may have more or less detailed guidelines as long as the acceptable national evidentiary
resource is cited. Title X agencies are expected to provrde both contraceptwc and preventative
health services B

These guidelines’ must. be srgned by all MDs APRNs, PAs, and nurses, anyone who is
providing direct care and/or education to clients The signatures indicate their agreement to follow

these guidelimes N : §
| "Hﬁ@%’-ﬂ—-\ L 7122/2020
Approved- Date

Haley Johnston, MPH
Family Planning Program Manager.
DHH

Appro_véd . £'7 Date: 7 ‘ )J ZO
Dr- Ay Pas, MD, MS .

NH Famlly Planning Medlcal Consultant

We agree to follow these guidelines cffectlve July 1y 201 9 as minimum required chmcal services
for family plannng,. .

Sub-Grantee Agency Name

Sub-Grantee Authorrzmg Signature:

@
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Name/Title - ' Signature Date
4 (Pieasc Type Name/Titlc) :

-
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_Familv Planning Clinical Services Guidelines

L Overview of Family Planning Clinical Guidelines:

A Title X Priority Goals:
L. To deliver qualty family planning and related preventive health services, where .

evidence exists that those services should lead to improvement in the overall health of
individuals.

g Ll

"To provide access to a broad range of acceptable and effective fzimlly planning
- methods and related preventive health services The broad range of servaces does not

mclude abortion as a method of famuly p]anmng

3. To assess chient’s reproductive life plan as part of détermmmg the need for famly |
planning services, and providing preconception services as appropriate.

B. Delegate Requnremenls‘ ,
1. Provide clinical medical services related to family planmng and the cffectwe

usage of contraceptive methods and practices.
The standard package of services includes’

Comprehensive family planming services mcluding. client education and
counsehing, health history, physical assessment, laboratory tcslmg,

Cervical and breast cancer screening,

Infertility services provide Level I Infertility Services at 2 mmmmum, wh:ch
includes initial infertility interview, education regarding causes and treatment
options, physical examination, counseling, and appropriate referral These
services must be provided at the chent's request '
Pregnancy diagnosis and counseling regarding prenatal care and delivery,

.infant care, foster care, or adoption, and pregnancy termination;

Services for adolescents,
Annual chlamydia and gonorthea screening for all sexually active w0men less -

- than 25 years of age and high-risk women > 25 years of age,
Sexually transmitted disease (STD) and human 1mmunodeﬁcxency virus
"(HIV) prevention education, testing, and referral;

Sexually transmitted disease diagnosis and treatment; -
Provision and follow up of referrals as needed to address medica} and social
services needs. -

2. Follow-up treatment for significant problems uncovered by the history or
screening, physical or Iaboratory assessment or other required (or '
.recommended) services for Title X family planning patients should be provided
onsite or by appropriate referral per the following clinical practice guidelincs:
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Providing Quality Family Planning Services — Recommendations of CDC
and US OPA, 2014 (or most current):

~ http/f'www cdc pov/immwr/pdf/re/rr6304 pdf

With supporting.guidelines from:
US Medical Eligibility Criteria for Contraceptive Use 2016, CDC (or most

currenl)
https //www cdc gov/mmwr/volumcs/69/wr/mm69l4a3 htm?s c1d mmé914a

3w

U.S Selected Practice Recommendation for Contraceptive Use, 2016 (or most .-
current). https /www cde gov/mmwr/volumes/65/rr/rr6504al .htm

CDC STD & HIV Screening Recommendatlons 2016 (or most current)
htip //www.cdc pov/std/prevention/screeningReces htm -

CDC Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines, 2015 (or most
current) https //www cdc £0v/sld/tg201 5/tg-2015-print.pdf

CDC Recommendation to Improve Preconception Health and Health Care,

2014 (or most current): hitps-//www cdc gov/preconception/index.html

Guide to Clinical Preventive Services, 2014 Recommendatlons of theU S
Preventive Services Task Force g

_ http.//www.ahrq gov/grofessxonals/chmclans-growders/gu1delmes-

recommendations/guide/index htm]

American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOG) Gula’elmes and
Practice Patterns

American Society of Colposc0py and Cervical Palhélogy (ASCCP)

Other relevgnt clinical practlce guidelines approved by the BPHCS/US

- DHHS

3. Necessary referrals for any required services should be initiated and tracked per
written referral protoecols and follow-up procedures for each agency.

Substance Use Disorder

Behavioral Health

Immedate Postpartum LARC Insertion
Primary Care Services’

Infertility Services

4, Assurance of conﬁdentlahty must be included for all sessions where services are

provided.

Mandated chomng asa mandated reporter, the legal requirement to rcport 08
suspécted child abuse or neglect supersedes any professional duty to keep ‘ o
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information about clients confidential

httgs‘llwww.dhhs.nh gov/dphs/holw/documents/reporting-abuse.pdf
e RSA 161-F, 42-57 Adult Protection Law Persons 18 years old and over
e RSA 169-C, Child Protection Act Children under 18 years old.

- 5. 'Each client will voluntarily review and sign a general consent form prior to
receiving medical treatment or contraceptive methods(s).

6. Required Trainings:

Sexually Transmitted Disease tramning all family planning clinical staff members
must either participate 1n the live or recorded NH DHHS webinar session(s)
annually

Family Planning Basics (Family Planning National Training Center). all family
planning clinical staff must complete and maintain a training certificate on file.
https.//www fpntc.org/resources/family-planning-basics-elearning

Title X Orientation, Program Requirements for Title X Funded Family Planning
Projects' all famuly planming staff (adminustrative and chinical) must complete and

maintain a (raming certificate on file https /www fpnic org/rescurces/title-x-

orientation-program-requirements-title-x-funded-family-planning-projects

I1. Family Planning Clinical Services

Determining the need for services among female and male clients of reproductwe age
by assessing the rcason for visit:

e Reasori for visit is related to preventing or achlevmg pregnancy:

Contraceptive services
Pregnancy testing and counseling

Achieving pregnancy

Basic infertility services
Preconception health
Sexually transmulted disease services

e Inmitial reason for visit 1s not related to preventing or achlevmg pregnancy (acute care,
chronic care management, preventive services) but asscssmen{ identifies the-need ior
services to prevent or achieve pregnancy

e Assess the need for related preventive services such as breast and cervical cancer

. screeming,

The délivery of preconception, STD, and related preventive health services should not
be a barricr to a clicnt receiving services related to preventing or achieving pregnancy.

Comprehensive Conlraceptive Services (Providing Quality Fanuly Planning Semces ~
Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 7 - 13)
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“The following steps should help the client adopt, change, or maintain contraceptive -

use:
1
2,

Ensure privacy and confidentiality
Obtarn clinical and social information mcludmg
a) Medical history
For women: -
¢ Menslrual history
Gynecologic and obstetric history
Contraceptive use including condom use
Allergies
Recent intercourse -
Recent delivery, miscarnage, or termination
Any relevant infectious or chronic health conditions
Other characteristics and exposures that might affect medical criteria
for contraceptive method
ForMen =~
s Use of condoms
Known allergy to condoms
Partner contraception
Recent intercourse
Whether partner 1s currently pregnant or has had a child, miscarriage,
or termination o
o The presence of any infectious or chronic health condition”

The taking of a mcdiéal history should not be a barrier to obtaining condoms.

b) Pregnancy intentton or reproductive hife plan. Ask questions such as.
¢ Do you want to become a parent?
e Do you have any children now?
¢ Do you want to have (more) children?
e How many (more) children would you like to have and when?

c) Contraceptive experiences and preferences
d) .Sexual health assessment wcluding:
» Sexual practices: lypes of sexual activaty the chient engages in.
e History of exchanging sex for drugs shelter, money, etc for chent or
partner(s)

Partners ‘number, gender, concurrency of the client’s sex partners
Protection from STD. condom use, monogamy;, and abstinence

Past STD history i chent & partner (to the extent the client 1s aware)
History of needle use (drugs, steroids, etc ) by client or partner(s)

Work with the client interactively to select the most effective and approphate
contraceptive method (Appendix A). Use a shared decision-making approach

Pregnancy prevention. current, past, and future contraception options -

@
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presenting information on the most effective methods that meet the individual’s
priorities for contraception (based whether or not the chient wants to become pregnan(
within the next year, medxcal history, and past experience with methods)

‘a) Ensure that the chient understands
¢ Method effectiveness
Correct use of the method
Non-contraceptive benefits
Side effects
Protection from STDs, including HIV

b) . Assist client to consider potential barriers that nught tnfluence the likelihood
of correct and consistent use of the method under consideration including'
e Social-behavioral factors : '
o Intimate pariner violence and sexual violence
s Mental health and substance use behaviors

4 Conduct a physical assessment related (o contraceptive use, when warranted as per
U.S. Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016, Appendix C.
(https //www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/65/rr/rr6504al nppendix him#T-4-C.1_down).

5 Provide the contraception method along with nstructions about correct and consistent
use, help the client develop a plan for using the selected method and for follow-up, '
and confirm client understanding Document the chient’s understanding of his or her
chosen contraceptive method by using a-

a) Checkbox, or; ‘

b) Written statement, or-

¢) Method-specific consent {orm

d) Teach-back method may be used to confirm client’s understandmg about

risks and benefits, method use, and follow-up
}

6. Pfowde counseling for returning clients: ask if the client has any concerns with the
contraception method and assess its use. Assessany changes in the chient’s medical
history that might affect safe use of the contraceptive method

¢ 7 Counseling adolescent clients should include a discussion on
a) Sexuval coercion. how 1o resist attempts to coerce minors into engagmg in

sexual activities

b) Family mvolvemem encourage and promote communication between lhc
adolescent and his/her parent(s) or guardian(s) about sexual and reproductive
health

c) Abstinence: counseling that abstinence 15 an option and is the most effective
way to prevent pregnancy and STDs
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A, Pregnancy Testing and Counselmg (Providing Quality Family Planning Services —
Rccommendatlons of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 13- 16):

The visit should include a discussion about reproductive life plan and a medical
“history. The test results should be presented to the client, followed by a dlscussmn
of options and apprepriate referrals

1 Positive Pregnancy Test include an estimation of gestational age s0 lhat appropnatc
counsehihg can be provided.
a  Sub-recipients offer pregnant women the opportunity to be provided
“information and counsehing regarding each of the following optlons
¢ Prenatal care and delivery
« Infant care, foster care, or adoption
¢ Pregnancy termination

a) For clients who are considering or choose to continue the pregnancy, imitial-
prenatal counseling should be provided in accordance with recommendations
of professional-medical organizations such as ACOG.

2 Ncgatwe Pregnancy Test and Not Seeking Pregnancy evaluate reason for negative
test Offer same day contraceptlvc services (including emergency contracept:on) and
discuss the value of makmg a reproductive life plan

3. Negative Pregnancy Test and Seeking Prcgnancy counsel about how to maximize
' fertility.
a) If appropriate, offer Basic Infertility Services (Level I) on- sne or through referral
Key education points include. .
e Peak days and signs of fertility. : :
. jVagmal intercourse soon after menstrual pcnod ends can mcrcase the
likelihood of becoming pregnant.
¢ Methods or devices that determine or predict ovulaton . ' o
o Fertility rates are lower among women who are very thin or obese, and
those who consume high levels of caffeine.
o Smoking, consuming alcohol, using recreational drugs, and using most
commercially available vaginal lubricants might reduce fertility.

B. ’\Prcconc_e tion.Health Services (Providin ; uality Family Planning Services —
Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 16- 17):

Preconception health services should be offered to women of reproductive age who
are not pregnant but are at risk of becoming pregnant and to men who are at risk
for impregnating their female partner. Scrvices should be administered in
accordance with CDC’s recommendations to improve prcconccptlon health and
health care.

1 For women s - o8
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a) Counsel on the need to take a daxly supplement contammg folic acid

b) Discussion of reproductive life plan. :

c) Sexual health assessment screening including screening for sexuall y
transmitted infections as indicated. -

d) Other screening services that include
) Obtam medical history

o Many chronic medical conditions such as diabetes, hypertension,
psychiatnc 1llness, and thyroid disease have implications for

" pregnancy outcomes and should be optimally managed before
pregnancy.

o All prescription and nonprescription medications should be
reviewed during prepregnancy counseling and teratogens should be
avoided

Screen for intimate partner violence

Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use

Screen for immunization status

Screen for depression when staff are in place to ensure an accurate

diagnosis At a-mnimum, provide referral to behavnoral health

services for those who have a positive screen

e Screen for obesity by obtaining he1ght weight, & Body Mass Index
(BMI)

e Screen for hypertension by obtammg Blood Pressure (BP)

e Screen for type 2 diabetes 1n asymptomatic. adults with sustained BP >
135/80 mmHg ( refer to PCP)

e Women who present for-prepregnancy counseling should be offered
screening for the same genetic condmons as recommended for
pregnant women

- e Patients with potentnal exposure (o certain mfcctlous diseases, such as

the Zika virus, should be counseled regarding travel restrictions and
appropriate waiting time before attempting pregnancy.

2 -For Men.

a) Discussion of reproductive life pian

b) Sexual health assessment screening

c) Other screening services that include,
e Obtan medical history
* Screen for tobacco, alcohol, and substance use
e Screen for immunization status -
 Screen for depression when staff-assisted depression supports are 1n

- place to ensure accurate diagnosis, effective treatment, and follow-up

o Screen for obesity by obtaining height, weight, & BMI
e Screen for hypertension by obtaining BP
» Screen fof type 2 diabetes in asymptomatic adults with sustamed BP >

135/80 mmHg sk '
. o 08
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- Patients with potential exposure to certamn infectious dtseases such as
the Zika virus, should be counseled regarding travel restrictions and
: approprlate waiting time before attemptmg pregnancy C

D Sexually Transmltted Disease Services (Provndmg Quality Family Planning Servnces
- Recommendntlons of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 17- 20):

Provide STD services in accordancc with CDC’s STD treatment and HIV testing
guidelines.

i ASSess client.
a) Discuss client’s reproductive life plan
b) Obtain medical history
¢) Oblain sexual health assessment
d) Check immunization status

2. Screen client for STDs
a) Test sexually active women < 25 years of age and high-risk women > 25 years
of age yearly for chlamydia and gonorrhea
b) Screen clients for HIV/AIDS in accordance with.CDC HIV testing gmdelmes
which include routinely screening all clients aged 13-64 years for HIV
“infection at least one tume. Those likely to be high risk for HIV should be re-
»  screened at least annually or per CDC Guidelines
¢) Provide additional STD testing as mdlcated
o Syphilis
; = Populations at nsk |ncludc MSM, commercial sex workers,
persons who exchange sex for drugs, those in adult correctional
‘facihities and those hvmg in communities with high prevalence
of syphilis
* Pregnant women should be screened for syphnhs at the time of
their positive pregnancy test if there might be delays in
obtaining prenatal care.
© Hepatitis C
» CDC recommends one-time testing for hepatitis C (HCV) for
persons born during 1945—1965 as wcll as persons at high nsk.

4 Treal client and his/her partner(s), through expedited partner therapy, if positive for
STDs 1n a timely fashion to prévent compheations, re-infection, and further spread in .
" accordance with CDC’s STD treatment guidehines. Re-test as indicated Follow NH .
Bureau of Infectious Disease Control reporting regulations.
- (htips.//www.cdc.gov/std/ept/default htm)

] P._rowdc STD/HIV risk reduction counseling,

@
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L. Guidelines for Related Preventive Health Services (Providing Quality
~ Family Planning Servwes Recommendations of CDC and US OPA, 2014

P 20)

. A. For clients without a PCP, the following screening services should be provided on-
site'or by referral in accordance with federal and professional medical
recommendations: ' :

e Medical History

e Cervical Cytology and HPV vaccine

¢ Chinical Breast Examination or dlscussxon

o, Mammography

¢ Genital Examination for adolescent males to assess normal growth and
development and other common genital findings

IV. Summary (Provnd: ng Quality Family Planning Servnces Recommendatlons
of CDC and US OPA, 2014: pp 22- 23):

A Chcckhsl of fam:ly plannmg and related preventive health services for women:
Appendxx B

B Checklist of famlly plannmg and re]atcd preventlve health services for' men:
Appendn C

V. Guidelines for Qther Medical Services

A. Postpartum Services

Provide postpartum services 1 accordance with federal and professional medical
recommendations In addition, provide comprehensive contraception services as described
above to meet family planning guidelines

- B. Sterilization Services

Public Health Sem.ces Guidehnes on Sterilization of Persons in Federally Assisted Family
Planning Projects (42 CFR Part 50, Subpart B, 10-1-00 Edition) must be followed if
sterithization services are offered

C. Minor Gy necologlcal Problems

Dxagnos_xs and treatment are provided according to each agency’s medical guidelines -

D. Genetic Screening

@_
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Initial genetic screening and referral for genetic counseling 1s provided to clients at risk for
transmission of genetic abnormalities Initial screening includes: family history of client and
partner : .

V1. Referrals

Agencies must establish formal arrangements with a referral agency for the provision of
services required by Title X that are not available on site Agencies must have writien
policies/procedures for follow-up on referrals made as a result of abnormal physical exam or
laboratory test findings These policies must be sensitive to client’s concerns for
confidentiality and privacy.

If services are determined to be necessary, but beyond the scope of Title X or the state _
program clinical guidelines, agencies are responsible to provide pertinent chent information

- to the referral provider (with the client’s consent) and to counsel the client on her/his
responsibility to follow up with the referral and on the importance of the referral.

When making referrals for services that are not required under Title X or by the state

program clinical guidelines, agencies must make efforts to assist the client in identifying
payment sources, but agencies are not responsible for payment for these services.

VII. Emergencies

All agencies must have written protocols for the management of on-site medical
emergencies Protocols must also be 1n place for emergencies requiring transport, afler-hours
management of contraceptive emergencies and clinic emergencies. All staff must be familiar
with emergency protocols

VIII. R_ésources | . : .

Contraception:

s US Medical Ehgibility for Contraceptive Use, 2016,
hitp //www cde.gov/reproductivehealth/UnintendedPregnancy/USMEC htm

o US Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016
https //www cde gov/mmwr/volumes/65/r/rr6504al htm?s_cid=rr6504al w
o CDC MEC and SPR are available as a mobile app

https //www cdc gov/imobile/mobileapp htm!

o Bedsider https//www.bedsider.org/

o Evidence-based resource for contraceptive counseling for patients and providers
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“Emergency Contraception,” ACOG, ACOG Practice Bullenin, No 152, September, 2015.
(Reaffirmed 2018) https //www acog org/Clinical-Guidance-and-Publications/Practice-

Bulletins/Commuttee-on-Practice-Bulletins-Gynecology/Emergency-Contraception

“ Long-Aéting Reversible Contracéptién Implants and Intrauterine Devwes," ACOG .
Practice Bulletin Number 186, November 2017. https.//www acog org/Clinical-Guidance-

o and-Publ1catnonms/Préct1ce-BuIielms/Commmee-on-Practlce-Bullenns-thecologx[Long-Agllng~

Reversible-Contraception-Implants-and-Intrauterine-Devices -

ACOG LARC program clincal, billing, and policy resources
https-//www acog org/practice-management/coding

Contraccgtxve'Technology, Hatcher, et al” 21% Revised Edition
http //www contraceptivetechnolopy.org/the-book/

Managing Contraceptive Pull Patients, Richard P. Dickey,

Emergency Contraception https //www acog org/patient-
resources/fags/contraceptmn{emergency-contraceptlon

Condom Effectiveness: http.//www cdc.gov/condomeffectivenessfindex. html

Preventative Care

us Pfe:_ventlye Services Task Force (USPSTF)
http //www.uspreventiveservicestaskforce.org

o U.S. Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF), Guide to Clinical Preventive
Services, 2014 http //www ahrq.gov/professionals/clinicians- -

providers/guidelines-recommendations/guide/index html

“Cervical cancer screemng and prcvenhoh,” ACOG Practice Bulletin Number 168,

" Qctober 2016 (Reaffirmed 2018) htips /Avww acog org/Climcal-Guidance-and-
. Publlqatlons/Prachce-Bulletlns/Comm1ttee—on-Pracnce-Bul1et|ns-Gxnecology/Cervncal-Cancer-

Screen mg-and-Preventlon

American Society for Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology (ASCCP)
http //www.ascep.org

© Massad et al, 2012 Updated Consensus Guidelines for the Managgment of Abnormal
Cervical Cancer Screening Tests and Cancer Precursors 2013, American Séciety for

. Colposcopy and Cervical Pathology Journal of Lower Genitat Tract Disease, Volume 17,
Number 5, 2013, S1YS27

© Mobile app: Abnormal pap management

https://www asccp org/mobile-app ’ :o‘s '
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“Breast Cancer Risk Assessment and Screenir"xg in Average-Risk Women,” ACOG

Practice Bulletin Number 179, July 2017. https //www acog org/Chmcal-Guidance-and-
Publications/Practice-Bulletins/Commitiee-on- Practlce-Bulletms _Qynecmgv/Breast-Cancer-

Risk- Assessment and-Screening-in-Average-Risk- Wome

Adolescent Health

L 4

American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP), Bright Futures, Guidelines for Health
Supervision of Infants, Children, and Adolescents, 4™ Edition.

https-//brightfutures aap org[Brlght%20Fulures%20Documer_1ts/BF4 Introduction pdf

Amenican Medical Association (AMA) Guidelines for Adolescent Preventive Services

(GAPS) http-//www.uptodate com/contents/guldelmes—for-adolescent-greventwe-serv:cc
North American Society of Pediatric and Adolescent Gynecology h ttg //wvnv naspag org[

American Academy of Pedatrics (AAP), Policy Statement “Contracept;on for
Adolescents”, September, 2014

http //pediatrics aagpubllcahons.org/conlent/early/2014/09/24/geds 2014-2299

American Academy of Pediatrics, Policy Statement, Opiions Counseling for the Pregnant
Adolescent Patient. Pediatrics , September 2017, VOLUME 140 /1SSUE 3

Mandated Reporting: https.//www fpntc org[resources/mandatorx chnld-abuse-regortmg-
tatc-summmcs/new- ampshire

Sexually Transmlttcd Dnseases

USDHHS Centers for Disease Control (CDC), STD Treatment Guldelmes
. http-//www cdc gov/std/treatment/.

o Available as a mobile app- https /iwww cde pov/mobile/mobileapp himl
Expedited Partner Therapy CDC https //www cde gov/std/ept/default. htm

o NH DHHS resource on EPT 1n NH. https {www dhhs nh gov/dphs/bchs/stdlcpt htm

‘AIDS info (DHHS) hitp //www axdsinfo nih gov/

' Pregnancy testing and counseling/Early pregnancy management

Exploring All Options* Pregnancy Counseli.ng Without Bias - Quality Family Planning,
FPNTC is supported by the Office of Population Affairs of the U.S Department of

Health and Human Services. htth.//www.fgntc.org{&tes/default/ﬁIcs/rcsourccs(zol 7-

10/fpntc_expl all_options2016 pdf
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e Amerncan Academy of Peduatrics, Policy Statement, Options Counseling for the Pregnant
 Adolescent Patient Pediatrics, September 2017, VOLUME 140 / [SSUE 3

o' Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 8th Edition. AAP Commuttee on Fetus and Newborn and -
ACOG Commuttee on Obstetric Practice. Edited by Sarah J. Kilpatrick, Lu-Ann Papile
and George A Macones Book | Published in 2017 ISBN (paper): 978-1-61002-087-9
https //ebooks aappublications org/content/guidelmes-for-perinalal-care-8th-edition

. “Early pregnancy loss.” ACOG Practice Bulletin No. 200. American College of
Obstetricians and Gynecologists - Obstet Gynecol 2018,132 £197-207. .
https /fwww acog org/Chnical-Guidance-and-Publications/Practice-Bulleting/Committee-on-

Practice-Bulletins-Gynecology/Early-Pregnancy-Loss

Fertility/Infertility counseling and basic workup

* Amencan Society for Reproductive Medictne (ASRM) http-//www.asrm org

o Practice Committee of the American Society for Reproductive Medicine 1n -
collaboration with the Society for Reproductive Endocrinology and Infertility ...
- Optimizing natural fertility a commutiee oplmon Ferti} Stenl, J'\nuary 2017,
Volume 107, Issue 1, Pages 52-58

o Praclice Comnties.of the American Society for Reproductive Medicine
Diagnostic evaluation of the infertile female: a committee opimon Fertil Steril
2015 Jun;103(6):e44-50 d01 10.1016/).ferinstert 2015.03 019. Epub 2015 Apr.
30. .

Preconception Visit

- o Prepregnancy counseling ACOG Commuttée Opinion No. 762 American College of
‘Obstetricians and Gynecologists. Obstet Gynecol 2019;133:¢78-89.
https.//www acog org/clinical/chinical-guidance/committee-
opinion/articles/2019/01/prepregnancy-counseling

Other

»  American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology (ACOG) Practice Bulletins and
Committee Opintons are avatlable on-line to ACOG members only, at
http.//www acog.org Yearly on-line subscriptions and CD-ROMs are available for
purchase through the ACOG Bookstore. Compendium of Selected Publications contamns
all of the ACOG Educational Bulletins, Practice Bulletins, and Commuttee Opinions that
are current as of December 31, 2018 Can be purchased by Phone. (800) 762-2264 or
(770) 280-4184, or through the Online bookstore, htips //sales acog org/2019-Compendium- \

of-Selected-Pubhcations-USB-Drive-P498 aspx _ [ 60(;)
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.'® Amencan Cancer Soc;ety http //www cancer.org/

. Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality http //www ahrq, gov/cllmc/cggsxx htm

e Partners in Informanon Access for the Public Health Workforce
phpartners.org/ph public/

o Women's Health Issues, published bimonthly by the Jacobs Institute of Women’s Health.
http./fwww whijournal com

e American Medical Assgciation, Information Center http //www.ama-assn.org/ama

e US DHHS, Health Resources Services Admunistration (HRSA)
. http //www hrsa gov/index html

« “Reproductive Health‘Online (Reprolinc)”, Johns Hopkins University
. http /www reprolineplus org ‘

o National Guidelnes Cleannghouse (NGCH) http //www gundelmeg_

. Know & Tell, chuid abuse and neglect Information and trammgs

~ https://knowandtell org/

Additional Resources:

e American S,dcie'ly for Reproductive Medicine: http //www asrm org

¢ Centers for Disease Control & Prevention A to Z lnde'x, http //www cde.gov/az/b html

« Emergency Contraception Web site http //ec Qrmcgfon edu/

e Office of Population AfTairs. http://www hhs.gov/opa - _
¢ Title X Statute http://www.hhs.gov/opa/title-x-family-planning/title-x-policies/statutes-
and-regulations

 Appropriations Language/Legislative Mandates http-//www hhq gov/oDa/tltle x-family-
plannmg/tllle ~-x-polictes/legislatyve- mandates

» Sterilization of Persons in Federally A531sted Family Planning Projects Regulations
hitps://www hhs,gov/opalsites/default/files/42-cfr-50-c_0.pdf
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Aftachment 3- Title X Family Planning Information and Education (I&E) Advisory and Communlly Participation GundehnesAgreement

Title X Community Participation, Educatlon and Project Promotion
Section: Maternal & Child Health Sub Section(s): Family Planning Program Version: 2.0
Effective Date: [fuly [, 2021} Next Rewew Date: [July 1,2022]

Approved by: | HALEY JOHNSTON

Authority Code of Federal Regulations 42 CFR 59.6(a) ecft.gov

This set of policies describe the NH Family Planning Program’s (NH FPP) process for ens{Jrin.g
sub-recipient compliance with Community Participation, Education and Project promotion
requirements under the Tltle X Project. The followmg are covered in this section:

e Advisory Commsttee & Informational & Educatlonal Materials Rewew and Approval -
o Collaborative Planning and Community Engagement :
» Community Awareness and Education

Advisory Committee and Informational & Educational Materials

Advisory Committee

Sub-recipients must have an Advisory Committee to provide an opportunity for participation in
the development, implementation and evaluation of the project by persons broadly representative
of all significant elements of the population served and by persons in the community -
knowledgeable about the community’s needs for famlly planmng services [42 CFR 59. S(b)(IO)]

- The Advisory Committee must:

. Consnst of no fewer than five members and up to as many members the recipient
determines »

o The size of the committee can differ from these limits wzth written documentation

" and approval from the Title X Regional Office (42 CFR 59.6(b)(1)).

o Helpful Tip: Possessing more than five members will allow for continued
compliance and allot more time for member recruitment if someone chooses to
leave the committee.

e Include individuals broadly representative of the pqpulation or community that is to be
served by the sub-recipient agency (in terms of demographic factors such as race,
ethnicity, color, national origin, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age,

"marital status, income, geography, and including but not limited to individuals who
belong to underserved communities, such as Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native
American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific [slanders and other persons of color;
members of religious mingrities; lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and quéer
(LGBTQt) persons; persons with disabilities; persons who live in rural areas; and

DS
persons otherwise adversely affected by persistent poverty or inequality. 1 2\
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N

s Meet régularly (in-person or virtually) to oversee the agency’s Title X project; including
the review and approval of informational and educational (I&E) materials (printand
" electronic). ‘ . ' -

A board or committee that is already in existence can be used for the purpose of the Advisory
Committee and/or I&E Committee as long as it meets the requirements. Check with local health
department staff, agency upper management, community groups, or organizations (e.g., school-
based health centers; public health advisory; alcohol and drug programs) Note: In-house agency
staff cannol serve as committee members.

Informational & Educational (I&E) Materlals Review and Approval

The Title X Grantee (Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
. Services, NH Family Planning Program (NH FPP)) delegates the I&E operations for the review
and approval of materials to sub-recipient agencies; however, oversight of the I&E committee(s)
-and review process rests with the NH FPP. The NH FPP will ensure that sub-recipients and
‘ serwce sites adhere to all Title X I&E materials review and approval requirements. .

Responsibility for Review and Approval

All I&E materials (print and electronic) developed or made available under the Title X Project
must be reviewed and approved by the sub-recipient Advisory Committee prior to their
distribution. [f the Advisory Committee chooses it can delegate it’s I&E functions and
responsibilities to a separate 1&E Committee; however the final responsibility of all I&E
materials still lies with the Advisory Committee. I a separate I&E Committee is used, it must
consist of no few than five members that are broadly representative of the populatzon or
commumty for which the I&E materials are interided.

- The responsible committee (I&E or Advisory) may delegate responsibility for the review of the
factual, technical, and clinical accuracy of all 1&E materials developed or made available under
the Title X-funded project to appropriate project staff (e.g., RN, NP, CNM). If this function is
delegated to appropriate project staff, the responsible comm:ttee must still then oversee
operatlons and grant final approval. :

The following language may be used for the purpose of member recruitment or orientétion:

° Federal]y funded famlly p]anmng agencies provide critical health services to low-income:
~and uninsured individuals to prevent unintended pregnancies._
o The federal grant requires advisory committee review and approval of all _'educatio'n_al .
materials and information before distribution to the community.
e Advisory committees assist in evaluating and selecting materials appropriate for clients’
- and the community.
s, The family planning agency sends committee members materlals such as pamphlets,
videos, posters, or teaching tools. Members complete an I&E review form or attend a
" meeting to give feedback regarding materlal appropriateness for the audience and

community. _ :os
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Material Review and Apprbval Process

The responsible committee must review and approve all [&E materials (print and electronic)
developed or made available under the project prior to their distribution to ensure that the
materials are suitable for the population and community for which they are intended and to
ensure their consistency with the purposes of Title X (Section 1006(d)(1), PHS Act; 42 CFR
59.6(a)). Thereafter, all materials being distributed or made available under the Title X
project must be reviewed and re-approved or expired on an annual basis.

The following criteria must be used for reviewing and approving matcrlals to ensure that the
above requirements are fulfilted: .

¢ Consider the educatlonal cultural, and divérse backgrounds of the individuals to whom
the materials are addressed;

¢ Consider the standards of the populatlon or community to be served with respect to
such materials;

e Revieiv the content of the material to assure that the information is factually correct,

" medically accurate, culturally and Imgunstxcally appropnate mclusnve and trauma
informed,;

e Determine whether the material is suitable for the populauon or commumty for which
it is to be made available; and :

o Establish a written record of its determmatnons

Commlttee meetings specifically for I&E material review and approval are no! required, but
strongly recommended. The committee may choose to meét in-person or via conference calls or
may communicate by e-mail, phone, fax or mail for each material’s review.

Documentation Requirements for Advisory Committee and I&E Materials

The NH FPP will collect documentation described below as required or as necessary in order to
monitor sub-recipients to ensure compliancé with the Title X project as it relates to the Advisory
Committee and the review and approval of I& E materials. ~

1.) I&E Master List Requirement. On an annual basis, sub-recipients will be required to submit
a comprehensive master list of 1&E materials that are currently being distributed or are
available to Title X clients. The list must include the date of approval, which must be within
one year from the date the I&E master list is due to be submitted.

2.) Policies and Procedures. Sub-recnplents must have written documentation that outlines thetr
process for conducting material reviews, which must-include:

¢ A process for assessing that the content of 1&E materials is factually correct, medically
accurate, culturally and linguistically appropriate, inclusive, and trauma informed, and’
“how it is ensured by the committee or appropriate project staff.
¢ Criteria and procedures the committee members wilt use to ensure that the materials are
* suitable for the population and community for which they are intended.
Processes for reviewing materials written in languages other than English.
e How review and approval records will be maintained.

How old materials will be expired. - .  —os
' (e
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' Attachment 3- Title X Family Planning Information and Education (I&E) Advisory and Community Pasticipation GuidelinesAgreement

Process to document compliance with the membership size requlrement forthe Advisory
Committee (updated lists/rosters, meeting minutes).

How-the Advisory Committee provides oversight and final approval for 1&E materlals
if this responsibility is delegated.

Process to document that the I&E/Advisory Committee is/are active (meeting minutes).
Process for selecting individuals to serve on'the I&E/Advisory Committee(s) to ensure
membership is broadly representative of the population/community being served. .
Process for documentmg compliance with all I&E/Advisory Committee requirements
(meeting minutes, review form used).

Collaboratlve Planning and Communlty Engagement

Sub-recipients must establish community engagement plans that ensure individuals who are
broadly representative of all significant elements of the population served, and those who are
knowledgeable ‘about the community’s ‘needs for family planning services, will participate in
developing, xmplementmg, and evaluating the Title X project (42 CFR 59.5(b)(10)).

A community participation committee must be ldentlf'ed to serve the commumty engagement

function. The I&E/Advisory committee may be used to fulfill this function or a separate group '

may be identified, so long as it meets the requirements. The community part1c1pat10n comnuttee

“must meet annually or more often as appropriate.

Suggestions for Collaboratwe.Planmng and Commnnity Engagement:

Conduct routine community needs assessments and/or joint commumty needs
assessments with community partners where service areas overlap.

Administer client satisfaction surveys and use results for program planning.

Collect feedback from clients through social media platforms.

Develop mechanism for obtaining feedback from community members on agency Title
X services and materials. Méchanisms may include a community adv1sory commlttee,
youth advisory committee, or patient advisory committee.

Present at community meetings and-solicit feedback. :
Conduct a survey with community partners (mental health and primary care provnders,
shelters, prisons, faith-based organizations, school personnel, parent.groups, social
service agencies, food pantries, and other community organizations).

- Conduct focus groups with clients or community partners. -

Problem solve at service sites (e.g., determine how to mcrease male services; solve a
“no show” problem; improve customer service).

Offer feedback about your family planning program strengths _andbsuggest areas
needing improvement. Serve as family planning advocates to increase community
awareness of the need for family planning services and the impact of services.

Sub-recipients must establish within policies and procedures:
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e A process by which diverse community members (identified through needs assessment)
 will be involved in efforts to develop, assess, and/or evaluate the family planning project.

e A process for'documenting community engagement activities (reports, meeting mmutes)
e A process to document the committee is active (meeting mmutes)

IIl. Community Awareness and Education

Each famlly plannmg project must establish and implement planned activities to facilitate
community awareness of and access to family planning services through the provision of
community information and education programs. Sub-recipients must provide for community-
education and participation programs which should serve to “achieve community understanding
“of the objectives of the project, inform the community of the availability of services, and
promote continued participation in the project by persons to whom family planning services may
be beneficial” (42 CFR 59.5(b)(3)). The community education program(s) should be based on an
assessment of the needs of the community and should contain an implémentation and evaluation
strategy. The community participation committee described above can be utilized to execute the
functions and operations of this requirement.

~ Sub-recipients must establish within policies and procedures:

e A process for assessing commumty awareness of and need for access to family plannmg
services..
e A process for documcntmg implementation and evaluation of plan activities.
* A community education and service promotion plan that:
o states that the purpose is to achicve community understandmg of the objectives of
" the project, make known the availability of services to potential clients, and
encourage continued participation by persons to whom family planning may be
beneficial,
o -promotes the use of family plannmg among those with unmet need,
o utilizes an appropriate range of methods to reach the commumty, and
o . includes an evaluation s‘trategy

Suggestions for Community Awareness and Education Activities:

e Community Presentatlons {e.g., provndlng education at a local school on a reproducnve

_health topic). A

¢ Attending community events t6 provide health educat|on to attendees (e.g., tabling
events, community meetings).

¢ Conduct presentations to inform community partners ((mental health’ and primary care

~ providers, Shelters, prisons, faith-based organizations, school personnel, parent groups,

social service agencies, food pantries, and other community organizations) of services,
locations, and hours. »

¢ Meet with community partners and coalitions to dlscuss f'amlly plannmg program and

- potential referral opportunities.
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_Attachment 3~ Title X Famlly Planning Informatlon and Education (I&E) Advisory and Community Pamupatmn GuldehnesAgreement

e Post up-to-date program information at a range of community venues, including virtual
_ platforms (websites, social media, etc.).

e Distribute and post flyers.

e Distribute program information at commumty events (e.g., tabling events)

~Community Participatibn, Education, and Project Promotion Agreement

On behalf of -, L hereby certify that I have read and undergtand this
(Agency Name) ; '

policy regarding Community Engagement, Education, and Pl‘O_jeC[ Promotion as detalled above.
| agree to ensure all agency staff and subcontractors working on the Title X project understand

and adhere to the aforementioned policies and procedures set forth.

Printed Name -

- Signature. ' ' : ~ Date
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Attachmant 4 - Title X Reproduciive and Soxual Haatth Services Werk Plan

. NH Family Planning Program (NH FPP) Prioritics:

1.

Ensuring that all cllcnts receive conlraccpuve and other services in a voluntary, cllem-ccmcred and non-coercive manner in accordance with
national standards and guidelines, such as the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Quality Family Planning (QFP} and NH
FPP clinical guidelines and scope of services, with the goal of supporting clients” decisions related to preventing or achieving pregnancy:
Assuring the delivery of quality famllv plnnnmg and related preventive health scrvnccs, with pnonl) given to mdwnduals from low-income

 familics;

Providing access to.a broad range of acceptable nnd effective family planning methods and related preventive hcallh services in accordance
with the NH FPP program clinical guidelines and national standards of care. These services include, but are not limited to, contraceptive -
scrvices mcludlng fertility awarencss based methods, pregnancy testing and counseling, services to hclp clients achicve pregnancy, basic
infertility services, STD scrvices, preconceplion health services, and breast and cervical cancer scrccnmg The broad range of services does
not include abortion as a method of family planning:

Assessing clients' reproductive life plnn/rcproducuvc intentions as purt of determining the need for famlly planning services, and provxdmg
preconception services as stipulated in QFP;

' Followmg a model that promotcs optimal hcalth outcomes (physical, mental and social hcalth) for the client by emphasizing comprchcnswc

primary health care services and substance usc disorder screening, along with family planning services preferably at the same location or
through nearby referral providers;

Providing counseling for adolcscents that encourages the delay the onset of sexual activity and abstincnce as an opuon to reduce sexual risk,
promotes parental involvement, and discusses ways lo resist sexual coercion; .
Identifying individuals, families, and communities in necd, but nat currently receiving family planmng services, through outreach to hard-to-
reach and/or vulnerable populations, and pannermg with other community-based health and socxal service providers that provide nceded -
services; and

. Dcmonslratmg that the project’s infrastructure and management pracuccs ensure sustamablhty of family planmng and rcproductwc health-

services delivery throughout the proposed scrvice area including:
o Incorporation of centified Electronic Health Record (EHR) systems (when avmlablc) that have the ability to capture family planning
- - data within structurcd ficlds;
o Evidenee of contracts with insurdnce plans and syslcms for third party billing as well as the ability to facilitatc the enrollment of
clients into'private insurance and Medicaid, optimally onsite; and to report on numbers of clicnts assisted and enrolicd; and
‘o Addressing the comprchcnswc hcallh care needs of clicnts through formal, robust linkages or intcgration with comprehensive pnmary

care providers.
o8 s
(e
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i " Attachmeni 4 — Title X Reproductive and Sexuat Health Services Work Plan

New Hampshire will also consldcr nnd [ncorporatc the following key issues within its Service Dclwcry Work Plan:

» Adhere to the most current Famlly Planning Scope of Services and NH FPP clumcal guidelines;

o Establish efficient and effective proomm management and operations;

o Provide patient access to a broad range of contraceptive options, including Long Acting Reversible Contraceptives (LARC) and fertility
awareness based methods (FABM), other pharmaceuticals, and laboratory tests, preferably on site;

¢ * Usc of performance measutes to regularty perform qualny assurance and quality improvement activities, mcludmg lhc use of measures to
monitor contraceptive. use;

o FEstablish formal linkages and documented partnerships with comprehiensive pnmar\' care providers, l[lV carc and trcatmcnt providers, and
mental health, drug and alcohol treatment providers;

e [ncorporate the National HIV/AIDS Slratcgy (NHAS) and CDC’s “Revised Recommendations for HIV Testing of Adults, Adolescents and

. Pregnant Women in Health Care Settings;” and

o Conduct efTicient and streamlined electronic data collection, rcponlng and analysis for internal use in monitoring staff or program

performance, program efficiency, and staff productivity in order to improve the quality and delivery of family planning services.

12/3/2021 -



DocuSign Envelope ID: B3CAD9?9-7A49-4095-A§5D-E49229EDOA3D ,

/

DocuSign Envalope ID: 70FDESIF-DCDO-4CEE-8CID-EQ7EBBIFSDIE

Attachment 4 ~ Titla X Reproductive end Sexual Hoalth Servicas Work Plan

Goal I: Maintaln access to fumily planning services for low-income populations across the state.

" Performance INDICATOR #1:

‘Through June 20XX, the following targets have been set:
la. clients will be served

1b _- _ clients <100% FPL will be served

le. clients <250% FPL will be served

|

1d. clients <20-years old will be served
le. clients on Medicaid will be served
If,

male clients will be served

Througfx June 20XX. the following lafgets have been set:
» la, clients will be served

Ib _ clients <100% FPL will be served
le. __ clients <250% FPL will be served
1d. ____ clients <20 yéars old will be served
le. ____ clients on Medicaid will-be served -
1f.

male clients will be served

0y

SFY XX Ou

tcome |
la. —_ Clicnts served
Ib ' Clients <100% FPL
-le. ___ Clicnts <250% FPL
1d. __ Clients <20 years old
le. _ Clients on Medicaid
1f. ___ Clients — Male
ig. __ Women <25 years old positive for
~ Chlamydia
SFY XX Outcome
la. . Clicnts served
Ib __ Clients <100% FPL
le. . Clients<250%FPL
Id. _ _  Clicnts <20 years old
te. ____ Clicnts on Medicaid
Il. ___ Clients—Male
_lg. ___ Women <25 ycars old positive for

Chtamydia
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Altachment 4 ~ Tite X Reproductiive and Sexus! Health Services Work Plan

Goal 2: Assure access to quality clinical and diagnostic services and a broad range of contraceptive methods. -
N

By August 31, 20XX 100% of sub-recipient agencies will have a policy for how they will include abstinence in their education of available methods
in being a form of birth control amongst family planning clients. specifically those clients lcss than (8 years old. (Performance Measure #5)

D Sub-recipient provides grantce a copy of abstinence cducauon policy for review and approval by August 31, ZOXX

Goal 3 Assure that all women of childbearing agé receiving Title X services receive preconception care scrvices through risk assessment

(i.e. scrccnlng, educational & health prometion, and interventions) that will rcduce reproductivc risk.

By August 31, 20XX 100% of sub-recipicnt agencies wili have a policy for how they will provide STD/HIV harm reduction educzmon with all
family planning clients. (Performance Measure #6)

D Sub-recipient provides grnmce a copy of STD/HIV harm reduction education policy for review nnd approval by August 31, 20XX

Goal 4; Provide appropriate education and networking to easure vulnerable populations are awarc of the nvmlnbllit) of family plannlng

“services and to inform public audicnces about Title X prlontlcs

By August 3ist,of each SFY, sub-rccipicnts will complete an outreach and education report of the number of community 'scrwcé providers that they
contacted in order to establish effective outreach for populauons in need of reproductive health services. (Performance Mea:ure #7)
I:I Sub-recipient provxdcs grantee a copy of complclcd outrcach & cducation report by August 31, 20XX.

D Sub-recipient provides grantce a copy of completed outreach & education report by'{\ugus't‘l 1, 20XX.

(a0
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Goal 5: The NH FPP program will assure sub—rccl.picnt agencies are providing appropriate training and technical assistance to ensure Title
X family planning staff (c.g., any staff with clinical, administrative and/or fiscal responsibilities) arc aware of federal guidelines, program
prioritics, and new devclopments in reproductive health and that they have the skills to respond.

By August 31st of each SFY, sub-recipients will submit an annual training report for clinical & non-clinical staff that participated in the provision of
family planning services and/or activities to ensure adequate knowledge of Title X policies, practices and guidelines. (Performance Measure #8)

Sub-recipient prqvides grantee a copy ofcomplctcd annual training report by August 31, 20XX.

D Sub-recipient provides grantee a copy of completed annual training report by August 31, 20X X,

Goal 6: Provide counseling for minors that encourages delaying the onsct of sexual dctivity and abstinence as an option to reduce sexual risk,
promotes parental involvement, and discusses ways to resist sexual coercion.

Within 30 days of Gpvémor and Council Approval, 100% of sub-recipient agencies will have a policy for how they will provide minors counseling to
all clients under 18 years of age.

D Sub-recipicnt provides grantee a copy of minors’ policy for review and approval within 30 davs of Governor and Council Approval

Clinical Performance:
The following section is to report inputs/activitics/evaluation and outcomes for three out of six Family Planning Clinical Performance Measures as
listed below: .
¢ Performance Measure: The percent of all female family planning clients of reproductive age (15-44) who receive preconception counscling
Performance Measure: The percent of female family planning clients < 25 years old screened for chlamydia infection.
e Performance Measure: The percent of women aged 15-44 at risk of unintended pregnancy that is provided a long-acting reversible
contraceptive (LARC) method (Implant or IUD/IUS)

&
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‘Work Plan Instructions:

’ Please use ihe foliowing template to complclc the two-year work plan for the FY XX & FY XX. The work plan components include:
» ' Project Goal

s Project Objectives

* Inputs/Resources

e Planned Activities

o Planncd Evaluation Activities -
Project Goals:

Broad statemcnts that provide overall direction for the Family Plannmg Services.

_ Project Objectives:
List 2-3 objectives for each goal, ObJCClIVeS represent the steps an agenc) will takc 10 achieve cach goal, "Each.objective should be Specific;
Meusurable, Achievable, Realistic; and_Time-phased (.S‘MAR?)l Each objective must be related und contribute directly to the accomplishment of the
stated goal.’

Input/Resources:
List all the inputs, resources, contributions and/or |nveslmems (¢.g.. stalf, bus vouchers, training, ¢t¢.) the agcncy will use to implement the planned -
activitics and planned evaluation activitics. Note: Inputs listed on your work plan, such.as staff, should also be accounted for in your budget.

Planned Activitics:
Activitics describe what your agency plans to do to brmg about the intended objccuvcs (cg., bus vouchers, trainings, etc.)

Evalunhon AchvmcS'
Activities that tell us how you will determine whether or not lhc planned activities were effective (i.c., did you achlcve your mcasurable objective?)

‘Work Plan Performance Qutcome:
At the end of cach SFY you will report your annual outcomes, mdlcatc if targets were met, dcscnbc activities that contributed to your outconies and
explain what your agency intends to do differently over the next year. , ) : N

.
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Sample Work Plan i )

Project Goal: To provide to pntlcntsll'nmlhes support that ‘enhance clinical services and treatment plans for populntxon health improvement:

Project Objective #1: (Care Management/Health Conchmg/Bchavmr Change Assistance): By June 30, 2017, 60% of patients who complete a SWAP
(Sustained Wellness Action Plan) will report an lmprovcmcnr in henlthl\\cll-bcmg, as measured by responses to a Qualm' of Life Indéx.

LINPUT/RESQURCES —_PLANNED ACTIVITIES,
RN Health Coaches- L. Clinical Teams will assess patients/families” potential for benefit from more intensive cafe management and

refer cascs to Care Management Team and Health Coaching, as appropriate. :
2. Care Management Team may refer, based on external data (such as payer claims data and hxgh-utllwauon data)
3. RN Health Coaches assess patients/families and engage in SWAP, as appropriate.
4. SWAP intervention may include Team-based interventions, such as family mectings with Socnal Work,
Bcehavioral Health, ctc.

Care M:;nagcménl Team

Clinical Teams

Behavioral Health and LCSW staff 5. . Comprehensive SWAP may include referral to addmonal self-management activitics, such as chronic disease
’ - self-management program workshops.
SWAP materials and SWAP . 6, RN Health Coaches will adininister Quality Of Life index at start and comapletion of SWAP,
. L EVALUATION ACTIVITIES . 1
Self-Management Programs and Tools 1. Dircctor of Quality wm analyze data senu-annually 10 evaluate performance. :

2. Care Managcmcnt Team will conduct regular reviews of SWAP results as part of weekly mectings and
examine qualitative data, :
Projcct Objective #2: (Care Management/Care Transitions): By Junc 30, 2017, 75% of patients dlschnrgcd from an inpatient hospital stay durmg lhc
measurement period will have reccived Care Transitions follow-up from agency staff

LINPUT/RESOURCES PLANNED ACTI\'ITIE& A

Nursing/Triage Stafl’ 1. Nursing/Triage Staff will access available data on inpatient dxschargcs cach busincss day and complete
. Transition of Care follow;up, as per procedure. L
Care Transitions Team 2. Carc Transitions Champion and other Carc Transitions Team members will pamcxpalc in wcckly lelcphonc
: calls to do care coordination activities and status updales for patients who are mpauems in lacal critical Access
Carc Management Team : . Hospital, have just.becn discharged, or that stafT feel may be at risk for an upcoming admission.
. i 3. Suaff conducting Transitions of Care follow—up will update patients® record, including medication .
+  EHR i ' : reconciliation. ;
: L. EVALUATION ACTIVITIES i i

Transitions of Care template . Carc Management Tcnm will evaluate available data (cxample payer claims data, internal nudus/rcpons)
docunentation semi-annually to evaluate program effectiveness on paticnt care coordination and admission rates/utilization

) . 2. Director of Quality will run Care Transitions report semi-annually to evaluate performance. .
Access to local Hospital data

7
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Program Goal: Assure that all women of childbearing age receiving fumily planning services receive preconception care services through risk

N b ] » 1] . y a - 4
assessment (i.e., screening, educational & health promotion, and interventions) that will reduce reproductive risk. -

Performance Measure: - The percent of all female family planningclients of reproductive age (15-44) who receive preconception counseling

Project Objective:

INPUT/RESOURCES " PLANNED ACTIVITIES -

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES

WORK PLAN PERFORMANCE OUTCOME (To be completed at end of each SFY)

SEY XX Qutcome: /nsert your agency's daid/outcome results here for July 1, 20XX- Junie 30, 20XX,
Targel/Objective Met )
Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success (i.e., PDSA cycles eic.)

Target/Objective Not Met ' ' _
Narrative for Not Mceting Target: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success (i.e.. PDSA cycles etc.)
Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently} to achieve (argel/objecm'e Jor next year,

Revised Work Plan Attachéd (Please check if work plan has been revised)

SFY X)s Qutcome: /nsert your agency’s data/outcome results here for July 1, 20XX- June 30, 20XX

T urgcl/Ochcuvc Met :
-| Narrati ve: Explain what happened during the year lhat conmbuled 10 success (i.e., PDSA cycles eic,)

angct/Objccuvc Not Met
‘[ Narrative for Not Meeting Target: Explain what happened during the year. vhy measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers. etc.
Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for next year :
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Program Geal: To promote the availability of STD screening per CDC screening recommendations for chlamydia and other STDs (as well as
HIV testing) that have potential long-term impact on fertility and pregnancy
Performance Measure: The percent of female family planning clicnts <25 years old screened for chlamydla infection

Project Objective:
INPUT/RESOURCES ) ' _ ' - ~_PLANNED ACTIVITIES

. . )

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES

F WORK PLAN PERFORMANCE OUTCOME (To be completed at end of cach SF\’)
SFY XX Qutcome: Insert your agency's data/outcome results here for July 1, 201\/\' June 30, 20X\
____Target/Objective Met
Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed 1o success (i.e., PDSA cycles etc.)
__ Target/Objective Not Met g
Narrative for Not Mectlng Target: Explain what Imppened during Ilae year, vhy meastre was not mef, lmprovcmen! acti vmes. bamers elc.

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve /arget/ob_;ecu ve for next Year.
* Revised Work Plan Attached (Please check if work plan has been revised)
SFY XX Quicome: Inser: your agency's datafonicome results here for July 1, 20XX- June 30, 20XX
. t & 3

__ Target/Objective Met .
Nnrratlvc Elplam what happened durmg the year that contributed lo suceess (i.e., PDSA cyc[es eic.)

!argct/Ochclwc Not Met . : :
Narrative for Not Mecting Target: Explain what happened during the year. why measure was not met, :mprovemem activities, barriers, efc.
Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) to achieve target/objective for next year
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Program Goal: Assure access to qualiry clinical and diagnostic services and a broad range of contraceptive methods.

Performance Measure: The percent of women ngcd 15-44 at risk of unintended pregnancy that is provided a long-acting reversible comraccpuvc
(LARC) method ¢ Implant or JUD/IUS) ;

Project Objective: .

INPUT/RESOURCES PLANNED ACTIVITIES

EVALUATION ACTIVITIES

_ WORK PLAN PERFORMANCE OUTCOME (To.be completed at end of cach SFY) .
SFY XX Outcome: /nsert your agency's data/ottcome results here for July 1, 20XX- June 30, 20XX .

Target/Objective Met

Narrative: Explain shat happened during the year lhal contributed to success (i. e. PDSA cyc/es etc.)
Targe/Objective Not Met

Narrative for Not Mecting Target:

Proposcd Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differenily) to achieve targcl/ob_/ecm'e Jor next ycar '
Revised Work Plan Attached (Please check if work plan has been revised)

SFY XX Qutcome; insert your agency's data/outcome results here for July 1. 20XX- June 30, 20XX -

Target/Objective Met
Narrative: Explain what happened during the year that contributed to success (i.e., PDSA cycles eic.)

Targev/Objcctive Not Met
Narrative for Not Mecting Target: Explain what happened during the year, why measure was not met, improvement activities, barriers, e/c

Proposed Improvement Plan: Explain what your agency will do (differently) io achieve target/objective for néxt year.
D3
(a0
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Attachment § - Family Planning Reportlng Calendar

»  SFY 2021 Clinical Guidelines SIgnatures
- FP Work Plan

| SFY 22 (January 1, 2022 — December 31, 2023)

Due Date:

Reporting Requirement:

January 14, 2022
*ONLY FOR THOSE WHO,WERE A TITLE X SUB-
RECIPIENT FROM JANUARY 1, 2021-JUNE 30, 2021

‘FPAR Reporting:
»  .Source of Revenue )
¢ Clinical Data (H1V & Pap Tests)
¢ Table 13: FTE/Provider Type

March 11, 2022

Sliding Fee Scales/Discount of Services

“April 8, 2022 Public Health Sterilization Records (January-March)
Late Apri! — May (Official dates shared when 340B Annual Recertification
released from HRSA) (http://ow.ly/NBJG30dmcF7)
| May 6, 2022 Pharmacy Protocols/Guidelines
May 27, 2022 I&E Material List with Advisory Board Approval Dates
SFY 23 (July 1,2022- June 30, 2023) ' » : «
Due Date: . Reporting Requirement:
July 8, 2022 Public Health Sterilization Records (April-June) .
July 15,2022 Clinical Guidelines Signatures

| July - August 2022 (official date TBD)

STD Webinar Signatures

October 7, 2022

Public Health Sterilization Records (July-September)

January 13, 2023

Public Health Sterilization Records (October - December)

JgnUafy 13, 2023

FPAR Reporting:
¢ Source of Revenue -
e + Clinical Data (HIV & Pap Tests)
o Table 13: FTE/Provider Type

January 31, 2023

Patient Satlsfactlon Surveys
Outreach and Education Report
Annual Training Report ;
Work Plan Update/Qutcome Report
Data Trend Tables (DTT)

® © o o o

March 10, 2023

Sliding Fee Scales/Discount of Services

April 14,2023

Public Health Sterilization Records (January -March) -

Late April — May (Official dates shared when

340B Annual Recertification

released from HRSA) (http://ow.ly/NBJG30dmcF7)
May 5,2023 Pharmacy Protocols/Guidelines :
May 26, 2023 1&E Material List with Advisory Board Approval Dates

SFY 24 (July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2024) contract ends on December 31, 2023

July 14, 2023

Clinical Guidelines Signatures (effecnve July 1, 2023)

July — August 2023 (ofﬁcml date TBD)

STD Webinar Signatures

DS

October 6, 2023

Public Health Sterilization Records (J uly-September)

AN,

| SO
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Attachment 5 —~ Family Planning Reporting Calendar

'January 12,2024

FPAR Reporting:

"Clinical Data (HIV & Pap Tests)

Source of Revenue

Table 13: FTE/Provider Type

January 31, 2024

- Patient Satisfaction Surveys

Outreach and Education Report
Annual Training Report

Work Plan Update/Qutcome Report
Data Trend Tables (DTT)

All dates and reporting requirements are subject to change at the discretion of the NH Family Planning Program dtyd
Title X Federal Requirements. ' )
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Attachment 6 - FPAR Dala Elements (SAMPLE ORAFT)

New Hampsh:re Planning Program

Family Plannmg Annual Report (FPAR)

Proposed FPAR 2.0 Additional Data Elements

Existing Data Elements

Clinical Provider Identifier

Age

Annual' Household Income . . Contraceptive Counseling -

Birth Sex Contraceptive provision method (prescnptlon, referral)
Breast Exam Counseling to achieve pregnancy provided

CBE Referral -|CT performed at visit

Chlamydia Test (CT) CT Test Result

Contraceptive method initial Date of Last HIV test

Contraceptive method at exit

Date of Last HPV Co-test

Date of Birth Date of Pap Tests Last 5 years
[English Proficiency’ Diastolic blood pressure
Ethnicity Ever Had Sex

Gonorrhea Test {GC) Facility Identifier

HIV Test — Rapid

GC performed at visit

HIV Test — Standard’

GC Test Result

_ |Household Family Size

Gravidity

Medical Services

Height

Office Visit — new or established patient

HIV test performed at visit

Pap Test

HIV Referral Recommended Date

Patient Number

HIV Referral Visit Completéd Date

Preconception Counsehng

HPV test performed at visit

Pregnancy Status HPV Test Result
Pregnancy Test Method(s) Provided At Exit

Primary Contraceptive Method

Parity .

[Primary Reimbursement

. |Pap Test in the last S years

Principle Health Insurance Coverage

Pregnancy Future Intention

Procedure Visit Type Pregnancy Status Reporting .
"o - |Provider Role (e g., MD, CNM, NP} Reason for no contraceptive method at intake.
Race Sex in the last 12 Months * - :

Reason for no method at exit

Sex in the Jast 3 Months

Syphilis test result

Smoking status

_[Site Systolic blood pressure
. |Visit Date {Syphilis test performed at visit
Zip code Weight

@
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Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1

Indicators:

la.

b
le.
Idi
le.

I

lienis will be seryed la.___clientsserved
“1b. iénts <100% '

clients < 100% FPL will be served ) lb Ay "I'.‘e“tts <258;’ prpt

-clients < 250% FPL will be served T clients. o

cl' <20 ¢ 11 b ed 1d. clients <20years of age

clients years [0 age wi e serve le cli'ents on Medicaid

clients on Medicaid at their last visit will be served If-
male clients will be served -

SFY XX OQutcome

- maleclients

lg. women <25 years of age
positive for chlamydia

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 b

Indicator:
caseload.

- Goal:

Definition:

The percent of family pianning clients under 100% FPL in the family planning

To increase access to reproductive services to low-income residents.
Numerator: Total number of clients <100% FPL served.

Denominator: Total nimber of clients served.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Indicator #1 ¢

Indicator:
.Goal:

Definition:

The percent of famlly planning clients under 250% FPL
To increase access to reproductxve services to low-income resxdents
Numerator: Total number of clients <250% FPL served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System -

Family Planning'(FP) Performance Indicator #1 d

Indicator: - The percent of‘family p]‘;mning clients under 20 years of age.
' Goa]: To increase access to reproductive servic.es to adolescents.
Definition: Numefator: ';Ifotal number ofclients under 20 years of age served.
Denominator: Total number of clients served.
Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System : | ' » @
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Family Plzirining (FP) Performance Indicator #1 e

- Indicator: .

Goal:

Definition:

~ The percent of family planning clients that were Medicaid recipients at the time of their

last visit.
To improve access to reproductive services to Medicaid clients.
Numerator: Number of clients that used Medicaid as payment source.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planuning (FP) Performance Indi¢ator 811

Indicator: -

- Goal:

‘Definition:

The percent of family planning male clients.

To increase access to reproductive services to males.
Numerator: Total number of male clients served.

Denominator: Total number of clients served.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Basé System

L

Famlly_Plannmg (FP) Performance Indlcator #1 g

lndlcator:_

Goal: '

Defini‘tion: ‘

The proportion of women <25 years old screened for chlamydia that tested positive.

To improve dmgnosns of asymptomatic chlamydia infection-in the age group with
highest risk.

, Numerator' Tota! number of women <25 years old that tested positive for chlamydia,

Denommator The total number of women <25 years old screened for chlamydla

Data Source. Electromc Medical Records (EMR)

Family Ple"ﬁnin,q (FP) Performance Measure #1

Measure:

Goal:

The percent of family planning clients of reproductlvc age who received preconceptlon
counselmg :

To assure that all women of childbearing age receiving Title X services receive o
preconception care services through risk assessment (i.e., screening, educational & [ o3

health promotion, and interventions) that will reduce reproductive risk.

i
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" Definition: - Numerator: Total number of clients of reproductive age who receive preconception
health counselmg

Denominator: Total number of clients of reproductive age. .

Data SOUII‘CCZ Electronic Medical Records- (EMR)

Family Planning (FP) Perfor-mance Measure #2'

e

' Measure:  The percent of female family planmng clnents < 25 years old screened for chlamydia
infection.
Goal: To improve dxagnosns of asymptomatlc chlamydla mfectlon in the age group with
highest risk.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of chlamydia tests for female clients <25 years old.

Denominator: Total number of female clients < 25 years old. .

Data Source: Family P\lanning Data Base System.

-

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #3

~ Measure: The peréentage of women aged 15-44 years at risk of unintended pregnancy that is
provided a most effective (sterilization, implants, intrauterine devices or systems (IUD/IUS)) or-
moderately effective (injectable,- oral pills, patch, ring, or diaphragm) contraceptive method.

‘Goal: ' Toi improve uullzatlon of most and moderately effectwe contraceptive methods to
reduce unmtended pregnancy.

Definition: Numierator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unintended pregnancy
: provided a most or moderately effective contraceptive method

Denominator: The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unihtended
pregnancy.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #4

Measure: The percentage of women aéed 15-44 years at risk of unintended pregnancy that is
‘ provided a Jong-acting reversible contraceptive (LARC) (implants or intrauterine
devices systems (IUD/IUS)) method.

- . D9
Goal: To improve utilization of LARC methods to reduce unintended pregnancy. l AN
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i

)

Definition: Nurﬁerator: The number of women.aged 15-44 years at risk of pregnancy that is
. provided a long-acting reversible contraceptive (LARC) method'(implants or lUD/lUS).

| 'Denommator The number of women aged 15-44 years at risk for unmtended
pregnancy.

Data Source: Family Planning Data Base System

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #5

Measure: The pg:fcent of ‘family planning clients less than 18 years of age who received education
that abstinence is a viable method/form of birth control.

Goal: To improve access to a broad range of effective contraceptive ﬁ1ethods, including
abstinence, to prevent unintended pregnancy, STDs and HIV/AIDS.

Definition: Numerator: Total number of clients under the age of 18 who received abstinence
education.

Denommator Total number of chents under the age of 18.

Data Source: Electronic Medlcal Records (EMR)

Farhily Planning (FP) Performance Measure #6

Measure; . The percentage of family' planning clients who received STD/HIV reduction gducation.
~ Goal: . To ensure that all 'clie’nts.recc’aiVe STD/HIV reduction education.
Definition: Numerator: The total riumber of clients that received STD/HIV reduction education.
l_)enqminator: 'i‘he fotal number of clients served.

Data Source: Electronic Medical Records (EMR)

Family Plahninﬁ (FP) Performance Measure #7
' Community Partnership Report.

Definition: This measure requires for meetings (in-person and/or virtual) with agencies or individuals

_ intended to increase linkages between the family plannjng program and key partners in the community.

" Qutreach efforts should include:- (1) learning about the partner agency (2) informing the partner
agéncy about -family planning services and (3) identifying areas where linkages can be established.
The most effective outreach is targeted to a specific audience and/or purpose and is directed based on -
identified needs. All sites are requiréd to make one contact ‘annually with the local DCYF o, Ceé(» :
Please be very specific in describing the outcomes of the linkagées you were able to establish.
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SAMPLE:

" Qutreach Plan Qutreach Report
Agency/Individual Purpose Contact Outcome — Linkages
Partner Contacted Date Established

Family Planning (FP) Performance Measure #8

Annual Training Report

Definition: This measure requires the family planning delegate to submit an annual training report for
- clinical & non-clinical staff that participate in the provision of family planning services and/or
activities to ensure adequate knowledge of Title X policies, practices and guidelines.

L
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' Attachment 8 - NH FPP TANF Policy

TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES FUNDING POLICY .
- Section: Maternal & Child Health Sub Section(§): Family Planning Program Version: 1.0

Eftectlve Date: [INSERT DATE] Next Review Date:. [INSERT DATE]

Approved by: | HALEY. JOHNSTON

Authority NH Departrnent of Health and Human Services, Division of
Economic and Housing Supports

The purpose of this policy is to describe the NH Family Planning Program’s (NH FPP)
process for ensuring sub-recipient compliance with proper utilization of the Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funding awarded by the NH Department of
Health and Human Services, NH Division of Public Health Services, and as administered
and required by the U.S Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), .
Administration for Chlldren and Families (ACF), Office of Family Assistance (OFA)

L TANF Funding Policy

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funding must only be utilized by sub-
recipients for family planning program outreach and promotional activities or events that

. support knowledge of and access to family planning services by populations in need. Outreach -
and promotional actwmes/events may include, but are not limited to:

e  Outreach coordi natibn.
o Community table events.

e Social media.

. Outreach to schools.

Sub-rcc:plents should produce a plan that documents a promotional strategy and marketmg
campaign that includes identification of populations in need of family planning services,
details activities and projects for reachmg the target population and specifies evaluation -
measures. Sub-recipients must submit an Outreach & E ducanon Report on an annual basis
on August 31 of each contract year or as requested by the NH FPP.

Outreach efforts must be specific to the NH family planning program and sub—rec:piehts
must not report any outreach efforts comlucted by any other program within thetr
orgamzatxon :

Suggestions for TANF-funded promotional activities/events:
. * Community Presentations (e.g., providing education at a local school on a reproductxve
health topxc)
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¢’ Attend community events to provrde health education to attendees (e.g, tablmg events,
_ community meetings).
- o Distribute program information at commumty events (e.g., tabling events)
¢ Conduct presentations to inform commumty partners (mental health and pnmary care
providers, shelters, prisons, faith-based organizations, school personnel, parent groups,
social service agencies, food pantnes and other community orgamzattons) of services,
locations, and.hours. :
e Meet with commumty partners and coalitions to discuss the family planmng program
and potential referral opportumtles .
o Post up-to-date program ‘information at a range of commumty venues, including virtual
platforms (e.g., websites, social media). '
* Distribute and post flyers.
. . Create and post social media to promole famlly planning services.

TANF Fundmg Policy Agreement

On behalf of ‘ , ] hereby ceztify that I have read and understand the‘
(Agency Name) :

TANF Funding Policy as detailed above. I agree to ensure all agency staff and subcontractors

working on the Title X project understand and gc‘_lhere to the aforementioned policies and

procedures set forth.

Authorizing _Ofﬁciali Printed Name

Authorizing Official Signature Date
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